Washington State
Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council

AGENDA

MONTHLY MEETING 1300 S Evergreen Park Drive SW
Tuesday, November 13, 2018 Olympia, WA 98504
1:30 PM Meeting Room 139
1. Call to Order e e e ... Kathleen Drew, EFSEC Chair
2 RO Call Tammy Mastro, EFSEC Staff
3. Proposed Agenda G R B R A S S e S e S e e essara BBl Brew;  EFSEC €halt
4. Minutes Meeting Minutes............................. Kathleen Drew, EFSEC Chair
« October 16, 2018
5. Frojacta a. Kittitas Valley Wind Project
e Operational Updates......................ccceeeeiee oo oo oo Eric Melbardis, EDP Renewables
b. Wild Horse Wind Power Project
¢ Operational Updates...................c..o v veeiviieeeeeecc Jeninifer Diaz, Puget Sound Energy
c. Grays Harbor Energy Center
e Operational Updates..............................coce oo Chris Sherin, Grays Harbor Energy
d. Columbia Generating Station
e Operational Updates.......................cooocoeev v Mary Ramos, Energy Northwest
e. WNP-1/4
s Non-Operational Updates............................. e ... .Mary Ramos, Energy Northwest
f. Chehalis Generation Facility
e« OperationalUpdates.......................ocoooeevi v Mark Miller, Chehalis Generation
g. Columbia Solar Project
s Project Updates- e v nmmmannammasssos s nsANi Kidder, EFSEG Staff
h. Whistling Ridge Energy Project
¥ Project Updatel...ommmmunammunssmnmenmnsis sl asSiin-Spadare, Whistling Ridge
i. Desert Claim
% Project Updates...cvvsmnmsssmnsmnmossmsarms s BNy MooH;, EFSEC Staft
8 SCAAMENHMEHT oo s e s S e S5 b Sonia Bumpus, EFSEC Staff
EFSEC staff will provide an update and the Council will consider and may take Final Action on the
certificate holders request to amend the SCA.
06 ¢ R ORIV v vt R SRS R s R T s reati aen;: Diew; EFSEC Ghair

Note: "FINAL ACTION" means a collective positive or negative decision, or an actual vote by a majority of the members of a governing body when
sitting as a body or entity, upon a motion, proposal, resolution, order, or ordinance. RCW 42.30.020




Verbatim Transcript of Monthly Council Meeting

Washington State Energy Facility Site Evaluation
Council

October 16, 2018

BU E LL COUREREPORTING
AND LEGALVIDEO

REALTIME REPORTING

1325 Fourth Avenue  Suite 1840  Seattle, Washington 98101

206.287.9066

www.buellrealtime.com

Olympia | 360.534.9066 Spokane | 509.624.3261 National | 800.846.6989

email: info@buellrealtime.com

Certified
q‘
%M'JBWEW




DRAFT - UNAPPROVED MEETING MINUTES

Verbatim Transcript of Monthly Council Meeting 10/16/2018
Page 1 Page 3
1 1 OLYMPIA, WASHINGTON; OCTOBER 16, 2018
2 2 1:30 P.M.
3 3 —00o0-
4 WASHINGTON STATE 4 PROCEEDINGS
5 ENERGY FACILITY SITE EVALUATION COUNCIL 5
6 Olympia, Washington 6 CHAIR DREW: Good afternoon. This is
7 Tuesday, October 16, 2018 7 Kathleen Drew, Chair of the EFSEC Council, and | am, at
8 1:30 p.m. a this time, at 1:30, calling this meeting to order.
9 9 Ms. Mastro, will you call the roll?
10 10 MS. MASTRO: Department of Commerce?
11 MENTHEFCRENEIEMEETING 11 MS GREEN-TAYLOR: Liz Green-Taylor, here.
12 Verbatim Transcript of Proceedings 12 MS. MASTRO: Department of Ecology?
13 13 MR. STEPHENSON: Cullen Stephenson, here.
14 14 MS. MASTRO: Department of Fish and
15 15 Wildlife? Department of Fish and Wildlife?
B 16 MR. LIVINGSTON: Mike Livingston, on the
s 17 phone.
18 18 MS. MASTRO: Department of Natural
19 19 Resources?
o2 20 MR. SIEMANN: Dan Siemann is on the phone.
21 REPORTED BY: TAYLER GARLINGHOUSE, CCR 3358 ) )
21 MS. MASTRO: Chair, there is a quorum for
22 Buell Realtime Reporting, LLC )
1325 Fourth Avenue, Suite 1840 22 the EFSEC Council.
23 Seattle, Washington 98101
206 287-9065T3eame 23 CHAIR DREW: Thank you.
24 (360) 534-9066 | Olympia
(B0O) 846-6989 | National 24 Is there anyone else on the phone who'd like
25 www.buellrealtime.com
25 tointroduce themselves?
Page 2 Page 4
1 APPEARANCES 1 MS. WARNER: This is Kara Warner with Golder
2 c i b 2 Associates.
ouncilmembers:
3 3 CHAIR DREW: Okay. We will move on to the
4 C E E ade?t of Ecolo 4 proposed agenda, which you received last week and is in
mer
5 M sﬂR ife ((u[ao or'iaefg 5 front of those of us here at the table. Is there a
atura esources via phone :
6 & motion to approve the agenda?
7 Assistant Attorney General: 7 MR. STEPHENSON: [ will move that we approve
8 A , g the agenda.
SN FoRE SN
9 X 9 CHAIR DREW: Are there any changes? No
Councnl Staff'
10 10 changes.
11 11 MS. GREEN-TAYLOR: | will second that —
12 12 [I'll second the motion.
13 NDERSON 13 CHAIR DREW: Thank you.
14 oTIS 14 All those in favor, say "aye.”
15 In Attendance' 15 COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
16 N ssociates (v hone 16 CHAIR DREW: Opposed? The agenda is
%%%ﬁ Wabies tv.g fioe)
17 I g t é‘; 7 adopted.
| neratin
18 g a is Generati ?ta ion 18 Now for the meeting minutes. Is there a
19 19 motion to approve the meeting minutes?
20 20 MR. STEPHENSON: | will move that we approve
21 . 21 the meeting minutes.
22 22 MS. GREEN-TAYLOR: | will second that
23 23 motion.
24 24 CHAIR DREW: Any comments, corrections?
25 25 Hearing none, all those in favor of approving the

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC
206.287.9066 | 800.846.6989

Page: 1 (1-4)



i

DRAFT - UNAPPROVED MEETING MINUTES

Verbatim Transcript of Monthly Council Meeting 10/16/2018
Page 5 Page 7
1 meeting minutes, please say "aye." 1 regular basis going forward and getting more involved.
2 COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye. 2 And I'd also like to thank Ami Kidder who — the EFSEC
3 CHAIR DREW: Opposed? The minutes are 3 siting specialist who visited the Chehalis plant last
4 adopted. 4 Tuesday and discussed a number of topics and provided
5 Moving on to our projects. Kittitas Valley 5 her with orientation of the plant. So Jeremy spent
6 Wind Project update, Mr. Melbardis? & quite a bit of time with Ami.
7 MR. MELBARDIS: Good afterncon, Chair Drew, 7 While the following note is not a September
g EFSEC Council, and Staff. This is Eric Melbardis with 8 reporting topic, | felt important that the Council know
9 EDP Renewables for the Kittitas Valley Wind Power g that we did have one significant event that occurred
10 Project. We had nothing nonroutine to report for the 10 late last week and that was the curtailment of natural
11 period. 11 gas to the Chehalis plant.
12 CHAIR DREW: Thank you. 12 At approximately 5:45 p.m. on Tuesday,
13 Wild Horse Wind Power Project? 13 October 8th, a major rupture, an explosion occurred in
14 MS. KIDDER: Chair Drew, Ms. Diaz was unable 14 the Enbridge pipeline in northern British Columbia.
15 to attend this month's meeting. The update is in your 15 Enbridge is the major gas, fire out of northern British
16 Council packet, and there is nothing nonroutine to 16 Columbia and delivers gas to the U.S., B.C. Border at
17 report. 17 Sumas.
18 CHAIR DREW: Okay. Thank you. 18 At approximately 10:00 p.m. that evening,
19 Grays Harbor Energy Center? 19 PacifiCorp was notified by Williams Northwest Pipeline
20 MR. SHERIN: Good afterncon, Chair Drew and 20 of the event and asked for assistance in maintaining gas
21 Councilmembers. My name is Chris Sherin, plant manager 21 transport to the U.S. Williams Pipeline is the single
22 atGrays Harbor Energy Center. The only thing | have 22 pipeline provider from Sumas hub to GasMart, it's in the
23 that was nonroutine for the month is - of September is 23 |-5 corridor. At approximately 2:00 p.m. on October
24 that we did our annual outfall inspection and did some 24 10th, Williams issued a former force majeure event,
25 minor planned repairs on the support brackets for the 25 which curtailed supplies to the Chehalis plant.
Page 6 Page 8
1 outfalls and also repaired a second bracket that was 1 While the gas situation has been affecting
2 discovered during inspection to be slightly damaged. So 2 our operations at Chehalis, it is improving and there's
3 they are all in good shape now. 3 so much uncertainty and flow from Canada. As of this
4 CHAIR DREW: Thank you. 4 morning, at 10:47 -- or 9:47 a.m., we were able to start
5 Are there any questions? 5 one of the two turbines with some uncertainty on gas
6 Okay. Thank you very much. & delivery.
7 MR. SHERIN: Thank you. 7 And that's it for the special note. And
8 CHAIR DREW: Columbia Generating Station? | g also, | understand that the Council would like to visit
9 noticed that there are no nonroutine updates. 3 or hold a regular meeting at a facility. And I'd like
10 So, Ms. Moon, is that correct? 10 to offer up the Chehalis site since we're so close to
5 MS. MOON: That's correct. There are no 11 Olympia, just down the |-5. And not a huge conference
12 nonroutine updates. 12 room, but it would be | think enough if there is a major
13 CHAIR DREW: Okay. Thank you. And the same 13 project review underway. Other than that, | have no
14 for WNP 1/47 14 nonroutine comments. Are there any questions?
15 MS. MOON: That's correct. There's also no 15 CHAIR DREW: Thank you. Are there any
16 updates on 1/4. 16 Questions?
17 CHAIR DREW: Thank you. 17 Mr. Stephenson?
18 Chehalis Generation Facility? 18 MR. STEPHENSON: Thank you, Chair Drew.
19 MR. MILLER: Good afternoon, Chair Drew and 19 Mark, when a rupture like this happens, is
20 Councilmembers and Staff. I'm Mark Miller, the plant 20 it just automatic how your facility responds?
21 manager at the PacifiCorp Chehalis Generation Facility. 21 MR. MILLER: Itis not. So there is still
22 | have with me today Jeremy Smith. Just to introduce, 22 some - the pipeline is packed, and while there is the
23 Jeremy's been with the plant about ten years, but he's 23 Jackson Prairie storage facility, which is south of the
24 our environmental health safety analyst, and I'm 24 Chehalis plant, we are an interruptible customer where
25 going - he will be attending these meetings on a 25 there may be some that are not. And so the stability, |

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC
206.287.9066 | 800.846.6989

Page: 2 (5 - 8)



DRAFT - UNAPPROVED MEETING MINUTES

Verbatim Transcript of Monthly Council Meeting 10/16/2018
Page 9 Page 11
1 think it went from a 36-inch pipeline to a complete 1 contractors to ensure completeness. The deadline for
2 failure. So they moved gas, from the little | 2 the governor’s decision is this coming Sunday, October
3 understand, I'm not a pipeline person, from the Rockies. 3 21st. Are there any questions?
4 If there had been a cold snap, it would be difficult and 4 CHAIR DREW: Thank you.
5 it may have been something more responsive. But this 5 The Desert Claim Project update?
& was some phone calls late in the evening that, you know, 6 Ms. Bumpus?
7 take the plant offline in a controlled fashion versus 7 MS. BUMPUS: Chair Drew, | just wanted to
g tripping it off. It was a pretty significant rupture. g8 mention that after Amy gives her update, | wanted to
9 MR. STEPHENSON: So not automatic to respond g talk about next steps for Desert Claim.
10 tothat, but are you automatic to respond to the dip in 10 CHAIR DREW: Okay. Thank you.
11 natural gas? 11 MS. MOON: Okay. Good afternoon, Chair Drew
12 MR. MILLER: If there was a loss in gas 12 and Councilmembers both here and on the phone. This is
13 pressure, there are safety precautions and measures with 13 Amy Moon, and | will be providing a project update on
14 automatic protective relay systems that would detect 14 Desert Claim. So at the last Council meeting on
15 that and wouldn't allow the turbines to get it to, you 15 September 18th, the Council directed EFSEC Staff to post
16 know, an improper air/fuel mixture and ultimately a lean 16 the addendum and the final supplemental EIS for the
17 blowout is what they would call it. So there are those 17 Desert Claim Wind Power Project request for amendment to
18 protections, but that was not the case at this point. 18 the site certification agreement for a 15-day public
19 MR. STEPHENSON: Thank you. 19 comment period.
20 CHAIR DREW: If I can follow up on that. So 20 The addendum was posted for public comment
21 what | hear you saying is that the — you were asked to 21 on September 25th and distributed to agencies, tribes,
22 curtail in order for your - the gas that you would have 22 and interested parties. The comment period closed
23 received to go to another customer that was not -- 23 October 10th at 5:00 p.m. Supporting documentation that
24 was — needed it at a -- in the scale of order of 24 was also posted included an EFSEC Staff memo summarizing
25 however this occurs in an emergency. 25 the SEPA environmental review and Staff recommendation.
Page 10 Page 12
1 MR. MILLER: Not unlikely. Electric grid 1 Supporting reports and data requests were also posted
2 remains — keeps the stability in the system and 2 for the public to read such as an independent visual
31 maintains flows to, you know, even just residential 1 effects assessment conducted by EFSEC.
4 customers. You know, we consume a significant amount of 4 And as a reminder to the Council, the SEPA
5 gas. And so taking those large consumers offline was 5 addendum included proposed mitigation measures for
6 important to keep the stability of flow in the system. & Impacts to the following resources: Wetlands and
7 CHAIR DREW: Thank you. Actually, this will 7 streams during construction; wetland mitigation
g be an interesting issue having come before us when we g8 monitoring; wetland streams and buffer impacts; shadow
9 tour your facility, and maybe we'll have more g flicker; low frequency noise and arrow acoustic noise;
10 conversations — 10 lighting in the night sky; historic and cultural
11 MR. MILLER: Sure. We can be prepared for 11 preservation; traffic impacts during construction; and
12 that 12 environmental impacts during construction.
13 CHAIR DREW: - and see that more as we go 13 As a result of the public comment period, we
14 on. Okay. Thank you. 14 received three public comments; one from the Washington
15 MR. MILLER: Thank you. 15 Department of Ecology, a second from an Ellensburg
16 CHAIR DREW: Did you have a comment? 16 resident, and third from the certificate holder. The
17 MS. GREEN-TAYLOR: No. 17 public comments were regarding water, noise, visual and
18 CHAIR DREW: Okay. Moving on to Columbia 18 aesthetic, light and glare, historic and cultural, and
19 Solar Project project update, Ms. Kidder? 19 transportation. And specifically, the Washington State
20 MS. KIDDER: Thank you, Chair Drew and 20 Department of Ecology commented on the protection of
21 Councilmembers. For the record, my name is Ami Kidder. 21 Iimpaired water bodies during the construction phase as
22 |just have a very brief update on the Columbia Solar 22 well as during future operations. This issue is
23 Project. While Staff is waiting for the governor's 23 addressed in permit and plan requirements in the SCA.
24 decision, we are updating our list of required 24 The comments from an Ellensburg resident who
25 preconstruction plans and getting input from our 25 resides on Smithson Road were on the duration of

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC
206.287.9066 | 800.846.6989

Page: 3 (9 - 12)




DRAFT - UNAPPROVED MEETING MINUTES

Verbatim Transcript of Monthly Council Meeting 10/16/2018
Page 13 Page 15
1 construction transportation, turbine visual impacts, 1 like a minimum buffer; archaeological isolates being
2 aircraft detection lighting system, that's the ADLS, 2 further -- they wanted that to be further studied and
3 noise standards, and the potential for an on-site 3 also have a minimum buffer; 51 rock features, they were
4 concrete batch plant. We are coordinating with our 4 requesting that that be reevaluated and recorded as
5 consultant to respond to these issues, but we do not 5 archeological site; and then archeological monitoring
& expect these will result in revising any related & during construction when there's ground-disturbing
7 mitigation measures. 7 activity. Those were in the - like | said, the report
8 We also received comments from the g that the certificate holder supplied in February 2018.
9 certificate holder regarding the mitigation measures for 9 CHAIR DREW: Okay. Thank you.
10 historic and cultural preservation, and in reviewing 10 Other questions?
11 these comments, Staff determined that only one comment 11 Okay. Thank you.
12 would require a revision and mitigation measures, and 12 Ms. Bumpus.
13 this is to — well, one comment in re- - when we 13 MS. BUMPUS: Thank you, Chair Drew and
14 reviewed all three comments. The only revision and 14 Councilmembers. | wanted to talk about next steps for
15 mitigation measures would be to historic and cultural 15 the Desert Claim amendment request. Back in April of
16 preservation. We are working to address this comment 16 this year, we had a Council meeting where EFSEC Staff
17 and have reached out to the Yakima Nation and the 17 discussed the SCA amendment review process that's
18 certificate holder in order to finalize the mitigation 18 outlined in WAC 463-66. Staff talked about the
19 addressing potential cultural resource impacts. 19 Council's determination for an amendment request, which
20 None of the analysis done for the SEPA 20 consists of either accepting the amendments as
21 addendum resulted in findings of significant adverse 21 requested, rejecting the amendment, or rejection of the
22 impacts, and we did not identify any other significant 22 amendment with conditions that are determined to be
23 adverse impacts to the amendment proposal that would 23 acceptable by the Council.
24 require further revision of the mitigation measures in 24 We also generally discussed the factors the
25 the proposed SEPA addendum. 25 Council considers for an amended proposal to ensure that
Page 14 Page 16
1 In the next few weeks, EFSEC Staff will be 1 it's consistent with the intent of the original SCA,
2 working to update the Staff memo that documents the 2 applicable laws and rules, public health, safety, and
3 response to substantive comments and the rationale for 3 welfare, and the provisions of Chapter 463-72, which
4 the final mitigation measures for Council review as well 4 addresses site restoration and preservation. So these
5 as working on the final SEPA addendum document. 5 are -- that last one are things that are already in the
6 | know that was a mouthful, but does the 6 SCA.
7 Council have any questions at this time? 7 We also discussed two paths outlined in our
8 CHAIR DREW: Mr. Stephenson? g rules for approval of an SCA amendment request. Where
9 MR. STEPHENSON: Thank you, Chair Drew. g an amendment substantially alters the substance of any
10 Ms. Moon, can you describe a little more 10 provision of the SCA or if it is determined that the
11 justsoit's on the record about the cultural and 11 amended proposal has significant detrimental effects on
12 historical concerns from the Yakima Tribe? 12 the environment, and | interpret this to be synonymous
13 MS. MOON: The comment? Well, the comment 13 with significant adverse environmental impacts if you're
14 from the certificate holder or what the Yakima Nation 14 talking in SEPA terms, then approval by the governor
15 concerns are? 15 would be necessary. However, if the Council determines
16 MR. STEPHENSON: The Yakima Naticn concerns. 16 that the amendment request does not substantially alter
17 MS. MOON: So in -- there was a report 17 the substance of any provisions in the SCA and no
18 called the Assessment of Updated Project Design for the 18 detrimental effects on the environment are identified,
19 Desert Claim Wind Power Project that was prepared by 19 the Council's approval of the amendment can be
20 Archeological Investigations Northwest in February of 20 documented in the form of a resolution.
21 2018 that was submitted as part of the proposed SCA 21 So in moving forward with the information
22 amendment. And in there, the Yakima Nation was sited as 22 that Staff has now, we plan to prepare a draft of the
23 having some concerns over avoidance of concentrated 23 amended Site Certification Agreement. It would include
24 resource areas, habitat rehabilitation of impacted 24 these mitigation measures that Ms. Moon has summarized
25 resource areas; archaeological sites to have buffers, 25 that were in the SEPA addendum. It would also include

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC
206.287.9066 | 800.846.6989

Page: 4 (13 - 16)



DRAFT - UNAPPROVED MEETING MINUTES

Verbatim Transcript of Monthly Council Meeting 10/16/2018
Page 17 Page 19
1 the cultural resource mitigation measure that we're 1 Il go ahead and read the percentages. For the
2 planning on updating, and it would include a draft 2 Kittitas Valley Wind Project, it's 8 percent; Wild Horse
3 resolution that we would send to the Council to review. 3 Wind Project, 8 percent; Columbia Generating Station, 23
4 The intent is to provide these documents to the Council 4 percent; Columbia Solar Project, 16 percent; WNP 1 is 4
5 prior to the next meeting so that the Council can vote 5 percent; the Whistling Ridge Energy Project, 3 percent;
& on Desert Claim's amendment request at the November & Grays Harbor Energy 1 and 2, 11 percent; Chehalis
7 Council meeting. 7 Generation, 9 percent; Desert Claim Wind Power Project,
B CHAIR DREW: Yes? B 15 percent; Grays Harbor Energy 3 and 4, 3 percent.
9 MS. GREEN-TAYLOR: So do any of those 3 And that concludes my presentation. I'd be
10 changes constitute significant impacts or significant 10 happy to answer any questions Councilmembers may have.
11 changes? 11 CHAIR DREW: Any questions?
12 MS. BUMPUS: Well, based off of the SEPA 12 Thank you.
13 work that we've done, the SEPA addendum that was put out 13 MR. POSNER: Next item. So | thought it
14 for public comment and the three public comment 14 would be beneficial, Chair Drew, and | discussed this
15 submissions that Ms. Moon talked about, we don't find 15 earlier this month, to provide just an update on a
16 any significant adverse impacts that we can't mitigate. 16 couple of projects that are ongoing that the Council's
17 MS. GREEN-TAYLOR: Thank you. 17 not directly involved in but are basically designed to
18 CHAIR DREW: Are there other questions from 18 Iimprove our processes. And we have implemented two
19 Councilmembers? 19 rather large projects. They've been ongoing for — the
20 So our plan would be, then, to review the 20 first one has been going on for a couple months now, and
21 documents that the Staff will prepare prior to our 21 itis the EFSEC UTC Administrative Integration Project,
22 November meeting, which is November 13th. 22 and we are working very closely with UTC Staff to
23 MS. BUMPUS: | believe that's right. 23 develop what we're calling service level agreements, and
24 CHAIR DREW: And then we can — can take a 24 the purpose will be to improve efficiency and the
25 look at that ahead of time and come ready to discuss 25 quality of service to our internal and external
Page 18 Page 20
1 those items at our November meeting. We changed our 1 customers.
2 meeting from the 20th, which is the day before 2 And we have been - for the month of
3 Thanksgiving week, to the 13th. 3 October, we have begun the meetings that we're having.
4 MS. AITKEN: You're right. 4 It's sort of like a mapping process. We bring together
5 CHAIR DREW: So because our original 5 folks who directly work on various tasks where there are
& calendar - so let's — everybody make a note of that. & hand-offs, if you will, between EFSEC and UTC Staff.
7 Our original calendar had it for the 20th, but we have 7 There are a number of things that go on with EFSEC Staff
8 changed it to the 13th. g and the UTC Staff that we're -- you know, they need us
9 Okay. Any further questions or comments? g and we need them. So we're just looking for ways to
10 Okay. Thank you very much. 10 improve that process to sort of build more efficiency
11 And we will move on to our "Other” topic, 11 into the way that works. So I'll be providing more
12 and Mr. Posner is going to give us the second quarter 12 updates for you as things develop, but so far, it's been
13 cost allocation as well as manager updates. There are a 13 going quite well. We've had a few meetings already, so
14 few things that the Staff has been working on that don't 14 more on that later.
15 come to the Council for action, and we just wanted to 15 The next project is the Website Redesign
16 give you updates on those. 16 Project. As some of you may be aware, our website is
17 MR. POSNER: Good afternoon, Chair Drew, 17 outof date. It's using an outdated platform, and we
18 Councilmembers. So in your packet, as we do every 18 have been working with the consumer protection division,
19 quarter, the beginning of the quarter, is a green sheet 19 communications division, and WaTech, which is | believe
20 that describes or lists the percentages that we charge 20 adivision of Department of Enterprise Services to
21 to our certificate holders and applicants. And this is 1 develop -~ design and develop, launch a new website.
22 based on the past quarter's technical work and then also 22 And the benefits of this new website will - it will be
23 anticipated work for the upcoming quarter. 23 much more user friendly, it will be mobile device
24 So for the benefit of those on the phone and 24 friendly, it will have search features, which we
25 those here present who don't have a copy of this sheet, 25 currently don't have on our website, and it will provide

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC
206.287.9066 | 800.846.6989

Page: 5 (17 - 20)



DRAFT - UNAPPROVED MEETING MINUTES

Verbatim Transcript of Monthly Council Meeting 10/16/2018
Page 21 Page 23
1 direct links to project documents, which are currently 1 CERTIFICATE
2 stored in the cases system, which is a records 2
3 management system, which we have implemented over the 3 STATE OF WASHINGTON
4 last year or two. So it's essentially going to offer - 4 COUNTY OF THURSTON
5 it's going to be a much more user friendly platform for 5
& the public to access information. So we hope to have 6 I, Tayler Garlinghouse, a Certified Shorthand
7 that up and running by the end of the year. So we've 7 Reporter in and for the State of Washington, do hereby
8 had some meetings, and they've gone well so far. g certify that the foregoing transcript is true and
9 So that's all | have. I'd be happy to g accurate to the best of my knowledge, skill and ability.
10 answer any questions the Councilmembers may have. 10
i CHAIR DREW: Mr. Stephenson? 11
12 MR. STEPHENSON: Thank you, Chair Drew. 12
13 Just a note of appreciation to EFSEC Staff. 13 Tayler Garlinghouse, CCR 3358
14 These are the little things and | appreciate that we are 14
15 looking at some of the extra things they do instead of 15
16 the normal stuff that we see in front of us on a monthly 16
17 basis. Butthank you. It's a good Staff. | have dealt 17
18 with you all in a bunch of ways, and you do good work, 18
19 so thank you. 19
20 MR. POSNER: Thank you very much. 20
21 CHAIR DREW: Thank you. And | - before we 21
22 adjourn, I'd like to — actually, since | didn't do this 59
213 at the beginning of the meeting -- invite Liz 23
24 Green-Taylor, who has been recently named our 24
25 representative from the Department of Commerce, to tell 25
Page 22
1 us a little bit about herself and her background.
2 Welcome.
3 MS. GREEN-TAYLOR: Thank you, Chair.
4 | know most of the Staff, although there's
5 been some changes. | sat on the Council for | think
& almost three years, through — about halfway through a
7 really large application and then | retired, but now I'm
8 not retired anymore. So I'm here, I've been with the
9 Department of Commerce in a variety of positions for
10 about 13 —the last 13 years or so of my career, |
11 managed several programs, research projects, and local
12 government fiscal notes, worked in tourism, business
13 development. So I'm a little bit of a Jill of all
14 trades, and my specialty is cat wrangling on committee
15 writing projects. So if we have thase, you can count on
16 me.
o7 CHAIR DREW: Thank you, and welcome back.
18 We appreciate your service.
19 So with nothing else to come before us
20 today, this meeting is adjourned.
21 (Adjourned at 1:59 p.m.)
22
23
24
25

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC
206.287.9066 | 800.846.6989

Page: 6 (21 - 23)



Kittitas Valley Wind Power Project
Monthly Operations Report

October 2018

Project Status Update

Production Summary:

Power generated: 9,086 MWh
Wind speed: 4.2 mls
Capacity Factor: 12.1%
Safety:

No incidents

Compliance:

Project is in compliance

Sound:
No complaints

Shadow Flicker:
No complaints

Environmental:
No incidents



Wild Horse Wind Facility
October 2018

Safety
No lost-time accidents or safety injuries/illnesses.

Compliance/Environmental

The general modern firearm elk season began on October 27™. In accordance with the
Hunting Plan, permits for hunting on wind farm property we're issued through WDFW's
Hunt by Reservation System. PSE contracted with WDFW enforcement for increased
security during this busy season.

In accordance with the Operations Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), a
semi-annual stormwater inspection was completed on 10/9. The site is in excellent
condition and installed BMPs are functioning properly.

Operations/Maintenance
Nothing to report.

Wind Production
October generation totaled 38,029 MWh for an average capacity factor of 18.75%.

Eagle Update
Nothing to report.




Invenergy GRAYS HARBOR ENERGY LLC

EFSEC Monthly Operational Report
Grays Harbor Energy Center

October 2018

1. Safety and Training

1.1. There were no accidents or injuries during the month and the plant staff has achieved
3590 days without a lost time incident.

2. Environmental & Compliance

2.1.There were no air emissions, outfall or storm water deviations, or spills during the month.
2.2.All routine reporting was completed.

3. Operations & Maintenance

3.1. Grays Harbor Energy Center (GHEC) operated 11days during the month, with 3 starts
on Ul, and 3 starts on U2.

3.2. GHEC generated 131,492MWh during the month and 2,357,728MWh YTD.

3.3. The plant capacity factor was 28% for the month and 52% YTD.
On October 9,2018 20:22 the plant was notified by Williams Northwest Pipeline that a
pipeline explosion has occurred in British Columbia. At 20:59, the plants third party
power marketer notified plant staff that the plant was to shut down hour ending
22:00(10p.m.). There was a large pipeline explosion near Shelley, BC about 15miles NE
of Prince George on an Enbridge Pipeline. Commercial users were removed from the
pipeline per contingency plans. Approximately 1/3 of the normal gas was available
following the pipeline failure. By October 15th, the smaller 30" Pipeline was returned to
service, initially at a reduced capacity. The larger 36" pipeline is still out of service with
an estimate return to service sometime in November. It is speculated when the pipeline is
returned to service, it will be at a reduced capacity. A road was built to the pipeline failure
site and repairs have started. GHEC has only operated 1x1 three days (16,17 & 18™) since
the pipeline failure. Our third-party marketer, dispatched the plant after finding reasonably
priced gas through intraday gas trading, instead of the normal day ahead trading. Gas
prices have increased since, and the gas unit price to MW ratio has shrunk to an
unprofitable level to warrant dispatching the plant to run.

4. Noise and/or Odor
4.1. None.
5. Site Visits

5.1. October 23th, GHEC conducted a tour of our facility for the Governor’s Senior Energy
Policy Advisor, Lauren McCoy, Senator Dean Takko, Senator Guy Palumbo, UTC
Legislative Director, energy, Jon Noski, UTC Staffers Jason Ball and Kyle Murphy.

5.2. October 24", Aberdeen High School 9" graders visited the plant for a tour and
presentation for their annual Career Day.

6. Other

GHEC - 401 Keys Road, EIma, WA 98541 « 360.482.4353 « Fax 360.482.4376



Invenergy GRAYS HARBOR ENERGY LLC

6.1. Grays Harbor Energy Center is staffed with 19 personnel.

GHEC * 401 Keys Road, Elma, WA 98541 » 360.482.4353 + Fax 360.482.4376




Energy Northwest
November 13, 2018 EFSEC Council Meeting
Operations Reporting Period for October 1-31, 2018
Site Contact: Mary Ramos
Columbia Generating Station Operational Status
Columbia Generating Station is online at 100 percent power.
There are no events, safety incidents, or regulatory issues to report.

WNP 1/4 Building Transfer/Water

There are no events, safety incidents, or regulatory issues to report.

Page 1 of 1



' PAC I F I co R P Chehalis Generation Facility
1813 Bishop Road

A BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY ENERGY COMPANY Chehalis, Washington 98532
Phone: 360-748-1300

Chehalis Generation Facility----Monthly Plant Report — October 2018
Washington Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council

11.02.2018

Safety:

There were no recordable incidents this reporting period and the plant staff has achieved 1181 days
without a Lost Time Accident.

Environment:

There were no air emissions or stormwater deviations or spills during the month.
Wastewater and Storm-water monitoring results were in compliance with the permit limits.

Operations and Maintenance Activities:

The Plant generated 106,471 MW-hours in October for a 2018 YTD generation total of 1,679,454
MW-hours and a capacity factor of 46.53% for 2018.

On October 9™ the Chehalis plant experienced a curtailment of gas supply due to a failure in the
Enbridge pipeline in northern British Columbia. PacifiCorp was notified by Williams-Northwest
pipeline of the event and asked for assistance in maintaining gas system reliability by requesting
curtailment of all natural gas fired generation. Williams-Northwest pipeline is the single pipeline
provider from the Sumas hub to gas markets in the I-5 area of the Northwest. At approximately
2:00 a.m., October 10, 2018, Williams issued a formal force majeure notice limiting supplies from
US-BC border at Sumas.

On October 31*, Enbridge announced that it had successfully completed repairs on the section of
its 36” natural gas pipeline that ruptured near Prince George, British Columbia, on October 9,
2018, and had begun the multi-hour process to return it to service.

o Following the repairs, and a comprehensive integrity assessment, Enbridge expects to begin
safely returning the repaired segment to service. As part of this process, Enbridge gradually
increased flows of natural gas through the repaired segment until it reached 80 percent of
its normal operating pressure. The 30™ pipeline returned to service on October 11, 2018,
also at 80 percent of its normal operating pressure — a measure to help ensure the ongoing
safety and integrity of the system.

o With the repaired segment of the 36 pipeline returning to service at a reduced pressure, the
T-South system is estimated to safely deliver between 820 and 900 million cubic feet per
day (MMcf/d) of much-needed natural gas to the lower mainland of British Columbia and
the U.S. Pacific Northwest.




véF’ACIFICORP

A BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY ENERGY COMPANY

o Per the NEB-reviewed return-to-service plan, the T-South system was deemed fit for
service at the reduced operating pressure. As part of our ongoing commitment to safety, we
are conducting a comprehensive dig program at select locations along the T-South system.
This work will help further validate the integrity of the entire system, prior to returning
both the 30” and 36” pipelines to full operating capacity. Until we are fully satisfied it is
safe to operate the lines at full capacity, and subject to regulatory review, both pipelines
will continue to safely operate at reduced pressures.

Regulatory/Compliance:

+  On October 9", Ami Kidder EFSEC Siting Specialist visited the Chehalis plant for a site
orientation and discussion of current compliance status.

Sound monitoring:
e Nothing to report this period.

Carbon Offset Mitigation:

¢ Nothing to report this period.

Respectfully,

L Qull.

Mark A. Miller
Manager, Gas Plant
Chehalis Generation Facility

Chehalis Generation Facility Page 2



SDS Lumber Company

P.O. Box 266
Bingen, WA 98605

Office: 509-493-2155
Fax: 509-493-2535

October 25, 2018

Kathleen Drew, Chair

Washington Energy Facility Siting Council
1300 S. Evergreen Park Dr. S.W.

PO box 47250

Olympia, WA 98504-7250

Dear Chair Drew and Councilmembers:

[ am the President of SDS Lumber Company and Whistling Ridge Energy LLC, the owner of
the Whistling Ridge Energy Project (“Whistling Ridge™ or “Project”). 1 am submitting a
status report for the Whistling Ridge project, in accordance with RCW 463-68-060. Attached
to this report is a “Project History” timeline that helps in understanding the status of this
Project.

The “Effective Date” of the Site Certificate Agreement (“SCA™) is November 18, 2013 -- the
date when I executed the SCA (after conclusion of the Supreme Court appeal). Further
opposition litigation followed the execution of the SCA, with 9th Circuit Court of Appeals
challenges fully exhausted in July of this year. Due to the uncertainties associated with these
appeals, thus far it has not been possible to move the Project forward.

We provide the following information, pursuant to RCW 463-68-060.
WAC 463-68-060

Review and reporting changes in the project status or site conditions.

(1) The nature and degree of any changes to the following since the effective
date of the site certification agreement:

(a) Project design;

(b) Statements and information in the application;

(c) Statements and information in project-related environmental documents;
and

(d) Project-related environmental conditions.

(2) Whether any new information or changed conditions indicate the existence
of probable significant adverse environmental impacts that were not covered in any
project-related environmental documents, including, but not limited to, those prepared
under chapter 43.21C RCW.



® Page 2 October 25, 2018

(3) Suggested changes, modification, or amendments to the site certification
agreement and/or any regulatory permits.

RESPONSE:

Section 1: At this time, the Project is not proposing any changes as described in Section 1 of
the statute.

Section 2: There is no new information or changed conditions known at this time that might
indicate the existence of any probable significant adverse environmental impacts not
previously addressed in the EFSEC FEIS.

Section 3: Finally, at this time, Whistling Ridge is not proposing any changes, modifications
or amendments to the Site Certificate Agreement of any regulatory permits. It is possible that
such changes will be proposed in the future.

Thank you for the opportunity to make this presentation. We will appreciate the opportunity
to address any questions.

Jason S. Spadaro
President
SDS Lumber Company



® Page 3

3/10/09

1/5/12

3/5/12

8/20/13

11/18/13

2013-15

9/9/15

3/27/18

7/11/18

October 25, 2018

Whistling Ridge Energy Project History

Application for Site Certification filed; history of adjudication
can be found on EFSEC'’s Project web page.

EFSEC’s Site Certificate Agreement and Recommendation
submitted to Governor Gregoire.

Governor Gregoire approves the Final Order and signs the
Site Certificate Agreement.

After appeal by project opponents, the Washington
Supreme Court issues a unanimous decision denying
appeal.

Jason Spadaro, Whistling Ridge Energy, signs the Site
Certificate Agreement (“Effective Date” of Site Certificate
Agreement)

During this period, BPA worked on the FEIS and its
Supplement to the FEIS, addressing further comments
submitted post-FEIS by project opponents.

Project opponents file an appeal with the US 9th Circuit
Court of Appeals, challenging BPA's NEPA FEIS,
supporting BPA’s decision to grant the Whistling Ridge
Energy Project an interconnection to the Federal Columbia
River Transmission System.

The 9th Circuit Court of Appeals issues a Memorandum
Decision denying the appeal.

Following a petition by project opponents for a rehearing (en
banc), the full US 9th Circuit Court of Appeals denied
rehearing. This denial concluded all opposition litigation.



Memorandum

STATE OF WASHINGTON

ENERGY FACILITY SITE EVALUATION COUNCIL

PO Box 47250 e Olympia, Washington 98504-7250

To: Stephen Posner, EFSEC Manager, (360) 664-1903
From: Sonia E. Bumpus, EFSEC Siting and Compliance Manager, (360) 664-1363
Date: November 7, 2018

RE: Revised Environmental Review and Staff Recommendation for State
Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) Review for Desert Claim Wind Power
Project Request for Amendment to the Site Certification Agreement

PROPOSAL:

On February 26, 2018, the Certificate Holder, Desert Claim Wind Power
LLC, requested an amendment to their Site Certification Agreement
(SCA) that was issued on February 1, 2010. The approved SCA is for
constructing a wind power facility consisting of a maximum of 95 wind
turbines on tubular steel towers with 190 total megawatts (MW) and a
tower height not to exceed a maximum height of 410 feet within an
approximately 5,200 acre project site. The project is located north and
west of Ellensburg near the intersection of U.S. Route 97 and Smithson
Road. Site access during construction was primarily from Reecer Creek
Road. Seven non-participating residences are located between 1,687
and 2,241 feet of one or more turbines. No temporary or permanent
stream or wetland impacts were identified during the environmental
analysis initially conducted by EFSEC. As a result, measures to address
these types of impacts were not included in the original SCA.

The revised proposal is for constructing and operating a smaller facility
consisting of 25-31 turbines not to exceed 492 feet in height and 100 MW.
The project remains at the same site with acreage reduced to 4,400 acres
in which approximately 370 acres have been added to the west and south
and 1,271 acres have been removed east of Reecer Creek. Primary site
access during construction and operation has been changed to Smithson
Road (accessed from Hwy 97). All turbines are located at least 2,500 feet
from all residences in the revised proposal. A total of 0.347 acres of
permanent wetland impacts and 0.026 acres of permanent stream
impacts are proposed. An additional 1.949 acres (0.126 acres stream
and 1.823 acres wetland) temporary impacts are proposed to streams
and wetlands. There is an expected 66% decrease in turbine delivery
trips and 10% increase in concrete trucks per hour during construction.

Page 1 of 19



CASE NUMBER: EFSEC SCA No. 2006-02
Docket No. 180105

CERTIFICATE
HOLDER: Desert Claim Wind Power LLC
LOCATION: Kittitas County, Washington.

OTHER PERMITS: Implementation of this revised proposal would require the following
permits or approvals (*included in Proposed SCA Amendment):

Permit or Requirement

Agency Code, Ordinance, Statute, Rule, Regulation, or Permit

Threatened or Endangered
Species

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

Endangered Species Act of 1973 (16 USC, Section 1531, et seq.) and implementing
regulations. Designates and provides for protection of threatened and endangered
plants and animals and their critical habitat.

Migratory Birds

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

Migratory Bird Treaty Act (16 USC 703-711)

Bald Eagles

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act (16 CFR 668-668c)

Eagle permit regulations (50 CFR 22)

Waters of the United States*

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Seattle District

Clean Water Act of 1972 (Waters of the U.S. 1986/1988 regulatory definition in 40
CFR 230.3)

Joint Aquatic Resource Permit Application (JARPA) for Section 404 fill in Waters of
the U.S.

Electrical Construction Permit

Washington Department of Labor and Industries

WAC 296-746A, Washington Department of Labor and Industries Safety Standards
— Installing Electrical Wires and Equipment — Administration Rules.

Noise Control

Washington Department of Ecology
RCW 70.107, Noise Control; WAC 173-58, Sound Level Measurement Procedures

WAC 173-60, Maximum Environmental Noise Levels; WAC 463-62-030, Noise
Standards*

Page 2 0f 19



Permit or Requirement

Agency Code, Ordinance, Statute, Rule, Regulation, or Permit

Water Quality Storm Water
Discharge: Construction
Activities

Washington Department of Ecology

RCW 90.48, Water Pollution Control Act, establishes general stormwater permits for
the Washington Department of Ecology National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System Permit Program

WAC 173-201A, Washington Department of Ecology Water Quality Standards for
Surface Waters of the State of Washington, which regulates water quality of surface
waters

WAC 173-220, National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit Program.
Construction Stormwater General Permit

Federal statute(s) and regulations implemented by the above state statute(s) and
regulations include: Federal Clean Water Act, 42 USC 1251; 15 CFR 923-930

Kittitas County Code (KCC) 12.06 — Roads and Bridges — Storm Water Management
Standards

KCC 12.07 — Roads and Bridges - Bridges and Major Drainage Structures

Fish and Wildlife

Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife

WAC 220-610, defines State species status and protections

WAC 232-12, Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife Permanent Regulations,
provides information on classification of wildlife species, including “Priority Habitats

and Species™

RCW 77, Hydraulic Code for in-water work

State Environmental Policy Act
(SEPA)

RCW 43.21C, Washington Environmental Policy Act

WAC 197-11, Washington Department of Ecology SEPA Rules, which establishes
uniform requirements for compliance with SEPA

Archaeology and Historic
Preservation

National Historic Preservation Act (Public Law 89-665)

Washington State Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation*
RCW 27.53, Archaeological Sites and Resources

RCW 27.53, Indian Sites and Resources Act

RCW 27 .44, Indian Graves and Records Act

Comprehensive Plan

Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan, 2000-2020

Zoning Ordinance, including
Critical Areas Ordinance

KCC 17 - Zoning

KCC 17A — Critical Areas

Access Permit

KCC 12.05, Roads and Bridges — Driveways and Accesses

Grading Permit (if necessary)

KCC 14.05, Buildings and Construction - Grading

Aviation & Lighting

Federal Aviation Administration — Federal Aviation Regulations
49 USC 44718, Structures interfering with air commerce or national security

14 CFR 77, Safe, Efficient Use, and Preservation of the Navigable Airspace

Notes: CFR = Code of Federal Regulations; KCC = Kittitas County Code; RCW = Revised Code of Washington; USC
= United States Code; WAC = Washington Administrative Code

Page 3 of 19



REQUIRED

SUBMITTALS:

e o ° o @

A.

Temporary Erosion and Sediment
Control (TESC) Plan

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP)

Construction Spill Prevention, Control
and Countermeasure Plan (Construction
SPCCP)

Initial Site Restoration Plan (Initial SRP)
Final Site Restoration Plan (Final SRP)
Wetland Compensatory Mitigation Plan
Wetlands Restoration Plan
Construction Soil Management and
Vegetation Plan

Habitat Restoration Plan
Pre-Construction Raptor Nest Survey
Pre-Construction Townsends Ground
Squirrel Survey

Habitat Mitigation Plan

Noxious Weed Control Plan

Establish a Technical Advisory
Committee (TAC)

Site Management Plan (to identify
environmental features and wildlife
areas)

Cultural Resources Monitoring and
Mitigation Plan

Fire Control Plan — Construction Phase

ENVIRONMENTAL RECORD and EXHIBITS

e o & @

The following documents are required as noted in the original SCA and
the proposed SCA Amendment:

Fire Control Plan — Operations Phase
Construction Traffic Management Plan
Construction Emergency Plan
Construction Phase Health and Safety
Plan

Construction Phase Site Security Plan
Construction Management Plan

FAA Determination of Non-Hazard
Certificates

Final Construction Plans (plans,
specifications, drawings, and design
documents)

Final Project Layout Plan
Environmental Compliance Program
Operations SWPPP

Operations SPCCP

Operations Emergency Plan
Post-Construction Avian Monitoring Plan
Post-Construction Bald Eagle Study
Plan

Pre-Operational Bat Survey and Bat
Monitoring Plan

Operations Phase Health and Safety
Plan

Operations Phase Site Security Plan

The environmental review conducted by EFSEC consisted of analysis based on the following
documents included in the environmental record. The documents listed are available for review
on EFSEC's website at: http://www.efsec.wa.gov/Desert Claim/SCA.html

e« Environmental Checklist received February 26, 2018

¢ Desert Claim Wind Power Project Request for an Amendment to the Site Certification
Agreement (SCA) received February 26, 2018, EFSEC Original Application No. 2006-02

¢ Desert Claim Wind Power Project May 30, 2018 Staff Site Visit Report

¢ Desert Claim Wind Power Project EFSEC Site Certification Agreement Amendment
Wetlands Report, Grette Associates, January 31, 2018.

¢ Desert Claim Wind Power Project Wetland Delineation and Analysis Report, Grette

Associates, May 2018

¢ Desert Claim Wind Power Project Compensatory Mitigation Plan, Grette Associates, July

2018

Page 4 of 19



e Desert Claim Wind Project Environmental Noise Assessment Technical Report, Ramboll

US Corporation, February 2018

s Environmental Noise Assessment Technical Report for the revised Desert Claim Wind
Project, Ramboll US Corporation, May 25, 2018
o Shadow Flicker Study Desert Claim Wind Project, EDF Renewable Energy, January 30,

2018

¢ Kittitas County 2016 Comprehensive Plan
« Visual Effects Assessment, Desert Claim Wind Power Project, Golder Associates Inc.,

September 7, 2018

e Certificate Holder Responses to Data Request 1, April 16, 2018

e Certificate Holder Responses to Data Request 2, May 25, 2018

s Certificate Holder Responses to Data Request 3, August 1, 2018 and August 21, 2018

e Cultural Resource Assessment of Updated Project Design for the Desert Claim Wind
Power Project, Archaeological Investigations Northwest, Inc., February 9, 2018

The environmental review also consisted of input or recommendations from State and Federal
agencies, tribes, and EFSEC's consultant via several forms of communication, as listed below.

Yakama Nation (Yakama Nation)

Commenter and Acronym Date of Form of Comment Resource Subject
Comment
Woashington Department of Ecology (Ecclogy) | 08/30/2018 Letter from Lori White | Wetlands
Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife 05/02/2018 Phone - with Scott Animals (birds and
(WDFW) Downes bats)
Washington State Department of Archaeology | 07/31/2018 Historic Property Historic
and Historic Preservation (DAHP) Report for N. Branch
Canal Farm Bridge
Station No 346
Washington State Department of Archaeology | 04/19/2018 Letter from Cultural Resource
and Historic Preservation (DAHP) Gretchen Kaehler Assessment
Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife 04/20/2018 Email and attached Wildlife, habitat and
(WDFW) Letter from Scott wetland/ streams
Downes
Washington Department of Ecology (Ecology) | 09/07/2018 Letter from Lori White | Wetland Addendum
Washington Department of Natural Resources | 05/09/2018 Phone call with Wyatt | Environmental Health
(DNR) Leighton (Aerial firefighting)
EFSEC Consultant (Golder Associates) 09/07/2018 Email Comprehensive Plan
Correspondence Review (compare 2016
to 1996)
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 09/14/2018 Email FAA Non-Hazard
Correspondence Certification
Federal Aviation Administration 07/19/2018 Email Aircraft Detection
Correspondence Lighting System (ADLS)
Confederated Tribes and Bands of the 11/07/2018 Phone call and Email | Cultural Resource

from Jessica Lally

Assessment

B. STAFF REVIEW OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS

EFSEC and its consultant (Golder Associates), the Certificate Holder (Desert Claim Wind Power
LLC) and their consultant (Grette Associates), and Department of Ecology’s wetlands specialist

visited the site on May 30, 2018.

The following sections correspond with elements of the environment listed in WAC 197-11-444
and with the sections in the environmental checklist WAC 197-11-960, and were used to
organize and document EFSEC's environmental review of the revised proposal. Additional

Page 5 of 19



information provided by the Certificate Holder in their SCA amendment request, existing SEPA
documents, and EFSEC'’s consultants were used as part of the environmental review.

EFSEC published a draft SEPA Addendum, dated September 25, 2018. A public comment
period was held September 26, 2018 through October 10, 2018. Three public comments were
submitted and reviewed by EFSEC staff to identify substantive issues. Consequently, one of
the proposed mitigation measures related to cultural resources was revised in light of the public
comments received. Final mitigation measures have been updated and documented in the
Final SEPA Addendum, dated November 5, 2018. The following sections in this Revised SEPA
Staff Memo have been updated to include discreet comments relevant to SEPA environmental
review and EFSEC responses. Discreet issues are discussed in detail under their respective
resource area below. Concerns raised during the 15 day SEPA public comment period include
the following:

« Potential water quality impacts to Dry Creek, Green Canyon Creek, Reecer Creek,
and Jones Creek for stream heating and bacterial contamination.

« Potential impacts to wetlands and streams.
» Potential impacts from turbine noise- require highest noise standards and monitoring.

e Potential visual impacts from taller turbines, spacing between turbines- visual
confusion and disunity.

» Potential impacts from turbine lighting- encourage use of Aircraft Detection Lighting
System (ADLS).

e Cultural Resource- concern from the Certificate Holder on the proposed mitigation
measure and SCA requirement to adhere to their Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) with the Yakama Nation.
¢ Potential impacts to transportation during construction associated with concrete truck
delivery trips.
1. EARTH

No new or increased adverse environmental impacts are expected from the amended
proposal. No mitigation measures recommended.

2. AIR

No new or increased adverse environmental impacts are expected from the amended
proposal. No mitigation measures recommended.

3. WATER
a. A Construction Stormwater General Permit (CSWGP) would be required as part of
the Site Certification Agreement approval. The Certificate Holder would be required

to comply with the permit to protect water quality during construction activities.

b. Impacts to Wetlands, Streams, and Riparian Areas On-Site.

Page 6 of 19



Ecology and EFSEC reviewed the May 2018 Wetland Delineation and Analysis Report.
Permanent impacts to approximately 0.026 acres associated with 13 streams and 0.347
acres associated with 8 wetlands are anticipated. The Certificate Holder proposes to
conduct required mitigation by enhancing three onsite wetlands. Final mitigation would
be developed to fully mitigate for any permanent impacts identified, and for the size of
buffers based on Best Available Science (BAS).

Wetland enhancement may include removing existing cattle grazing uses, installing
exclusion fencing, and planting bare areas with plug sized herbaceous vegetation.
EFSEC and Ecology reviewed the credit/debit analysis proposed by the Certificate
Holder and concluded there would be “no net loss” of wetland function within the project
area with proposed mitigation (Ecology 09/07/2018).

The Certificate Holder proposed wetland mitigation monitoring for 5 years in the SCA
Amendment; however, Ecology recommended a monitoring period of 10 years for the
project (Ecology 09/07/2018). A compensatory mitigation plan will be submitted prior to
beginning site preparation, EFSEC will coordinate with Ecology and WDFW for approval
of the plans.

Temporary impacts to approximately 0.126 acres of streams and 1.823 acres of
wetlands are anticipated as a result of underground utility installation and crane access.
Temporary impacts would be minimized through sediment and erosion control Best
Management Practice (BMP) implementation and Spill Prevention, Control, and
Countermeasure Plan implementation.

10/5/18 Public Comment received from the Washington Department of Ecology
(Ecology) regarding the protection of impaired waterbodies. In summary, Ecology
commented that Dry Creek, Green Canyon Creek, Reecer Creek, and Jones Creek flow
through the project area and are included in the Upper Yakima River Tributaries
Temperature Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) water quality improvement project.
Therefore, these streams must be protected from additional stream heating. Ecology
requested that the project avoid removal of existing streamside vegetation during
construction, as well as during future operations. The TMDL also recommends that
supplementary shade, via installation of new riparian plants, should be added where
possible. In addition, the Reecer Creek reach located immediately upstream of the
Kittitas Reclamation District canal is included in Washington State’s list of 303(d)
impaired waterbodies due to high levels of fecal coliform bacteria. It is important that
project planning and construction, and all future use of the site, include water quality
protection to avoid further bacterial contamination in Reecer Creek. Ecology stated that
a CSWGP and the development of a SWPPP will be required for off-site construction
stormwater discharges.

Comment Response: The proposed mitigation in the SCA Amendment requires the
Certificate Holder to coordinate with WDFW and Ecology regarding finalizing
construction and operating plans to avoid or minimize temporary and permanent impacts
on streams and wetlands. Prior to construction a final set of wetland buffers, setbacks,
and mitigation standards for permanent and temporary impacts must be determined by
EFSEC in consultation with Ecology. The SCA Amendment includes the requirement to
develop a Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control (TESC), Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan, Wetland Compensatory Mitigation Plan (SWPPP), Habitat Mitigation
Plan, and Construction Soil Management and Vegetation Plan. These plans will address

Page 7 of 19



protection of impaired waterbodies as will the Construction Stormwater General Permit
that is required for discharging construction stormwater off-site.

No further mitigation measures are recommended.

Proposed mitigation: Wetlands, Streams and Riparian Areas.

While finalizing construction plans, the Certificate Holder will coordinate with WDFW and
Ecology regarding finalizing construction and operating plans, in relation to micro-siting
of project facilities and roads, in order to avoid or minimize the facility elements’
temporary and permanent impacts on streams and wetlands.

The Certificate Holder will be required to conduct wetland mitigation monitoring for a
period of 10 years.

Prior to construction of the site, a final set of wetland buffers, setbacks, and mitigation
standards for permanent and temporary impacts shall be determined by EFSEC in
consultation with Ecology. Wetland buffers shall be determined in accordance with
applicable provisions of the Kittitas County Code for Critical Areas in KCC 17A. Where
supported by the following Ecology guidance documents, EFSEC may require buffers of
greater width than would be required under KCC 17A: Wetland Mitigation in Washington
State — Part 1: Agency Policies and Guidance, Ecology Publication #06-06-011a (March
2006); Wetland Mitigation in Washington State — Part 2: Developing Mitigation Plans,
Ecology Publication #06-06-011b (March 2006); Update on Wetland Buffers: The State
of the Science, Final Report, Ecology Publication #13-06-011 (October 2013). Based on
the final wetlands requirements from EFSEC, the Certificate Holder shall submit a
Wetlands Mitigation Plan to EFSEC for approval at least sixty (60) days prior to the
beginning of Site Preparation, which shall summarize how the Site is in compliance with
those wetland buffers, setbacks, and mitigation standards.

This mitigation applies to SCA Amendment: ARTICLE IV.E and ARTICLE V.
PLANTS

No new or increased adverse environmental impacts to plants are expected from the
amended proposal. No mitigation measures recommended.

. ANIMALS

a. The Certificate Holder has agreed to establish a Technical Advisory Committee
(TAC). A Post-Construction Avian Monitoring Plan will be developed in coordination
with the TAC.

b. Possible impacts on birds and bats from turbines located in the amended project area,
from taller turbines and longer blades.

EFSEC in coordination with WDFW, reviewed the SCA Amendment materials and
determined the amended project location is not in an obvious migration route. An
excessive amount of birds around the rotor-swept area is not expected. WDFW's review
concluded that impacts and mortality are expected to be similar to those experienced by
EFSEC's Kittitas Valley Wind Farm facility (WDFW 5/2/2018). Although the turbine

Page 8 of 19



blades will be longer and create a larger wind swept area for each turbine, the decrease
from a maximum of 95 turbines to a maximum of 31 turbines for the amended project
would result in a 36-48% reduction in rotor swept area. This reduction would reduce
bird/bat interaction with turbine blades than was analyzed in the FSEIS for the original
project, (Desert Claim Wind Power Revised Project Description). WDFW requests that
the Certificate Holder work with them on several plant, animal, and wetland topics listed
in the amended SCA and finalize well before construction, including an opportunity to
participate in micro-siting of roads that might further reduce stream or wetland impacts
(WDFW 4/20/2018). Per the SCA Amendment, the Certificate Holder is required to
coordinate with WDFW to develop a Habitat Mitigation Plan, Habitat Restoration Plan,
Pre-Construction Raptor Nest Survey, and a Pre-Construction Townsends Ground
Squirrel Survey.

No new or increased adverse environmental impacts to animals and their habitats are
expected from the amended proposal. No other mitigation measures recommended.

6. ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES

a. The creation of congestion on existing lines would not be considered an adverse
environmental impact. It may limit the usability of the energy that is produced by the
project.

No new or increased adverse environmental impacts to energy are expected from the
amended proposal. No mitigation measures recommended.

7. ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

a. Possible impact to aerial firefighting abilities of planes to fly and drop water on fires in
areas with turbines.

Turbines can create an additional hazard and complication for aerial firefighting
which is a desirable method for protecting residences from fire. As long as there is
some buffer between the turbines and residences, aerial firefighting methods can be
used. EFSEC coordinated with DNR. Based on that coordination, EFSEC
determined the turbine distance of 2,500 feet from a residence is adequate. In
regards to fire fighting in general, wind farms can be advantageous because they
add roads to an otherwise rural area where roads may not exist (DNRAyatt
Leighton 05/09/2018).

b. Possible impacts from taller turbines to aeronautic approaches to Kittitas County
Airport (Bowers field) and Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) review of the
amended proposal for hazards to aeronautic approaches to Bowers field.

The SCA requires that the Certificate Holder provide copies of the determination of
non-hazard certificates issued by the FAA and other information to EFSEC, which
demonstrate that the Project will not impact approved flight approaches, flight
communications, or operations at the Kittitas County Airport (Bowers Field) prior to
the start of construction.

c. Potential for shadow flicker affecting residences.

Page 9 of 19



Turbines will be placed greater than 2,500 feet from residences. Residences may
experience brief periods of shadow flicker.

EFSEC reviewed a study on shadow flicker (EDF Renewable Energy 01/30/2018),
which indicates that up to 30 residences would experience a maximum of 22-50
minutes per day (2.4 hours to 40.5 hours per year) of shadow flicker from wind
turbines. The Certificate Holder proposed a revised mitigation measure for shadow
flicker in their SCA Amendment request. The original SCA condition required the
Certificate Holder to shut down a turbine for the duration of a shadow flicker impact
upon the written request of a nonparticipating landowner for residences within 2,500
feet. Based on EFSEC's environmental review of this issue, shut down of the turbine
by programming the control system of a wind turbine to stop the blades, when
operating conditions result in a perceptible shadow flicker, is the most effective
measure for mitigating shadow flicker impacts. Shadow flicker may also be
addressed by planting trees, shading windows, or implementing other mitigation
measures. Because the original SCA mitigation measure for shadow flicker included
only one mitigation option (avoidance) there was no need for EFSEC to provide any
oversight on mitigation options. However, the amended language allows for multiple

options.

The proposed mitigation in the September 25, 2018 SEPA Addendum has been
supplemented to include a clarification that EFSEC review and approval of the
mitigation and complaint monitoring plan includes review and approval of any denials
of any complaint requests as well as review and approval of the mitigation selected
to address individual complaints.

Proposed mitigation: Shadow Flicker Mitigation Measures

Develop a mitigation and complaint monitoring plan to respond to any residential
complaints. The mitigation plan will include avoidance, minimization, and mitigation of
shadow flicker through turbine shut down, planting trees, shading windows, or other
mitigation measures. The complaint monitoring plan will be reviewed and approved by
EFSEC prior to operation and, at a minimum, will include:

* Notification of EFSEC within five (5) business days of receipt of any request to
mitigate shadow flicker,

« Notification of EFSEC, within two (2) weeks of original receipt, of the actions
taken in response, and

s EFSEC shall retain authority to review and override the Certificate Holder's
denial(s) of any requests or choice of mitigation in this regard.

This mitigation applies to SCA Amendment: ARTICLE VII.H.
NOISE
a. Noise from operation of wind turbines.

EFSEC and its consultant reviewed the Environmental Noise Assessment Technical
Reports to assess the Project’'s compliance with Washington Administrative Code 173-

Page 10 of 19



60-040 for noise. Based on the noise inputs and baseline data detailed in the
assessment report and follow-up technical memo, the expected noise levels were below
the most limiting standard of 50 decibels (dBA) for the wind turbine generator and
electrical substation for all modeled scenarios. These levels comply with WAC 173-60-
040.

Review by EFSEC and its consultant determined that low frequency noise (or
aeroacoustic noise) generated by the turbine blade moving through the atmosphere was
not addressed in the technical information provided by the Certificate Holder. Although
noise from wind turbine generators are not anticipated to exceed noise standards, it is
possible that low frequency noise may be perceived as a nuisance. A complaint-based
noise monitoring plan/protocol could be developed prior to construction and
implemented during operation to respond to complaints related to operational noise.

Noise models conducted show no exceedances of noise standards and while low
frequency nuisance noise is not expected, a complaint-based monitoring plan and follow
up response procedure for any reported nuisance noise would ensure any unexpected
noise issues could be mitigated during operation.

10/10/18 Public Comment from a member of the public regarding the noise monitoring
plan. In summary, the comment requested that the applicant be held to the strictest
standards in their noise monitoring plan.

Comment Response: The proposed mitigation in the SCA Amendment includes
Complaint-Based Noise Monitoring and Response Plan submittal to EFSEC for review
and approval prior to operation to address low frequency noise and aeroacoustic noise.

No further mitigation measures are recommended.

Proposed mitigation: Noise Emissions.

The Certificate Holder shall submit a Complaint-Based Noise Monitoring and Response
Plan to EFSEC for review and approval prior to operation, to address low frequency
noise and aeroacoustic noise.

This mitigation applies to SCA Amendment: ARTICLE VII.B.
9. LAND AND SHORELINE USE

a. The Desert Claim project is not within the Wind Farm Resource overlay district as
defined in the Kittitas County 2016 Comprehensive Plan (KCCP).

However, the 2016 KCCP identifies siting criteria for areas outside the Wind Farm
Resource overlay district. The Wind Farm Overlay Zone is included in Kittitas
County Code (KCC) 17.61A. The Desert Claim project is not within this zone. The
Desert Claim project area is classified as rural working land, zoned as Ag 20 and
Forest and Range. This zoning is consistent with the zoning that was in place in
2010 when the Desert Claim SCA was issued by EFSEC.

Page 11 of 19



b. The Kittitas County 1996 Comprehensive Plan (KCCP) did not contain language
specific to energy facilities or wind energy when the original SCA for Desert Claim
was issued.

EFSEC and its consultant reviewed and compared the 1996 KCCP to the updated
2016 KCCP. The 2016 KCCP identifies goals, policies, and objectives (GPOs) to
protect, preserve, maintain, and enhance the County’s natural resource industry
base including energy resources. According to the 2016 KCCP, factors that should
be used as the basis for siting decisions for energy facilities are: 1) Minimal health
risk to residents of neighboring properties, whether from noise, fumes, radiation or
other hazards; 2) Minimal visual impact, achieved with buffering through distance
and/or landscaping; 3) For power lines and transmission/ reception towers, no
adverse impact on aviation traffic patterns; 4) Convenient access (may not be
needed if the facility is automated); 5) Encourage use of cold weather engineering
practices to cope with power outages; and 6) Ensure that new developments are
designed with facilities to withstand a minimum 48-hour power outage.

No new or increased adverse environmental impacts to land use, are expected from the
amended proposal. No mitigation measures recommended.

10. HOUSING
a. The turbines will be located greater than 2,500 feet from residences.

No new or increased adverse environmental impacts to housing are expected from the
amended proposal. No mitigation measures recommended.

11. VISUAL AND AESTHETICS
a. Possible impacts from increased turbine height.

EFSEC’s consultant conducted an independent Visual Effects Assessment which
concluded that the proposed turbine configuration in the amended SCA would reduce
visual impacts relative to the previously permitted project.

Taller turbines would not increase visual/aesthetic impacts to a significant level and in
areas where the number of turbines have been reduced as compared to the previously
approved proposal, the amended proposal would reduce impacts.

10/10/18 Public Comment from a member of the public regarding visual impacts of the
turbines during operation. In summary, the commenter expressed concern regarding the
tallest land turbines on earth being sited next to many homes without EFSEC finding any
significant impacts and more specifically concern regarding visual impacts to residences
on Smithson Road. Concern was also expressed regarding the variation in size of the
turbines and various distances apart from one another and differing turbine models
causing visual confusion and disunity.

Comment Response: EFSEC’s consultant determined that from this viewing location,

Project features would be distinct and would attract viewer attention; however, fewer
turbines will be visible than the previous configuration in the SCA.

Page 12 of 19



12.

The independent Visual Effects Assessment indicated that construction and
decommissioning activities and components would likely be visible to those viewers
adjacent to the work sites (e.g. viewers along Smithson Rd. and at nearby residences)
with a localized effect that would be experienced for a relatively short duration (weeks to
months). The previous visual assessment in the FEIS and FSEIS also indicated a
moderate level of visual impact related to this general location.

The technical approach used in the Visual Assessment (and previous visual
assessments in the FEIS and FSEIS) did consider dimensions of vividness, intactness,
and unity, as well as the degree of visual dominance of the Project to determine the
changes to visual quality. The established Federal Highway Administration (FHWA)
definition of ‘unity’ refers to the visual coherence and compositional harmony of the
viewshed where effects are evaluated based on the degree to which they disrupt the
harmony of the landscape setting. The visual assessment (Visual Effects Assessment
Section 4.1.1) as well as the photos and simulation provided by Truescape (Visual
Effects Assessment Appendix A — Sheet 8 and Sheet 9) illustrate that the views of the
valley from this area are dominated by agricultural development and currently include
evident wind projects in the northwest portion of the study area. Based on the existing
visual quality and character visible from this area, while distinct, the Project features
would not substantially affect the visual unity of the views or be incoherent within the
context of the surrounding landscape.

No new or increased adverse environmental impacts to visual and aesthetics are
expected from the amended proposal. No mitigation measures recommended.

LIGHT AND GLARE
a. Possible impacts from turbine lighting.

The FSEIS identifies flashing lights at night as an impact to viewing the night sky. New
mitigation in the form of radar based aircraft detection lighting has become available that
could offset some of this impact. While no new or increased impacts are expected for
the amended SCA, the application of an Aircraft Detection Lighting System (ADLS)
would be beneficial at reducing the nonsignificant impacts of the amended proposal.

10/10/18 Public Comment from a member of the public regarding turbine lighting. In
summary, the commenter encouraged the use of ADLS.

Comment Response: The proposed mitigation in the SCA Amendment requires the
Certificate Holder to investigate the application of ADLS prior to construction and report
its finding to EFSEC. The report will include the benefits and feasibility of ADLS for the
project.

No further mitigation measures are recommended.

Proposed mitigation: Light, Glare and Aesthetics.

The Certificate Holder shall investigate the application of an Aircraft Detection Lighting
System (ADLS) prior to construction and report its findings to EFSEC. The report should
include the benefits and feasibility of ADLS for the Desert Claim project.

Page 13 of 19



13.

14.

This mitigation applies to SCA Amendment: ARTICLE V.J.

RECREATION

Hunting will not be allowed in the Project Area during construction. No mitigation
measures recommended.

No new or increased impacts to recreation are expected from the amended proposal.
No mitigation measures recommended.

HISTORIC AND CULTURAL PRESERVATION

a. Possible impacts to historic and cultural resources included review of the Desert
Claim amended project proposal's compliance with RCW 27.53.

In conducting its environmental review, EFSEC coordinated with the Department of
Archaeology and Historic Preservation (DAHP) and reviewed the FSEIS prepared by
EFSEC, which identified a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Desert
Claim and the Yakama Nation.

EFSEC staff also reviewed information submitted related to the historic status of the
Kittitas Division North Branch Canal Farm Bridge Station No 346.

DAHP recommended a pre-construction archaeological survey and the development of
an archaeological monitoring schedule for any archaeological sites that can't be avoided
during construction (4/19/2018 and 9/2/2018). DAHP also recommend the development
of an Inadvertent Discovery Plan (IDP). DAHP determined the Kittitas Division North
Branch Canal Farm Bridge Station No 346 is not eligible for the historic register.

The Certificate Holder consulted with the Yakama Nation and entered into a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) concerning surveys that will be performed prior
to construction to identify traditionally important plants and root gathering grounds,
Traditional Cultural Properties (TCPs), and archaeological sites of interest to the
Yakama Nation.

No new or increased impacts are expected from the amended proposal after DAHP final
review and recommendations are implemented. Prior to construction, the Certificate
Holder shall obtain all necessary DAHP permits and perform all necessary
archaeological work in order to comply with RCW 27.53. The Certificate Holder will
comply with their MOU with the Yakama Nation.

10/10/18 Public Comment from the Certificate Holder regarding the requirement to
adhere to their MOU with the Yakama Nation. The comment explained that the MOU
document is a “Scope of Work” between the Certificate Holder and the Yakama Nation,
the contents of which EFSEC does not know; and this it is not a binding agreement
between the two parties. The Certificate Holder's comment further explained that some
activities identified in the “Scope of Work” document have already been completed. The
Certificate Holder also expressed concerns about the appropriateness of EFSEC
including a requirement that relates to a private document between the Certificate Holder
and the Yakama Nation.

Page 14 of 19



Comment Response: Proposed mitigation in the draft SEPA Addendum, dated
September 25, 2018, requiring the Certificate Holder to adhere to the MOU was
developed based on EFSEC's initial SEPA environmental review of the FSEIS and the
SCA Amendment request materials submitted by the Certificate Holder (Desert Claim).
Input to EFSEC from DAHP was also considered to develop the proposed mitigation
measure in the draft SEPA Addendum.

For example, the FSEIS discussed additional cultural resource surveys to be conducted
by the Certificate Holder; it states, “the Applicant has also agreed to conduct additional
surveys of Traditional Cultural Properties (TCPs) of importance to the Yakama Nation
and to work with the Yakama Nation to prepare a Traditional Cultural Resources
Mitigation Plan.” The mitigation measure included that the cultural resource mitigation
plan be developed in consultation with the Yakama Nation and DAHP. According to the
FSEIS, the plan “would include mitigation measures tailored to the specific
circumstances of each resource and would be consistent with applicable federal, state,
and local regulations”, (FSEIS, Section 3.3.5, Mitigation Measures).

The FSEIS also acknowledged the MOU and characterized its intended purpose, that
the “MOU addresses concerns expressed by the Yakama Nation’s comments on the
Draft SEIS, and provides a framework for developing a Traditional Cultural Resources
Mitigation Plan with the Yakama Nation”, (FEIS,Section,3.3.5, Mitigation Measures).

In DAHP’s comments to EFSEC, they concurred with the condition regarding Tribal
involvement in developing mitigation, stating, “We agree with the recommendation for
Tribal consultation regarding mitigation for impacts to traditional subsistence and
medicinal plant resource areas”, (FSEIS, Section 3.3.2.4, Site Significance Evaluations).

In addition, DAHP provided the following recommendations to EFSEC:

¢ Requested additional photos of historic-period field clearing pile archaeological
sites and evidence of tribal consultation, otherwise these resources must be
avoided or obtain a DAHP permit prior to any impacts.

» Stated all Revised Project impacts should be avoided to all pre-contact
archaeological sites and one historic-period archaeological site and if they can’t
be avoided, a permit from DAHP is required for formal archaeological testing with
recommendations for further mitigation.

» Requested a robust Inadvertent Discovery Plan be developed for the Revised
Project and training of construction and operations crews.

* Requested additional archaeological survey for micrositing of turbines and for
alterations in roadway plans.

In light of the references to the MOU in the FSEIS, and its apparent importance for
addressing potential adverse impacts to tribal resources of concern to the Yakama
Nation, on September 20, 2018, EFSEC requested a copy of the MOU from Desert
Claim. Desert Claim did not provide a copy to EFSEC.

Because the Yakama Nation did not provide comments relative to EFSEC’s draft SEPA
Addendum, in a letter dated October 17, 2018, EFSEC Siting and Compliance Manager,
Sonia E. Bumpus, contacted the Yakama Nation to request that it notify EFSEC of any
concerns related to the MOU and/or Desert Claim's SCA amendment request. The
Yakama Nation responded to EFSEC and on November 7, 2018 EFSEC staff and the

Page 16 of 19




Yakama Nation held a call to discuss four aspects of their previous agreements with the
Certificate Holder and any other concerns related to the amended proposal.

The four areas of agreement entail: 1.) Development of a traditional cultural resources
mitigation plan prior to construction; 2.) Access for Yakama Tribal members to the root
grounds within the Project area; 3.) Yakama Nation participation on the Technical
Advisory Committee (TAC); and 4.) Restoration of lands to pre-Project conditions
following decommissioning. This conversation helped to improve EFSEC's
understanding of the agreement between Desert Claim and the Yakama Nation and it is
expected that Desert Claim's commitments in the FSEIS in conjunction with the new and
supplemented mitigation measures in the SCA Amendment, are sufficiently expansive to
address the four considerations outlined above.

Recommendations from the Yakama Nation from a 2010 survey of the project area were
also discussed during the call. EFSEC staff had previously identified the
recommendations during its review of the updated cultural resource assessment
prepared by the Certificate Holder’s consultant, Archaeological Investigations Northwest,
Inc. (AINW), titled, “Cultural Resource Assessment of Updated Project Design for the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project”. Based on input related to EFSEC during the call, it
is EFSEC's understanding that the Yakama Nation’s recommendations in the AINW
report continue to be topics of concern related to the Revised Project. In consideration
of the amended proposal, the input from DAHP and the Certificate Holder, and more
recently, the input from the Yakama Nation (11/07/2018), EFSEC staff proposes further
revision and clarification to the mitigation to improve the mitigation measure to address
cultural resource impacts:

Revised mitigation in the SCA Amendment is recommended:

The development of the Cultural Resources Monitoring and Mitigation Plan must be
done in coordination with DAHP and the Yakama Nation and approved by EFSEC. The
following must be considered during the plan development:

¢ Avoidance of the concentrated-resource areas.

o Habitat rehabilitation of impacted-resource area as a means of mitigation for impacts
to the diffuse-resource areas.

» Archaeological sites be provided a minimum 30 meter/100 foot buffer.

¢ Archaeological isolates should be further studied and be provided a minimum 15
meter/50 foot buffer.

¢ 51 rock features should be re-evaluated and recorded as archaeological sites.

« Archaeological monitoring during construction when ground-disturbing activity is
involved.

This mitigation applies to SCA Amendment: ARTICLE IV.H.
15. TRANSPORTATION
a. Possible impacts to traffic on Smithson Road during construction.
Smithson Road is a new access road, and is the only access road to the Desert Claim
project site in the amended SCA. EFSEC reviewed traffic information provided by the

Certificate Holder regarding road improvements and traffic on Smithson Road. Based
on updated transportation numbers provided by the Certificate Holder, there will be

Page 16 of 19




approximately 558 total turbine delivery trips which represents a 66% decrease in
turbine delivery trips over the life of the project. In contrast to the FEIS construction
traffic analysis which assumed 7 truck trips for each of the 120 turbines to be delivered
to the site, the amended SCA proposal expects that 9 truck trips will be necessary to
carry each of the 31 turbines to the amended project site. The Certificate Holder
indicated that approximately 22 concrete delivery trips will be made each hour during a
daily 12-hour delivery period which represents a 10% increase in concrete trucks per
hour during construction from the transportation numbers presented in the FEIS. The
estimated increase in concrete trucks per hour during construction is dependent on the
concrete production vendor and is not considered a substantial increase.

Access roads will be 1-foot wider on the straight sections than presented in the FEIS
from 15 feet to 16 feet wide.

10/10/18 Public Comment _from a member of the public regarding concrete truck
delivery traffic. The commenter is concerned that “approximately 22 concrete delivery
trips will be made each hour during a daily 12-hour delivery period which represents a
10% increase in concrete trucks per hour during construction from the transportation
numbers presented in the FEIS. Of course the 10% increase is not considered
substantial”. The commenter asked “how long is this daily 12-hour period going to last”
and “why is the applicant not making its concrete onsite like most other wind farms?”

Comment Response: Based on the project description provided by the Certificate
Holder, project construction would last approximately 9 months. Concrete trucks would
travel to the site during a small portion of the construction period. The Certificate Holder
estimates an average of 22 concrete truck deliveries per hour (see 09/18/2018 email
from Karen McGaffey in the Certificate Holder Responses to Data Request 3). This is
based on:

¢« 2 067 one-way concrete truck trips for all concrete deliveries;
e Approximately two foundations could be poured in one day; and
¢ Two foundations would require 134 truck trips.

At the rate of 134 delivery truck trips in a day, there would be approximately 15 days of
concrete delivery trips.

The proposed SCA Amendment required the submittal of a Construction Traffic
Management Plan that addresses increased construction traffic on Smithson Road to
limit construction delivery vehicles during peak travel times and to accommodate
agricultural road use on Smithson Road. The Construction Traffic Management Plan
includes delivery trips, timeframe, duration, and concrete source (including an option for
on-site concrete batch plants).

No further mitigation measures are recommended.

Proposed mitigation: Construction Traffic Development Standards.

The Certificate Holder's Construction Traffic Management Plan should address increased
construction traffic on Smithson Road to limit construction delivery vehicles during peak
travel times and to accommodate agricultural road use on Smithson Road.

Page 17 of 19



This mitigation applies to SCA Amendment: ARTICLE IV.F.
16. PUBLIC SERVICES

No new or increased adverse environmental impacts to public services are expected
from the amended proposal. No mitigation measures recommended.

17. UTILITIES

No new or increased adverse environmental impacts to utilities are expected from the
amended proposal. No mitigation measures recommended.

18. ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING

a. Possible impacts resulting from removal of the full-time on-site environmental monitor
requirement.

The Certificate Holder proposed an amended SCA that deletes the requirement for “full-
time on-site” environmental monitoring during the construction phase. The original SCA
stipulates full-time on-site environmental monitoring for the construction phase, there is
no information indicating why this requirement should be revised to omit “full-time” and
“on-site” for this requirement. EFSEC would retain the original language in the SCA
requiring “full-time” and “on-site” to ensure environmental compliance throughout the
construction phase of the Project.

Proposed mitigation: Environmental Monitoring during Construction

EFSEC will provide full-time on-site environmental monitoring for the construction phase
of the Project, at the Certificate Holder's cost.

This mitigation applies to SCA Amendment: ARTICLE V.A.
C. APPLICABLE SEPA RULES

EFSEC has conducted an environmental analysis of the changes to the proposal following WAC
197-11-600(3)(b) which states:

For DNSs and EISs, preparation of a new threshold determination or supplemental EIS is
required if there are:

(i) Substantial changes to a proposal so that the proposal is likely to have significant
adverse environmental impacts (or lack of significant adverse impacts, if a DS is
being withdrawn); or

(ii) New information indicating a proposal’s probable significant adverse
environmental impacts (This includes discovery of misrepresentation or lack of
material disclosure). A new threshold determination or SEIS is not required if
probably significant adverse environmental impacts are covered by the range of
alternatives and impacts analysis in the existing environmental documents.

Page 18 of 19



If EFSEC determines the new information and analysis does not substantially change the analysis
of significant impacts and alternatives in the existing environmental document (WAC 197-11-600
(4)(c), an addendum is appropriate for documenting this review under SEPA.

Nothing in this environmental review or the associated Final SEPA Addendum shall preclude
further review or conditioning of future development proposals for the subject property.

| have reviewed and considered the referenced Amended Proposal, the Environmental
Checklist, agency comments, public comments and proposed responses, recommended and
proposed mitigation, and other available material. | hereby recommend an Addendum to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Final Supplement EIS issued November 2009.

11/8/2018

Sonia E. Bumpus, Date
EFSEC Siting and Compliance Manager

Page 19 of 19



WASHINGTON STATE

ENERGY FACILITY SITE EVALUATION COUNCIL
RESOLUTION NO. 343
AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE
DESERT CLAIM WIND POWER PROJECT SITE CERTIFICATION AGREEMENT
RECONFIGURATION OF FACILITY

Nature of Action

On February 26, 2018, the Certificate Holder, Desert Claim Wind Power LLC (Desert Claim),
requested that the Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council (EFSEC or the Council) amend its
Site Certification Agreement (SCA) to allow for the reconfiguration of its site boundary and the
installation of fewer, but larger turbines than originally authorized in the February 2010 SCA.!
The revised Desert Claim Wind Power proposal (Revised Project) would consist of 25-31
turbines not to exceed 492 feet in height and a total capacity of no more than 100 Megawatts
(MW). The current SCA for the original project (Original Project) authorizes Desert Claim to
construct and operate up to 95 turbines, with a maximum capacity of 190 MW. The Revised
Project remains at the same site as the Original Project, with acreage reduced to 4,400 acres
including approximately 370 acres that have been added to the west and south; 1,271 acres have
been removed east of Reecer Creek. Primary site access during construction and operation has
been changed from Reecer Creek Road to Smithson Road (accessed from Hwy 97). All turbines
will be located at least 2,500 feet from all residences in the Revised Project.? A total of 0.347
acres of new permanent wetland impacts and 0.026 acres of permanent stream impacts are
identified in the Revised Project. An additional 1.949 acres (0.126 acres stream and 1.823 acres
wetland) temporary impacts are proposed to streams and wetlands.? The Original Project did not
contemplate wetland or stream impacts. As a result of reducing the number of turbines and
changing the types of turbines to be installed, there is an expected 66% decrease in turbine
delivery trips and 10% increase in concrete trucks per hour during construction.*

Background

I Desert Claim Wind Power LLC, Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification
Agreement Amendment Request, (Amend. Req.) Cover Letter, February 26, 2018 at 1.

2]d. at3
3 EFSEC’s Revised State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) Staff Memorandum to the EFSEC
Stephen Posner (Rev. SEPA Staff Memo), EFSEC staff compiled environmental review notes

and rationale for proposed mitigation measures to support the SEPA Addendum to the Final
Supplemental Environmental Impact Statement (FSEIS), November 1, 2018 at 7.

4 Rev. SEPA Staff Memo at 15-16

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 1 of 24



The Original Project was first reviewed by Kittitas County (the County) in 2005, prior to Desert
Claim’s application to EFSEC. At that time, the County conducted an environmental review that
resulted in preparation of a Final Environmental Impact Statement (FEIS). In April 2005, the
County denied the Original Project as it had been proposed. In January 2009, the Original
Project was reconfigured and Desert Claim submitted an Application for Site Certification to
EFSEC. Under the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA), EFSEC prepared a Draft
Supplemental EIS (DSEIS) and a Final Supplemental EIS (FSEIS) to the County’s FEIS. On
December 4, 2009 EFSEC transmitted its recommendation of approval for the Original Project to
Governor Christine Gregoire. EFSEC’s recommendation to the Governor was based on various
sources of information including adjudicative proceedings, public comment, and environmental
analysis contained in the FSEIS. On February 1, 2010, Governor Christine Gregoire executed on
behalf of the State of Washington an SCA authorizing the construction and operation of the
Original Project.

The February 2010 SCA for the Original Project authorized Desert Claim to construct and
operate a wind power facility consisting of a maximum of 95 wind turbines on tubular steel
towers. The 2010 SCA permits an output capacity of 190 total MW and a tower height not to
exceed a maximum of 410 feet, within an approximately 5,200 acre project site. The Original
Project was located north and west of Ellensburg near the intersection of U.S. Route 97 and
Smithson Road. Site access during construction was primarily from Reecer Creek Road. Seven
non-participating residences were located between 1,687 and 2,241 feet of one or more turbines.
No temporary or permanent stream or wetland impacts were identified during the environmental
analysis initially conducted by EFSEC for the Original Project. As a result, measures to address
these kinds of impact were not contemplated in the original SCA.

Procedural Status

EFSEC's SCA amendment procedure is governed by chapter 80.50 RCW3 and chapter 463-66
WACS.

Desert Claim and EFSEC have complied with procedural requirements of Chapter 463-66 WAC
as follows:

e Pursuant to WAC 463-66-030, the request for amendment of the SCA was submitted
in writing on February 26, 2018.

e At its monthly meeting of March 20, 2018 the Council determined a schedule for
action on the request as follows: April 11, 2018 to conduct a public hearing on the
Desert Claim SCA amendment request in Ellensburg, WA.7

> RCW (Revised Code of Washington) 80.50
6 Title 463 WAC (Washington Administrative Code) Chapter 66

"Verbatim Transcript of EFSEC Monthly Council Meeting, March 20, 2018.

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 2 of 24



e Pursuant to WAC 463-66-030, notice of a public hearing was distributed to
approximately 1,031 people. The public notice issued by EFSEC advised that Desert
Claim had requested an amendment to their SCA, and that an informational hearing to
consider the matter would be conducted on April 11, 2018. The notice stated that
public comments could be made at the April public hearing.

e EFSEC conducted a public hearing session in which the public commented on this
matter in Ellensburg, WA on April 11, 2018.8

e At the Council’s August 21, 2018, monthly meeting EFSEC Siting and Compliance
Manager, Sonia Bumpus discussed the status of EFSEC’s SEPA review and
development of new analysis, such as a visual effects assessment to be completed
prior to EFSEC making a determination relative to SEPA.?

e At the September 18, 2018 monthly council meeting Sonia Bumpus, on behalf of
Stephen Posner, EFSEC’s SEPA Responsible Official, proposed that a draft SEPA
Addendum to the FSEIS be prepared for the Revised Project. After discussion by the
Council and its staff, the Council determined that a 15 day public comment period on
the draft SEPA Addendum to the FSEIS would be conducted.'©

e The draft SEPA Addendum, dated September 25, 2018, was prepared and issued for
public comment on September 26, 2018 with a deadline for comments on October 10,
2018.

e Three public comment submissions were submitted on the draft SEPA Addendum,
EFSEC staff provided a summary of proposed updates to the SEPA addendum and
public comments to the Council at the October 16, 2018 monthly Council meeting. !

e The Council considered information in Desert Claim’s SCA amendment request, the
proposed amendments to the Original Project SCA, input from the public, the Final
SEPA Addendum, Revised SEPA Staff Memo, and draft Resolution No. 343 at its
November 13, 2018 Council meeting.

8 Verbatim Transcript of EFSEC Special Council Meeting, April 11, 2018.
? Verbatim Transcript of EFSEC Monthly Council Meeting, August 21, 2018.
10 Verbatim Transeript of EFSEC Monthly Council Meeting, September 18, 2018.

IT Verbatim Transcript of EFSEC Monthly Council Meeting, October 16, 2018.

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 3 of 24



Public Comment

On April 11,2018, during the public hearing in Ellensburg, WA EFSEC received 10 handwritten
comments and 12 oral comments from public speakers. This hearing provided an opportunity for
the public to comment on the SCA amendment request submittals and the presentation about the
Revised Project provided by Desert Claim.

September 26, 2018 through October 10, 2018 EFSEC conducted a 15-day public comment
period on the draft SEPA Addendum to the FSEIS, dated September 25, 2018. EFSEC proposed
mitigation measures for potential impacts from the Revised Project. Key environmental review
notes and supportive rationale for the proposed mitigation measures were discussed in the SEPA
staff memorandum, dated September 25, 2018. The SEPA staff memo was prepared and sent to
the EFSEC Manager and SEPA Responsible Official, Stephen Posner. After review, the SEPA
Responsible Official made the SEPA Addendum and staff memo available to the Council. The
public comment period served as an opportunity for members of the public to comment on the
draft SEPA Addendum, SEPA staff memo, and additional and updated studies related to the
Revised Project. Concerns raised during the SEPA public comment period included the
following:

e Potential water quality impacts to Dry Creek, Green Canyon Creek, Reecer Creek, and
Jones Creek for stream heating and bacterial contamination.

e Potential impacts to wetlands and streams.
e Potential impacts from turbine noise- require highest noise standards and monitoring.

o Potential visual impacts from taller turbines, spacing between turbines- visual confusion
and disunity.

e Potential impacts from turbine lighting-encourage use of Aircraft Detection Lighting
System.

e Cultural Resource- concern from Desert Claim on the proposed mitigation measure and
SCA requirement, to adhere to their Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the
Yakama Nation.

e Potential impacts to transportation during construction associated with concrete truck
delivery trips.

The discreet comments listed above are based on EFSEC’s technical review of three public
comment submissions EFSEC received during the 15-day comment period. Consequently, one
of the proposed mitigation measures related to cultural resources was revised in response to
comment. Mitigation measures have been finalized and are documented in the Final SEPA
Addendum, dated November 1, 2018 (See attachment 1 to this Resolution). Final mitigation
along with the responses to comments are documented in the Revised SEPA staff memo, dated
November 7. 2018 (See atiachment 2 to this Resolution).

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 4 of 24



A summary of the comments and EFSEC’s responses to comments are also discussed in this
resolution below. Each comment is organized under its respective environmental resource area.
It is indicated if there are any further revisions suggested for the proposed mitigation measures.

Responses to SEPA Public Comment

Water Quality, Wetlands. and Streams:

Comment: The Washington Department of Ecology (Ecology) commented regarding the
protection of impaired waterbodies. In summary, Ecology commented that Dry Creek, Green
Canyon Creek, Reecer Creek, and Jones Creek flow through the Revised Project area and are
included in the Upper Yakima River Tributaries Temperature Total Maximum Daily Load
(TMDL.) water quality improvement project. Therefore, these streams must be protected from
additional stream heating. The TMDL also recommends that supplementary shade, via
installation of new riparian plants, should be added where possible. In addition, the Reecer
Creek reach located immediately upstream of the Kittitas Reclamation District canal is included
in Washington State’s list of 303(d) impaired waterbodies due to high levels of fecal coliform
bacteria. Ecology emphasized the importance that planning and construction, and all future use
of the site, include water quality protection to avoid further bacterial contamination in Reecer
Creek. Ecology noted that a Construction Stormwater General Permit (CSWGP) and the
development of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) will be required for off-site
construction stormwater discharges.

Response: The proposed mitigation in the SCA Amendment includes a requirement for
coordination with Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife (WDFW) and Ecology regarding
finalizing construction and operating plans to avoid or minimize temporary and permanent
impacts on streams and wetlands. Prior to construction, a final set of wetland buffers, setbacks,
and mitigation standards for permanent and temporary impacts must be determined by EFSEC in
consultation with Ecology. The SCA Amendment includes development of a SWPPP, Wetland
Compensatory Mitigation Plan, Habitat Mitigation Plan, and Construction Soil Management and
Vegetation Plan. These plans will address protection of impaired waterbodies as will the
required CSWGP that is required for discharging construction stormwater off-site. '2

No revision to the mitigation measure in the SCA amendment is proposed.
Noise:

Comment: A member of the public commented regarding the noise monitoring plan. In
summary, the comment requested that Desert Claim be held to the strictest standards in its noise
monitoring plan.

12 Rev. SEPA Staff Memo at 6-8

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 5 of 24



Response: The proposed mitigation in the draft SEPA Addendum includes Complaint-Based
Noise Monitoring and Response Plan submittal to EFSEC for review and approval prior to
operation to address low frequency noise and aeroacoustic noise.!3

No revision to the mitigation measure in the SCA amendment is proposed.
Visual:

Comment: A public comment regarding visual impacts of the turbines during operation was
received. In summary, the commenter expressed concerns about the “tallest land turbines on
earth” being sited next to many homes without EFSEC finding any significant impacts. There
were specific concerns regarding visual impacts to residences on Smithson Road, about the
variation in size of the turbines, various distances apart from one another, and the use of different
turbine models, “causing visual confusion and disunity™.

Response:  During EFSEC’s SEPA review of the Revised Project, EFSEC’s consultant
determined that from this viewing location, features of the Revised Project would be distinct and
would attract viewer attention; however, fewer turbines will be visible than in the previous
project configuration in the Original Project.'4

The independent Visual Effects Assessment conducted by EFSEC’s consultant indicated that
construction and decommissioning activities and components of the Revised Project would likely
be visible to those viewers adjacent to the work sites (e.g. viewers along Smithson Rd. and at
nearby residences) with a localized effect that would be experienced for a relatively short
duration (weeks to months). The previous visual effects assessment in the FEIS and FSEIS also
indicated a moderate level of visual impact related to this general location from the operating
turbines.

The technical approach used in the EFSEC’s Visual Effects Assessment (and in previous visual
assessments in the FEIS and FSEIS) included dimensions of vividness, intactness, and unity, as
well as the degree of visual dominance of the Revised Project, to determine the changes to visual
quality. The established Federal Highway Administration definition of ‘unity” refers to the
visual coherence and compositional harmony of the viewshed where effects are evaluated based
on the degree to which they disrupt the harmony of the landscape setting. The Visual Effects
Assessment (Section 4.1.1) as well as the photos and simulation provided by Truescape (SCA
Amendment request, Appendix A — Sheet 8 and Sheet 9) illustrate that the views of the valley
from this area are dominated by agricultural development and currently include evident wind
projects in the northwest portion of the study area. Based on the existing visual quality and
character visible from this area, while distinct, the Revised Project features would not
substantially affect the visual unity of the views or be incoherent within the context of the
surrounding landscape.

13 Rev. SEPA Staff Memo at 10-11

14 Rev. SEPA Staff Memo at 12-13

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. | to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 6 of 24



No new or increased adverse environmental impacts to visual and aesthetics are expected from
the Revised Project.

No mitigation measures in the SCA Amendment is proposed.

Light and Glare: Turbine Lighting:

Comment: A member of the public commented regarding turbine lighting. In summary, the
commenter encouraged the use of Aircraft Detection Lighting System (ADLS).

Response: EFSEC’s draft SEPA Addendum proposes mitigation for the Revised Project that
requires Desert Claim to investigate the application of ADLS (a more recently available
technology) prior to construction and report its finding to EFSEC. The report will include the
benefits and feasibility of ADLS for the Revised Project proposal.

No new or increased adverse environmental impacts from light and glare due to turbine lighting
are expected from the Revised Project. !

No revision to the mitigation measure in the SCA amendment is proposed.

Historic and Cultural Preservation: Cultural Resources-MOU with Yakama Nation

Comment: EFSEC received a comment from Desert Claim regarding the proposed mitigation
measure that requires they adhere to their MOU with the Yakama Nation. In their comment
letter Desert Claim clarified that the MOU document is a “Scope of Work™ between Desert
Claim and the Yakama Nation. the contents of which EFSEC does not know: and that the MOU
is not a binding agreement between the two parties. Desert Claim’s letter further explained that
some of the activities identified in the “Scope of Work™ document have already been completed.
Desert Claim also expressed concerns about the appropriateness of EFSEC including a
requirement that relates to a private document between Desert Claim and the Yakama Nation.

Response: The proposed requirement in the draft SEPA Addendum to adhere to the MOU was
developed based on EFSEC’s initial SEPA review of the FSEIS and the SCA amendment request
materials provided by Desert Claim. For example, the FSEIS discussed additional surveys to be
conducted by Desert Claim; it states, “the Applicant has also agreed to conduct additional
surveys of Traditional Cultural Properties (TCP 's) of importance to the Yakama Nation and to
work with the Yakama Nation to prepare a Traditional Cultural Resources Mitigation Plan.”

Mitigation measures in the FSEIS included the development of a cultural resource mitigation
plan in consultation with the Yakama Nation and the Washington Department of Archaeology
and Historic Preservation (DAHP). According to the FSEIS, the plan “would include mitigation

I5 Rev. SEPA Staff Memo at 13

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 7 of 24



measures tailored to the specific circumstances of each resource and would be consistent with
applicable federal, state, and local regulations”.'®

The Original Project FSEIS also acknowledged the MOU and characterized its intended purpose,
that the “MOU addresses concerns expressed by the Yakama Nation's comments on the Draft
SEIS", and provides a framework for developing a Traditional Cultural Resources Mitigation
Plan with the Yakama Nation” .

In DAHP’s comments to EFSEC, they concurred with the condition regarding Tribal
involvement in developing mitigation for the Revised Project. In its correspondence to EFSEC,
DAHP stated, “We agree with the recommendation for Tribal consultation regarding mitigation
for impacts to traditional subsistence and medicinal plant resource areas.”?

In addition, DAHP provided the following recommendations to EFSEC:

e Requested additional photos of Historic-period field clearing pile archaeological sites and
evidence of tribal consultation, otherwise these resources must be avoided or obtain a
DAHP permit prior to any impacts.

e Stated all Revised Project impacts should be avoided to all pre-contact archaeological
sites and one historic-period archaeological site and if they can’t be avoided, a permit
from DAHP is required for formal archaeological testing with recommendations for
further mitigation.

e Requested a robust Inadvertent Discovery Plan be developed for the Revised Project and
training of construction and operations crews.

e Requested additional archaeological survey for micrositing of turbines and for alterations
in roadway plans.

In light of the references to the MOU in the FSEIS, and its apparent importance for addressing
potential adverse impacts to tribal resources of concern to the Yakama Nation, on September 20,
2018, EFSEC requested a copy of the MOU from Desert Claim. Desert Claim did not provide a
copy to EFSEC.

16 EFSEC prepared FSEIS, Section 3.3.5, Mitigation Measures.

ITEFSEC prepared DSEIS, Public Comment Letter #12 from the Yakama Nation in
EFSEC prepared FSEIS, Section 4 Draft SEIS Comments and Responses.

18 EFSEC prepared FSEIS, Section 3.3.2.4, Site Significance Evaluations.

19 Rev. SEPA Staff Memo at 15

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page § of 24



Because the Yakama Nation had not provided public comment to EFSEC relative to the draft
SEPA Addendum, in a letter dated October 17, 2018, EFSEC’s Siting and Compliance Manager,
Sonia E. Bumpus, contacted the Yakama Nation to request that it notify EFSEC of any concerns
related to the MOU and/or Desert Claim’s SCA amendment request. The Yakama Nation
responded to EFSEC and on November 7, 2018 EFSEC staff and the Yakama Nation held a call.
The discussion covered four aspects of the Yakama Nation’s previous agreements with the
Certificate Holder and other concerns related to the Revised Project.

The four aspects discussed included: 1.) Development of a traditional cultural resources
mitigation plan prior to construction; 2.) Access for Yakama Tribal members to the root grounds
within the Project area; 3.) Yakama Nation participation on the Technical Advisory Committee
(TAC): and 4.) Restoration of lands to pre-Project conditions following decommissioning.

This conversation helped to improve EFSEC’s understanding of the agreement between Desert
Claim and the Yakama Nation and it is expected that Desert Claim’s commitments in the FSEIS
in conjunction with the new and supplemented mitigation measures in the SCA Amendment, are
sufficiently expansive to address the four considerations outlined above.20

Recommendations from the Yakama Nation from a 2010 survey of the project area were also
discussed during the call. EFSEC staff had previously identified the recommendations during its
review of the updated cultural resource assessment prepared by the Certificate Holder’s
consultant, Archaeological Investigations Northwest, Inc. (AINW), titled, “Cultural Resource
Assessment of Updated Project Design for the Desert Claim Wind Power Project”. Based on
input related to EFSEC during the call, it is EFSEC’s understanding that the Yakama Nation’s
recommendations in the AINW report continue to be topics of concern related to the Revised
Project. In consideration of the SCA Amendment request, input from DAHP and Desert Claim,
and more recently, input from the Yakama Nation, EFSEC staff proposes further revision and
clarification to the mitigation initially proposed to improve the mitigation measure to address
cultural resource impacts:

Revised mitigation in the SCA amendment is proposed:?!

The development of the Cultural Resources Monitoring and Mitigation Plan must be done in
coordination with DAHP and the Yakama Nation and approved by EFSEC. The following must
be considered during the plan development:

e Avoidance of the concentrated-resource areas.

e Habitat rehabilitation of impacted-resource area as a means of mitigation for impacts to
the diffuse-resource areas.

20 Rev. SEPA Staff Memo at 16

21 Rev. SEPA Staff Memo at 14-16

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 9 of 24



e Archaeological sites be provided a minimum 30 meter/100 foot buffer.

e Archaeological isolates should be further studied and be provided a minimum 15
meter/50 foot buffer.

e 51 rock features should be re-evaluated and recorded as archaeological sites.

e Archaeological monitoring during construction when ground-disturbing activity is
involved.

Transportation: Traffic Impacts during Construction

Comment: A public comment was submitted regarding concerns about concrete truck delivery
traffic. In summary, the commenter expressed concerns that, “approximately 22 concrete
delivery trips will be made each hour during a daily 12-hour delivery period which represents a
10% increase in concrete trucks per hour during construction from the transportation numbers
presented in the FEIS. Of course the 10% increase is not considered substantial . While the
commenter seems to acknowledge that the expected 10% increase is not substantial, the
commenter asks, “how long is this daily 12-hour period going to last” and “why is the applicant
not making its concrete onsite like most other wind farms?”

Response: Based on the Revised Project description provided by Desert Claim, construction is
expected to last approximately 9 months. Concrete trucks would travel to the site during a small
portion of the construction period. Desert Claim estimates an average of 22 concrete truck
deliveries per hour (see 09/18/2018 email, Desert Claim response to Data Request 3). This is
based on:

e 2,067 one-way concrete truck trips for all concrete deliveries;
e Approximately two foundations could be poured in one day; and

e Two foundations would require 134 truck trips- At the rate of 134 delivery truck trips in a
day, there would be approximately 15 days of concrete delivery trips.

The draft SEPA Addendum proposed mitigation requiring the submittal of a Construction Traffic
Management Plan that would address increased construction traffic on Smithson Road, which is
a new access road for the Revised Project. The Construction Traffic Management Plan would
address issues such as limiting construction delivery vehicles during peak travel times and
accommodating agricultural road use on Smithson Road. The Construction Traffic Management
Plan would contain detailed traffic information which would address concerns raised by the
commenter. Details about project delivery trips, timeframe, duration and the concrete source
would be among the project elements required in the plan (including an option for on-site
concrete batch plant).

No revision to the mitigation measure in the SCA amendment is proposed.

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 10 of 24



Discussion

WAC 463-66-040 outlines the relevant factors that the Council shall consider prior to a decision
to amend a SCA:

In reviewing any proposed amendment, the council shall consider whether the proposal is
consistent with:

1. The intention of the original SCA;
2. Applicable laws and rules; and
3. The public health, safety, and welfare; and

4. The provisions of chapter 463-72 WAC.

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 11 of 24



1. Consistency with intention of the original SCA

Under WAC 463-66-040(1), the Council must consider whether the proposed amendment is
consistent with the intention of the original SCA.22 In general, the intention of every SCA is to
grant state authorization to a certificate holder to construct and operate an energy facility that has
been determined to be in the interest of the State of Washington because the facility will produce
a net benefit after balancing need for the facility against impacts on the broad public interest,
including human welfare and environmental stewardship.2? During its initial siting decision of
the Original Project, the Council relied upon its overarching policy and intent in RCW
80.50.010. EFSEC Council Order No. 843, Order Recommending Approval of Site Certification
Agreement, states “The Council has carefully considered the state’s need for energy at
reasonable cost and the need to minimize environmental impacts. ”?* The Council determined
that the Original Project would, “provide the region with significant energy benefits while not
resulting in unmitigated, significant adverse environmental impacts. Thus, the proposed Project
meets the requirements of applicable law and is consistent with the policy and intent of RCW
80.50.”

In reviewing the SCA amendment request, the Council focused on understanding the proposed
changes to the Original Project and any associated impacts identified through its SEPA review.
The Council assessed the modified project in conjunction with whether or not the terms and
conditions in the SCA Amendment would sufficiently protect “the environment, ecology of the
land and its wildlife, and the ecology of state waters and their aquatic life” in light of those
changes.?> The result of EFSEC’s SEPA review indicates the Revised Project will primarily
reduce adverse environmental impacts, in comparison to the Original Project. Consistency and
compliance with SEPA is discussed in subsection (2) (A) below. The SEPA environmental
review also indicates that the Revised Project will meet applicable construction and operation
standards for energy facilities, as outlined in WAC 463-62.26 Consistency with WAC 463-62 is
discussed in Subsection (2) (C) below.

22 WAC 463-66-040

23 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal, Report to the Governor on
Application No. 2013-01, Executive Summary, at 4.

24 EFSEC Council Order No. 843, Order Recommending Approval of Site Certification
Agreement for Desert Claim Original Project.

25 RCW 80.50.010

26 Chapter 463-62 WAC outlines EFSEC’s Construction and Operation Standards for
Energy Facilities under EFSEC’s jurisdiction. Performance standards and mitigation
requirements are included for: Seismicity, Noise standards, Fish and wildlife, Impact and
mitigation standards for wetlands, Water quality, and Air quality.

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 12 of 24



As detailed in the Final SEPA Addendum and Revised staff memo, the Revised Project
reconfiguration will not result in potential significant adverse impacts to the natural environment
of the site and all adverse impacts that have been identified will be avoided or mitigated, see also
subsection (3) below. Mitigation measures included in the SCA Amendment address adverse
impacts to Water Resources-Water quality, Environmental health, Noise, Light and Glare,
Historic and Cultural Preservation, Transportation, and Environmental monitoring.

The majority of environmental impacts addressed within the FSEIS and in the Final SEPA
Addendum are similar and by comparison, most resource impacts identified for the Original and
Revised Project have not substantively changed. However, impacts to wetlands and streams
were not contemplated as part of the Original Project. In light of these new impacts, Desert
Claim is required to comply with the mitigation standards for impacted wetlands, as outlined in
WAC 463-62-050.27 The Final SEPA Addendum and Revised SEPA staff memo (Attachments
1 and 2) identify specific mitigation which requires Desert Claim to coordinate, “with WDFW
and Ecology regarding finalizing construction and operating plans to avoid or minimize
temporary and permanent impacts on streams and wetlands. Prior to construction a final set of
wetland buffers, setbacks, and mitigation standards for permanent and temporary impacts must
be determined by EFSEC in consultation with Ecology.” Additionally, Desert Claim is required
to develop a Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control Plan (TESC), Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan (SWPPP), Wetland Compensatory Mitigation Plan, Habitat Mitigation Plan, and
Construction Soil Management and Vegetation Plan. These plans are expected to address
protection of impaired waterbodies as will the Construction Stormwater General Permit
(CSWGP), which is required for discharging construction stormwater off-site.?8

The Council carefully considered the results of the new and updated analyses conducted under
SEPA, the proposed mitigation measures in the Final SEPA Addendum and Revised SEPA staff
memo, and construction and operational aspects of the Revised Project. The Council determines
that the Revised Project meets the requirements of applicable law and is consistent with the
policy and intent of RCW 80.50. The Council finds that within the terms of the SCA
amendment, which includes the mitigation measures discussed above and below, the Revised
Project will not result in unmitigated significant adverse impacts to the environment, the ecology
of the land and its wildlife, and the ecology of the state waters and their aquatic life. None of the
proposed facility modifications for the Revised Project or the respective SCA amendment terms
and conditions effect the Council’s previous determination of approval, with respect to
“significant energy benefits” the facility is expected to provide to the region, or to the “state’s
need for energy at reasonable cost.”29

27 Chapter 463-62-050 WAC outlines EFSEC’s construction and operation standards for impacts
and mitigation standards for wetlands.

28 Rev. SEPA Staff Memo at 6-8

29 EFSEC Council Order No. 843, Order Recommending Approval of Site Certification
Agreement for Desert Claim Original Project.

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 13 of 24



2.  Consistency with applicable laws and rules

Under WAC 463-66-040(2), the Council must consider applicable laws and rules, including
chapter 80.50 RCW, chapter 43.21C RCW and chapter 197-11 WAC (the State Environmental
Policy Act and SEPA rules)3?, WAC 463-66-070 through -080, and the construction and
operation standards for energy facilities in WAC 463-6231,

A. Consistency with SEPA (chapter 43.21C RCW and chapter 197-11 WAC).

The Council is charged with the responsibility to review proposed projects under SEPA, RCW
43.21C and chapter 197-11 WAC. That law provides for the consideration of probable adverse
environmental impacts and possible mitigation measures. Pursuant to WAC 463-47-140, EFSEC
is the lead agency for environmental review of projects under the jurisdiction of RCW 80.50; the
Council Manager is the SEPA responsible official, per WAC 463-47-051.

Desert Claim submitted a SEPA Checklist which EFSEC staff reviewed along with the other
materials submitted to EFSEC. The Council invited public comment on the SCA amendment
request at a public hearing conducted in April 201832 in Ellensburg, WA. While the hearing is
not required under SEPA rules, the preliminary concerns expressed by the public at the hearing
were taken into account by EFSEC staff during the environmental review of the SCA
amendment. Concurrently, EFSEC gathered input from other coordinating agencies. Key notes
about the environmental resources analyzed and their respective mitigation are documented in
the Revised SEPA staff memo, dated November 7, 2018 (See attachment 1 to this Resolution).
While no new significant adverse impacts for the Revised Project were identified, EFSEC
developed supplemental mitigation measures to address adverse impacts concerning water
resources-water quality, wetlands and streams, riparian areas, noise, light and glare, and historic
and cultural resources, transportation, and environmental monitoring.

Though not required by SEPA, the Council conducted a 15-day public comment period on the
draft SEPA Addendum that included the supporting draft SEPA staff memo. This provided the
public with an opportunity to comment on the Revised Project, proposed mitigation measures,
and associated reports for the SCA Amendment request. Three public comment submissions
were received and considered by EFSEC to finalize mitigation measures. Summarized public
comments and responses to comments are discussed in detail in the Revised SEPA staff memo
and final mitigation measures are documented in the Final SEPA Addendum. In response to

30 Title 197 WAC (Washington Administrative Code) Chapter 11

31 Chapter 463-62 WAC EFSEC’s Construction and Operation Standards for Energy
Facilities under EFSEC’s jurisdiction.

32 Chapter 463-66-030 WAC requires the Council to hold one or more public hearing
sessions upon the request for Amendment to an SCA. The Council conducted a public hearing
for Desert Claim’s SCA Amendment request on April 11, 2018.

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 14 of 24



comments, EFSEC further revised the mitigation measure requirement concerning historic and
cultural resources, which now requires Desert Claim to develop their Cultural Resource and
Mitigation Plan in consultation with the Yakama Nation and DAHP.33 Based on input EFSEC
received from the Yakama Nation, EFSEC revised the mitigation measure to improve and clarify
which tribal concerns must be considered during Desert Claim’s plan development.

In general, SEPA requires an agency to perform a threshold determination to determine whether
a proposed action will have a significant adverse effect on the environment (See WAC 197-11-
310). For Desert Claim’s SCA amendment request for the Revised Project, EFSEC has
conducted an environmental analysis of the changes to the proposal following WAC 197-11-
600(3)(b) which states:

For Determinations of Nonsignificance (DNSs) and EISs, preparation of a new threshold
determination or supplemental EIS is required if there are:

(i)  Substantial changes to a proposal so that the proposal is likely to have significant
adverse environmental impacts (or lack of significant adverse impacts, if a DS is
being withdrawn); or

(i) New information indicating a proposal’s probable significant adverse environmental
impacts (this includes discovery of misrepresentation or lack of material disclosure).
A new threshold determination or SEIS is not required if probable significant adverse
environmental impacts are covered by the range of alternatives and impacts analysis
in the existing environmental documents.

If EFSEC’s SEPA Responsible Official determines that the new information and analysis does
not substantially change the analysis of significant impacts and alternatives in the existing
environmental document (WAC 197-11-600 (4)(c)), an addendum is appropriate for
documenting this review under SEPA.

The Council’s SEPA Responsible Official, Stephen Posner, reviewed and considered the Revised
Project and the SCA Amendment request from Desert Claim, submitted on February 26, 2018.
The SEPA Responsible Official published the draft SEPA Addendum to the FSEIS for a 15-day
public comment period on September 26, 2018. The SEPA Responsible Official considered
several sources of information to make a determination with respect to SEPA. Public comments,
new information and updated analyses provided by Desert Claim and EFSEC’s consultant,
EFSEC staff recommendations for proposed mitigation in the draft and revised SEPA staff
memo, were all considered by EFSEC’s SEPA Responsible Official in order to develop the Final
SEPA Addendum, dated November 1, 2018. The SEPA Responsible Official determined that the
Revised Project will not result in significant adverse impacts to the natural environment. The
Council hereby accepts the determination and acknowledges the measures to be implemented by
Desert Claim to modify the Project proposal to further avoid, minimize and mitigate

33 Rev. SEPA Staff Memo 14-16

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. I to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 15 of 24



environmental impacts. As described in the preceding SEPA section, the Council took several
steps to finalize the SEPA Addendum and comply with SEPA requirements. The Council finds
that the Revised Project is consistent and in compliance with chapter 43.21C RCW and chapter
197-11 WAC.

B. Consistency with WAC 463-66-070: Approval by Council Action and -080:
Approval by governor.

WAC 463-66-070 and -080 discuss the two options available to the Council for approval of a
request for amendment to an EFSEC site certification agreement.

WAC 463-66-080 provides:

“An [SCA] amendment which substantially alters the substance of any provision
of the SCA or which is determined to have a significant detrimental effect upon
the environment shall be effective upon the signed approval of the governor.”

On the other hand, WAC 463-66-070 provides:

“An amendment request which does not substantially alter the substance of any
provisions of the SCA, or which is determined not to have a significant
detrimental effect upon the environment, shall be effective upon approval by the
council. Such approval may be in the form of a council resolution.”

The Council examined the Revised Project and the revisions to the SCA Amendment request in
consideration of whether provisions in the Original Project SCA would be substantially altered.
The Original Project is discussed in more detail in the Background discussion above. The
Project Description in Article I, Part C of the SCA Amendment has been updated to reflect the
changes to the project description and describes modifications such as the installation of taller
but fewer turbines. The remaining revisions are primarily associated with the updates and
revisions to mitigation formed through SEPA.

The Council considered whether the SCA Amendment request would result in, “significant
detrimental effects” on the environment. EFSEC relied upon its SEPA review to identify
potential significant adverse impacts. If potential significant unavoidable adverse impacts were
identified, these would be categorically characterized as “significant detrimental effects”. The
SEPA Addendum and SEPA staff memo indicate that no significant unavoidable adverse impacts
have been identified. New or revised mitigation in the SCA Amendment will adequately
addresses impacts for Water resources-water quality, Environmental health, Noise, Light and
Glare, Historic and Cultural Preservation, Transportation, and Environmental monitoring. The
Council acknowledges that impacts to wetlands and streams were not contemplated or analyzed
for the Original Project; however, new mitigation measures have been developed and added to
the SCA amendment to address those impacts. Additionally, the requirement for a full-time,
onsite environmental monitor is also retained as a condition in the SCA amendment, which will
provide further protection for any unanticipated impacts to wetland and streams should any arise
during construction.

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. | to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 16 of 24



EFSEC’s SEPA review supports the conclusion that the Revised Project will not result in
significant detrimental effects as no significant unavoidable adverse impacts to the environment
have been identified. Final mitigation measures have been incorporated into the SCA
Amendment as terms and conditions appropriate for the Revised Project. Owing to the
modifications of the Revised Project combined with the fact that none of the modifications result
in significant unavoidable adverse environmental effects, the Council determines that the SCA
Amendment does not substantially alter the substance of any provisions of the SCA. The
Council finds that the majority of provisions in the SCA for the Original Project remain
substantively unchanged, recognizing that some conditions have been supplemented with
additional or more refined measures (See Revised SEPA Staff Memo). The Council therefore
concludes that this amendment may be approved by Council resolution pursuant to WAC 463-
66-070.

C. Consistency with WAC 463-62 Construction and Operation Stands for Energy
Facilities.

The purpose of chapter 463-62 WAC implements EFSEC’s policy and intent outlined in RCW
80.50.010. Performance standards and mitigation requirements which address seismicity, noise
limits, fish and wildlife, wetlands, water quality, and air quality are identified in the rule. Within
the terms and conditions of the SCA amendment, the Revised Project demonstrates compliance
with the construction and operation conditions outlined in WAC 463-62. The Revised Project
changes relative to these requirements are detailed in the revised SEPA staff memo and Final
SEPA Addendum.

Seismicity:
While seismicity issues are not anticipated for the Revised Project, final facility design plans are
required for the Revised Project prior to start of construction.

Noise:
Noise modeling for the Revised Project indicated no exceedances of noise standards.

Fish and wildlife habitat and function:

Fish and wildlife habitat and function are addressed through mitigation measures in the SCA
amendment. The SCA amendment will require Desert Claim to coordinate with Ecology and
WDFW regarding the finalization of construction and operation plans to avoid and minimize
temporary and permanent impacts to streams and wetlands. A Wetland Compensatory
Mitigation Plan and Habitat Management Plan are also required.

Wetland Impacts and mitigation:

Ecology and EFSEC reviewed the May 2018 Wetland Delineation and Analysis Report
submitted by Desert Claim. As discussed in the Revised SEPA staff memo, permanent impacts
to approximately 0.026 acres associated with 13 streams and 0.347 acres associated with 8
wetlands are anticipated from the Revised Project. Desert Claim proposes to conduct required
mitigation by enhancing three onsite wetlands and final mitigation would be developed to fully
mitigate for any permanent impacts identified, and for the size of buffers based on Best
Available Science (BAS). Wetland enhancement may include removing existing cattle grazing
uses, installing exclusion fencing, and planting bare areas with plug sized herbaceous vegetation.
EFSEC and Ecology also reviewed the credit/debit analysis proposed by Desert Claim and

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 17 of 24



concluded there would be “no net loss™ of wetland function within the project area with proposed
mitigation.

Water Quality:

Desert Claim is required to obtain a Construction Stormwater General Permit. This permit is a
regulatory requirement as part of the SCA. Desert Claim is required to comply with the permit
to protect water quality during construction activities. In addition to the permit, Desert Claim is
required to prepare and submit a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) which is
required for off-site construction stormwater discharges.

Air Quality:
No air emissions are anticipated nor are any air permits required to construct and operate the
Revised Project.

Based on the results of the SEPA environmental review conducted by EFSEC and within the
terms of the SCA amendment, the Council hereby concludes that the standards for construction
and operation in chapter 463-62 WAC are satisfied. Therefore, the Council determines that the
ore the Revised Project is consistent with WAC 463-62.

3. Consistency with the public health, safety, and welfare

Under WAC 463-66-040(3) and -050, the Council must consider whether the SCA Amendment
request would be consistent with public health, safety, and welfare. In considering whether a
proposed amendment is consistent with the public health, safety and welfare, WAC 463-66-050
requires the Council to consider the long-term environmental impacts of the proposal, and further
requires a consideration of “reasonable alternative means by which the purpose of the proposal
might be achieved” along with the “availability of funding to implement the proposal.”

A. Public health, safety and welfare:

The majority of activities associated with the installation and operation of the Revised Project
will be conducted in the area approved for the Original Project. The Original Project area
previously analyzed in EFSEC’s FSEIS has been reduced for the Revised Project with the
removal of the 1,271 acres east of Reecer Creek, with wind turbines no longer to be installed in
this area. To the West and South of the site of the Original Project, the Revised Project adds 370
acres to the total Project area. Consequently, the overall permanent footprint for the Revised
Project has been reduced in comparison to the footprint of the Original Project.3* The Revised
Project also reduces the number of turbines originally permitted from 95 to no more than 31. For
the 31 turbines to be installed, the maximum height of the turbines increased from 410 feet (ft.)
to a max height of 492 ft. The distance between the turbines and residences originally permitted
for the Original Project has been increased and turbines in the Revised Project will no longer be
located within 2,500 feet of any residence.

34 Amend. Regq. at 6.

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 18 of 24



Due to the reconfiguration of the turbines and increased turbine height, EFSEC’s consultant
conducted an independent Visual Effects Assessment to determine impacts to visual and
aesthetics. The assessment considered factors such as the reconfiguration design, the reduced
number of turbines to be installed, and the increased height of the turbines. The results of the
assessment indicated no significant impacts to visual and aesthetics.

Noise modeling for the Revised Project was conducted which does not show any exceedances of
noise standards; however, the SCA conditions have been supplemented to include a new
requirement for a complaint-based noise monitoring and response plan, the intent is to address
noise complaints should any arise during facility operations.35

Mitigation measures to address shadow flicker were retained for the Revised Project. While
additional mitigation measures have been developed to address certain aspects of the Revised
Project, none of these changes substantially alter the substance of the SCA or result in any
significant or new detrimental effects on the public health, safety or welfare. The Revised
Project continues to implement the purpose of the Original Project, though with a smaller energy
output, to address the pressing need for energy facilities, and will provide additional abundant
affordable renewable power. The Revised Project will not have potential significant adverse
impacts on public health and safety. Consequently, as supported by the documentation in the
Final SEPA Addendum and the Amended SCA, the Revised Project is consistent with the public
health, safety and welfare.

B. Environmental impacts:

Environmental impacts related to public health, safety and welfare have been addressed either in
the FSEIS or in the Final SEPA Addendum. For the reasons set forth above and below related to
SEPA compliance and EFSEC’s environmental review, the Revised Project will not result in
significant unavoidable adverse environmental impacts. Desert Claim will continue to abide by
all the terms and conditions of the Amended SCA.

EFSEC’s SEPA review relied on the FSEIS analysis combined with information gathered for the
Final SEPA Addendum. The FSEIS analyzed impacts to water resources and water quality,
plants and animals, historic and cultural resources, visual and aesthetics, environmental health,
and transportation. For water resources, Desert Claim is required to obtain a Construction
Stormwater General Permit (CSWGP). This permit is a regulatory requirement and is part of the
SCA approval. Desert Claim is required to comply with the permit to protect water quality
during construction activities.

For new impacts to wetlands and streams, which were not previously analyzed for the Original
Project, the SCA amendment requires Desert Claim to coordinate with Ecology and WDFW
agencies regarding the finalization of construction and operation plans to further avoid and
minimize temporary and permanent impacts to streams and wetlands. A Wetland Compensatory

35 Rev. SEPA Staff Memo at 10-11.

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 19 of 24



Mitigation Plan and Habitat Management Plan are also required.?® Ecology and EFSEC
reviewed the May 2018 Wetland Delineation and Analysis Report submitted by Desert Claim.
As discussed in the Revised SEPA staff memo, permanent impacts to approximately 0.026 acres
associated with 13 streams and 0.347 acres associated with 8 wetlands are anticipated from the
Revised Project. Desert Claim proposes to conduct required mitigation by enhancing three
onsite wetlands and final mitigation would be developed to fully mitigate for any permanent
impacts identified, and for the size of buffers based on Best Available Science (BAS). Wetland
enhancement may include removing existing cattle grazing uses, installing exclusion fencing,
and planting bare areas with plug sized herbaceous vegetation. EFSEC and Ecology also
reviewed the credit/debit analysis proposed by Desert Claim and concluded there would be *no
net loss™ of wetland function within the project area with proposed mitigation.3’

To determine impacts to visual and aesthetics due to installation of fewer but taller turbines,
EFSEC conducted an independent effects assessment.?® That assessment determined that no new
or increased adverse environmental impacts to visual and aesthetics are expected. Furthermore,
mitigation for shadow flicker from the wind turbines remains in the SCA amendment to address
potential issues should any arise during operation. The Revised Project is not expected to have
short-term or long-term significant adverse impacts to the environment, consequently, as
documented in the SEPA Addendum and the Amended SCA, the proposed amendment is
consistent with the public health, safety and welfare.

C. Reasonable alternatives means to achieve the purpose of the proposal; Funding
to implement the proposal:

Alternatives to the Original Project as it was presented to the County were considered in the
FEIS. The Revised Project does not change those considerations and related findings and
conclusions. Desert Claim has conducted environmental surveys over the course of
reconfiguring its proposal, consequently it is uniquely familiar with the terrain and habitat of the
site where the Revised Project is to be located. Desert Claim intends to lease 2,625.8 acres from
four private land owners, with 636.7 acres leased from the Washington Department of Natural
Resources, and 1,130.5 acres owned by an affiliate of Desert Claim.?® Five Bonneville Power
Administration (BPA) owned transmission lines and Puget Sound Energy’s Rocky Reach-
Cascade 230 Kilovolt (kV) line are located in the Revised Project area. According to Desert
Claim, these regional transmission lines have been identified as options for interconnecting the

36 Amend. SCA, Article [V.E.
37 Ecology letter to EFSEC, dated September 07, 2018.

3% Golder Associates, Inc. Visual Effects Assessment for Desert Claim Wind Power Project, dated
September 7, 2018.

3% Amend. Req., Revised Project description, Section 2.3 Land Ownership at 36.

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. I to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 20 of 24



Revised Project to the regional transmission network.*? Due to the unique ability of Desert
Claim to develop the Revised Project area and its location that provides access for transmission
interconnection, the Council finds there is no reasonable alternative means to efficiently achieve
the objectives of the amended proposal-—the production of renewable energy available to Desert
Claim on the Revised Project site. Based on Desert Claim’s written request that EFSEC amend
its SCA, the Council concludes that Desert Claim has the capability to fund and complete the
construction of the amended Project reconfiguration.

4.  Consistency with WAC 463-72
WAC 463-72-020 provides:

Site restoration or preservation plans shall be prepared in sufficient detail to identify, evaluate,
and resolve all major environmental and public health and safety issues, to include provisions for
funding or bonding and monitoring. Specific plans shall:

(1) Describe the process and/or assumptions used to evaluate the options
considered and the measures selected to restore or preserve the site to protect the
environment and all segments of the public against risks and dangers resulting from the
site operations and activities.

(2) Address provisions for funding or bonding to meet restoration or preservation
costs. Financial assurance shall be provided to ensure that funding is available and
sufficient for site restoration or preservation. Such financial assurances shall include
evidence of pollution liability insurance coverage in an amount justified for the project,
and a site closure bond, sinking fund, or other financial instrument or security in an
amount justified in the initial site restoration plan.

(3) Address the scope of monitoring to be conducted during site restoration or
preservation and possible continued monitoring to ensure site restoration is achieved.

Compliance with WAC 463-72 is addressed in the SCA amendment under site
restoration, which requires Desert Claim to develop and prepare an Initial Site
Restoration Plan (ISRP) in consultation with WDFW, and to submit the plan for EFSEC
approval.*! The objective of the ISRP is to conduct restoration of the site to
“approximate pre-Project condition or better”.#> Based on its previous findings that the
proposed amendment has no significant adverse environmental impacts and no significant
adverse impacts on public health, safety, and welfare; and second, that it does not

40 Amend. Req., Revised Project description, Section 3.2.3 Transmission Interconnections at 10.
41 Amended SCA, Article I1I. H Site Restoration at 10.

42 Amended SCA, Article IV.D Initial Site Restoration Plan at 14.

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 21 of 24



substantially alter the substance of Desert Claim’s legal responsibilities under the SCA,
the Council concludes that this amendment is consistent pursuant to WAC 463-72.

Conclusion

The Council concludes as follows: (1) the proposed SCA Amendment is consistent with
the intent of the Original Project SCA; (2) the proposed SCA Amendment of Desert
Claim’s SCA to allow reconfiguration of the Project as-proposed is consistent with the
public health, safety, and welfare; (3) the proposed SCA Amendment is consistent with
all applicable laws (including SEPA); and (4) the proposed amendment is consistent with
the purpose pursuant to WAC 463-72. The Council hereby determines that it is
appropriate to approve Amendment 1 to the Desert Claim Wind Power Project SCA,
necessary to reflect the proposed changes to the Project; Provided, Desert Claim Wind
Power LLC, shall continue to implement mitigation measures identified in the SCA, as
amended by this decision.

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 22 of 24



RESOLUTION

For the foregoing reasons, the Council grants Desert Claim’s request to amend its SCA to allow
Desert Claim to construct and operate the Revised Project. The Council’s approval is
memorialized in the attached SCA Amendment.

® The proposed amendment to the SCA for the reconfiguration of the Project and its
boundaries, reducing the Project area to approximately 4,400 acres, by removal of 1,271
acres located east of Reecer Creek and the addition of approximately 370 acres to the
west and south of the Project area.

¢ Primary site access during construction and operation will be changed to Smithson Road,
for internal access roads.

e The Project will include approximately twenty (20) miles of internal roads for access to
the wind turbine generators and other Project facilities.

e Installation of wind turbine generators for a maximum of thirty-one (31), 3-bladed wind
turbines on tubular steel towers, not to exceed a maximum height (hub height plus blade
tip height) of 150 meters (492 feet), with a capacity ranging from 2.0 to 4.2 megawatts
(MW). The total capacity for the reconfigured Project will not exceed 100 MW. Wind
turbines will be equipped with turbine control, safety and braking systems, and will be
interconnected to a central Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system.

¢ Turbine setbacks shall meet the following setback requirements:
o Setback from occupied residences = 2,500 feet
o Setback from external Project Area boundaries = 1.25 x tip height
o Setback from road and transmission line rights of way = 1.25 x tip height
o Setback from barns and buildings = tip height
» All applicable SCA conditions and mitigation measures apply to the construction and
operation of the Facility. Desert Claim Wind Power LLC, shall comply with all
additional mitigation measures as set forth in the SCA, as amended.

e The SCA changes are shown in the Amended SCA.

e The mitigation measures and supporting SEPA review notes are set out in attachment 1|
and attachment 2 to this resolution.

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. I to the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 23 of 24




Appeals:

A request for judicial review of the SCA amendment for the Revised Project is subject to the
requirements of the Administrative Procedures Act, Chapter 34.05 RCW.

DATED at Olympia, Washington and effective on November _ , 2018

WASHINGTON ENERGY FACILITY SITE EVALUATION COUNCIL

By: Attested:

Kathleen Drew, EFSEC Chair Stephen Posner, EFSEC Manager

Attachments: 1. EFSEC SEPA Addendum to the FSEIS

2. EFSEC SEPA revised staff memorandum to Stephen Posner

Resolution No. 343 Amendment No. 1 to the

Desert Claim Wind Power Project Site Certification Agreement Page 24 of 24



SITE CERTIFICATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE STATE OF WASHINGTON AND

DESERT CLAIM WIND POWER LLC

For the

DESERT CLAIM WIND POWER PROJECT
KITTITAS COUNTY, WASHINGTON

ENERGY FACILITY SITE EVALUATION COUNCIL
OLYMPIA, WASHINGTON

EXECUTED FEBRUARY 1, 2010

Amendment No. 1: Resolution No. 343
November 13, 2018




(yuv}q 1fa] Ajppuorjuajur 23vd s1yy)



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
SITE CERTIFICATION AGREEMENT
FOR THE DESERT CLAIM WIND POWER PROJECT
TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I: SITE CERTIFICATION ...ttt sn e snaas e 2
A. SR ORI <o siimsniniion s S e R R AN R R 2
B. Site et IICRtION uuieaism s s S sSSP P 3
C. Project DeSCriPion.....cuici it e 3
ARTIGLE 1l DEEINELTONS ooy s s s s s s s e s Cassss e s 5
ARTICLE IT; GENERAL CONIITICINE ...cooviciniinmmmmmsmmmssimmssssmmmsmsmmsss s 8
A. Legal RelationShip ..ooveeciiceieiiiec ettt 8
B. By st 1 11 R — 8
C. Nolinegand Billags.......coum s eassmamrasmavon 8
D. Rights OF INSPECHION .. coarssassesssnisessssessssrssassssassssassossisrssaseissssssissssssissssssnisissisinsssninnes 9
E. R e ter ot OF FRBOONAE. ccommmn oo s s s s aimmm s o s R a3 s v e SRR oo s wss 9
E. Consolidation of Plans and Submittal to EFSEC........ccccooiiiiiiiiiicce 9
G. Site Certification Agreement Compliance Monitoring and Costs .......ccccceeevuennee. 9
H. SR 120107214 o) 1 F TP PP, 5
i EFSEC LIZISON. .cuietittiitieteeteeie ettt ettt e sns s 10
J. Changes i Project Management Personmiel. .. amavesmimmmmmmammmmmis 10
K. Amendment of Site Certification Agreement......nmummisimamsissssrsissasessmess 10
L ST Of PRBCOUHRBIGE . .nrmmrsrnemsasemssnensassnssasnsssmmsnnsssanssnnssssnssansesass s SHAUE RIS AREIARITIFS 11
M. Review and Approval Process; EXeeplions ..o 11

ARTICLE IV: PLANS, APPROVALS AND ACTIONS REQUIRED PRIOR TO
CONSTRIUCTIOMN. ..o cenrssssmanmsnnsanmamsamenssnsszssssasessansassssssmssssasbsssassssssss sasass s aonses 12
A. Notice of Federal Permil APPIOVEAIS cisusumssonmmmmissomsvmissmammmrics 12
B. Mitigation MEASUTES .....ccecuieieiiriiieiie ettt nnaene s 12
C. Constuetion Bormwalst PINS: .. csummwuanussmsamnsmsn s 12
D. Initial Site Restoration Plan ........c.ccoiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiciiiccesisces s 13
E. Habitat, Vegetation, and Fish and Wildlife Mitigation..........cccoccovevniininnnnnnn, 14



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(continued)

Page
E. Construction Traffic Development Standards ...............coooiviiiiiiiiiiiccce. 19
G. Federal Aviation Administration REVIEW ........ccecererivierieirierieesee e, 20
H. Cultural 'and Archeclogieal Resouroes PIan w.smnaaussmssssmmsamisaissas 20
. Lonsieiion Emergeay BIan. ..oowmwmmsmmmmsssmosmmssenscsmsmssvessmnsveons 21
J. Construction Management Plan............ccccoovivininiiiiiiiiiiessessne s 22
K. Construction Schedile:...coussmmmuenmmasssssnmss e 22
L. Construction Plans and Specifications.........cccoovvriiienierniesecieseeeeeeeecieennenns 23
ARTIELE ¥: PROJECT CONSTRUCTTION icciiicimmmmmsinsssssisssasrasonssssonssmsnsenssasssssessssassasssssanss 23
A. Environmental Monitoring During Construction. .ci.siaassissssiasssssssesssns 23
B. Quarterly Construction REPOITS .....c..oviiiiiiiiiiii it 25
A Constraction INBPeEtiOn e i s i s o iR bosksiestamnen 25
D. A BRI DIAWWARES oo nuiscssmsmmsnssnnamssimemosaamis s s AT RSB A VAN 25
E. Habitat, Vegetation, Fish and Wildlife ...........coooiiioiiiieeeeeeeee e 25
E. ConBtIE On TN TRE, «uscsssmmmmasssussnsrsssssosmmss oo SUTAY AR5 59 AEH VA TR SRR 26
G. Construction Safety and SeCurity........cccoccoviiiiiiieiiiiic e 26
H. B T TV OIRE i isinsa iR s s Sisaansi o mnsns e s s dn s SRS AR AR TR AR AR A RO E 27
L. Contaminated Seils: ....ivmumummemmamnnmmessssasmmsathaissmiisisas 27
J. Light, Glare and AesthetiCs.......coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciii ettt 27
K. Constroction Wastes and Clean-Up . ninmmmnnmnassimisasisssmitseasassinmms 27

ARTICLE VI: SUBMITTALS REQUIRED PRIOR TO THE BEGINNING OF
COMMERCIAL OPERATION ..ottt 28
A. Operations Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan ............c.ccooovveivevceivivevennnne. 28
B. Emergency PLans. ..ot 28
C. Post-Construction Avian Monitoring Plan..........cccccceveeiiiiiinicicirceeeennn 29
D. Post-Construction Bald Eagle Study Plan.....oussssinssonsbumsins 29
E: Pre-Operation Bat Survey and Bat Monitoring Plan ...........coccoeiivveecccennn, 30
ARTICLE VIEPROJECT OPERA TION s st 30
A. Water DISChar@e.........ovioioiiiiiii e 30
B. e 1L I — 31
C. Fugitive Dust EMISSIONS ...ocuiiviiiiiiiicics ettt 31



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(continued)
Page
D. Habitat, Vegetation and Wildlife BMPS ... 31
B DA I BRI o R R S G R T S TR s 32
E. Dangereus-or Hazardous Materials. .......commmmsiiamsmsississseie 32
G. Decommissioning of Individual Wind Turbine Generators..........cccovvevverveieenns 33
H. Shadow Flicker Mitigation Measures: .ot i simsersssn s 33
ARTICLE VIII: PROJECT TERMINATION, DECOMMISSIONING AND SITE
RESTORATION ..ottt ettt ettt e et e et e e saa e e st aeeanteeraeee 34
A. Detpiled Site Restorstion: PN . nmmsmmmvanmmnsmsie sy i s 34
B. Project Termination ... 34
C. Decomanssiohiig Tiniig Ald SEOPE ... co.isesismassisisionimssmsimamsnasiississssnsions 34
D. Decomnissioning Fundingand Burely . wiwsisisamisssssmmyvasmmveiveasissias 35
ARTICLE IX: SITE CERTIFICATION AGREEMENT - SIGNATURES ..o 36

-iii-



- |

Attachments
1. Project Legal Description

.5 Council Order No. 843, Order Recommending Approval of Site Certification on
Condition entered November 16, 2009.

3. Stipulation between Counsel for the Environment and Desert Claim Wind Power LLC,
Exhibit 30 in the adjudicative proceeding.

4. Agreement between Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife (WDFW) and Desert
Claim Wind Power LLC, Exhibit 20 in the adjudicative proceeding.

3. Council Resolution No. 343, approval of the February 26, 2018 SCA Amendment
Request.



SITE CERTIFICATION AGREEMENT

FOR THE DESERT CLAIM WIND POWER PROJECT
between

THE STATE OF WASHINGTON
and

DESERT CLAIM WIND POWER LLC.

This Site Certification Agreement (Agreement) is made pursuant to Revised Code of
Washington (RCW) 80.50, by and between the State of Washington, acting by and through the
Governor of Washington State, and Desert Claim Wind Power LLC, (Desert Claim or Certificate
Holder).

Desert Claim filed, as permitted by law, an application with the Energy Facility Site
Evaluation Council (EFSEC or Council) for site certification for the construction and operation
of a wind powered generation facility to be located in Kittitas County, Washington. The Council
reviewed Application 2006-02, conducted public meetings and adjudicative hearings, and by
order recommended approval of the application by the Governor. On February 2, 2010, the
Governor approved the Site Certification Agreement (SCA) authorizing Desert Claim to
construct and operate the Desert Claim Wind Power Project (Project). A request for Amendment
to the SCA was submitted to EFSEC on February 26, 2018 (Amendment Request).! On
November 13, 2018, the Council approved Amendment No. 1 by resolution No. 343 (Attachment
o)

The parties hereby now desire to set forth all terms, conditions, and covenants in relation
to such site certification in this Agreement pursuant to RCW 80.50.100(1).

ARTICLE I: SITE CERTIFICATION
A. Site Description

The site on which the Desert Claim Wind Power Project (Project) is to be constructed and
operated is located in unincorporated Kittitas County, and is described more particularly in
Attachment 1 to this Agreement.

" The original Desert Claim proposal was first reviewed by Kittitas County (the County) in 2005, prior to Desert
Claim’s application to EFSEC. At that time, the County conducted an environmental review that resulted in
preparation of a Final Environmental Impact Statement (FEIS). In April 2005, the County denied the project as it
had been proposed. In January 2009, the project was reconfigured and Desert Claim submitted a revised application
(Revised Application) for Site Certification to EFSEC. On February 2, 2010 the Revised Project was approved. An
SCA Amendment request was submitted to EFSEC on February 26, 2018 to further revise the project.



B. Site Certification

The State of Washington hereby authorizes Desert Claim Wind Power LLC (Desert Claim or
Certificate Holder), any and all parent companies, and any and all assignees or successors
approved by the Council to construct and/or operate the Project, as described in Article L.A. of
this Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in Council Order No. 843, Council
Order Recommending Site Certification on Condition (Attachment 2 to this Agreement), Council
Resolution No. 343, and this Site Certification Agreement.

The construction and operation authorized in this Agreement shall be located within the areas
designated herein and in the Amendment Request.

This Site Certification Agreement authorizes the Certificate Holder to construct the Project such
that Substantial Completion is achieved no later than five (5) years from the date that
Amendment No. | is approved by the Council; provided, however, that such construction is not
delayed by a force majeure event, and that the construction schedule that the Certificate Holder
submits pursuant to Article [V.K of this Agreement demonstrates its intention and good faith
basis to believe that construction shall be completed within eighteen (18) months of beginning
Construction.

The Certificate Holder may begin Commercial Operation of some wind turbine generators prior
to completing construction of all wind turbine generators and other Project components,
provided all necessary Project elements are in place for safe operation of the completed wind
turbine generators and their operation will not adversely affect any obligations under this
Agreement.

C. Project Description

The Desert Claim Wind Power Project will consist of: wind turbine generators (WTGs);
permanent meteorological towers; access roadways; electrical collection/interconnection and
communication systems and their respective corridors and rights of way: electrical step-up and
interconnection substations; an operations and maintenance (O&M) facility; temporary
construction-related facilities; other related Project facilities as described in the Amendment
Request.

The location of Project facilities including, but not limited to, the turbines, roadways, electrical
collection and distribution system, operations and maintenance facility, electrical substations,
electrical feeder lines and other related Project facilities, is generally described in the
Amendment Request. The final location of the WTGs and other project facilities within the
Project Area may vary from the locations shown on the conceptual drawings in the Amendment
Request, but shall be consistent with the conditions of this Agreement and in accordance with the
final construction plans approved by EFSEC pursuant to Article [V. L.

Ls Wind Turbine Generators (WTGs). The Project shall consist of a maximum of thirty-one
(31), 3-bladed wind turbines on tubular steel towers, not to exceed a maximum height
(hub height plus blade tip height) of 150 meters (492 feet), with a capacity ranging from
2.0 to 4.2 megawatts (MW). The total capacity for the project will not exceed 100 MW,

8 =



The WTGs will be equipped with turbine control, safety and braking systems, and will be
interconnected to a central Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system.

Meteorological Towers. The Project will include up to four (4) free-standing (non-
guyed) permanent meteorological towers. The height of the meteorological towers shall
not exceed the hub height of the WTGs selected.

Internal Access Roads. The Project will include approximately twenty (20) miles of
internal roads for access to the WTGs and other Project facilities.

Electrical Collection/Interconnection and Communication Systems.

a) Collector System. The electrical output of the WTGs will be collected and
transmitted to the Project Substation via a system of underground and overhead
electric cables. Fiber optic or copper communication wires will also link the
individual WTGs to a central computer monitoring system.

b) Project Step-Up Substation(s). Power from the Project will be collected and fed
to the Puget Sound Energy (PSE) or the Bonneville Power Administration (BPA)
high voltage transmission lines through a Project step-up substation. The step-up
substation would connect to the respective PSE or BPA interconnect.

c) Interconnecting Transmission Systems. The Project will interconnect with the
BPA and/or PSE transmission systems on or adjacent to the Project site.

Operations and Maintenance Facility.

a) The Operations and Maintenance (O&M) facility will include a main building
with offices, restrooms, reception area, outdoor parking facilities, turn-around
area, laydown area, outdoor lighting and gated access. The O&M facility
building will have a foundation footprint of approximately 5,000 sq. ft. and will
be placed on a site of approximately four (4) acres.

b) The O&M facility will include a permit-exempt well (withdrawing less than 5,000
gallons of water per day) for water supply. Sanitary wastewater from the
maintenance facility will be discharged to an on-site septic system.

Turbine Setbacks.

Turbines shall meet the following setback requirements:

Setback from occupied residences = 2,500 feet

Setback from external Project Area boundaries = 1.25 x tip height

Setback from road and transmission line rights of way = 1.25 x tip height

Setback from barns and buildings = tip height

sdle



For purposes of this Article, “residence” means the primary physical structure on a residential lot
utilized as a single family home: the term includes the entire structure within the main walls and
the eaves of the roof, but does not include uncovered decks, uncovered patios, or outbuildings.

Distance shall be measured horizontally from the centerline of the turbine tower to the outermost
envelope of the residence considered, or to the outermost edge of the road or other feature
considered.

ARTICLE II: DEFINITIONS

Where used in this Site Certification Agreement, the following terms shall have the meaning set
forth below:

Iz “Amendment Request™ means the request for amendment submitted by Desert Claim
Wind Power on February 26, 2018.

2. “Amendment No. 1" means this formal written agreement, as amended and approved by
Council Resolution No. 343.

3 “Application” means the Application for Site Certification: Desert Claim Wind Power
Project, designated No. 2006-02, submitted November 6, 2006, as supplemented in the
Revised Application filed in February 2009.

4. “Approval” (by EFSEC) means an affirmative action by EFSEC or its authorized agents
regarding documents, plans, designs, programs, or other similar requirements submitted
pursuant to this Agreement.

5. “Begin Commercial Operation” or “Beginning of Commercial Operation” means the time
when the Project begins generating and delivering electricity to the electric power grid,
other than electricity that may delivered as a part of testing and startup of the Project.

6. “BMPs™ means Best Management Practices.

1 “Bonneville” or “BPA™ means Bonneville Power Administration.

8. “Certificate Holder” means Desert Claim Wind Power LL.C, any and all parent
company(ies), or an assignee or successor in interest authorized by the Council.

9. “CFE” means the Counsel for the Environment serving by appointment pursuant to RCW
80.50.080.

10.  “Construction” means any of the following activities: any foundation construction

including hole excavation, form work, rebar, excavation and pouring of concrete for the
WTGs, the operations and maintenance facility building, or the substations and erection
of any permanent, above-ground structures including any transmission line poles,
substation poles, meteorological towers, or turbine towers.

1. “County” means Kittitas County, Washington.

-5



I.2.

13

14.

15.

16.

L7

18.

19.

20.

21,

22

23.

24.

“DAHP” means the Washington State Department of Archeology and Historic
Preservation.

“Desert Claim Wind Power Project” or “Project” means: wind turbine generators
(WTGs) and their construction areas; permanent meteorological towers; access roadways;
electrical collection/interconnection and communication systems and their respective
corridors and rights-of-way; electrical step-up and interconnection substations; an
operations and maintenance facility; temporary construction-related facilities; other
related Project facilities as described in the Revised Application. The specific
components of the Project are identified in Article 1.0.

“DNR™ means the Washington State Department of Natural Resources.
“Ecology” means the Washington State Department of Ecology.

“EFSEC” or “Council” means the State of Washington Energy Facility Site Evaluation
Council, or such other agency or agencies of the State of Washington as may hereafter
succeed to the powers of EFSEC for the purposes of this Agreement.

“EFSEC Costs” means any and all reasonable costs, both direct and indirect, associated
with EFSEC activities with respect to this Site Certification Agreement (SCA), including
but not limited to monitoring, staffing and SCA maintenance.

“EIS” or “Final EIS” means the Desert Claim Wind Power Project Final Environmental
Impact Statement (August 2004) issued by Kittitas County pursuant to the requirements
of the State Environmental Policy Act, and adopted by EFSEC.

“End of Construction™ means the time when all Project facilities have been substantially
constructed and are in operation.

“FAA™ means the Federal Aviation Administration.

“Force Majeure Event” means any event beyond the control of the Party affected that
directly prevents or delays the performance by that Party of any obligation arising under
this Agreement, including an event that is within one or more of the following categories:
condemnation; expropriation; invasion; plague; drought; landslide; tornado; hurricane;
tsunami; flood; lightning; earthquake; fire; explosion; epidemic; quarantine; war
(declared or undeclared), terrorism or other armed conflict; material physical damage to
the Project caused by third parties; riot or similar civil disturbance or commotion; other
acts of God; acts of the public enemy; blockade; insurrection, riot or revolution; sabotage
or vandalism; embargoes; and, actions of a governmental authority other than EFSEC.

“IBC” means the International Building Code.

*Micro-siting” means the final technical and engineering process by which the Certificate
Holder shall determine the final location of each wind turbine generator.

“NPDES permit” means National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit.

-



23, “PSE” means Puget Sound Energy.
26, “RCW™ means the Revised Code of Washington.

27.  “Revised Application” means the Desert Claim Wind Power Revised Application for Site
Certification submitted on February 6, 2009.

28.  “SEIS” or “FSEIS” (also “Supplemental EIS or “Final Supplemental EIS™) means the
Desert Claim Wind Power Project Final Supplemental Environmental Impact Statement
issued on November 6, 2009 by EFSEC pursuant to the requirements of the State
Environmental Policy Act.

29.  “SEPA Addendum™ Means the Final Addendum to the Final Supplemental EIS issued on
November 1, 2018 by EFSEC, pursuant to the requirements of the State Environmental
Policy Act (SEPA).

30. “Site,” “Project Site” or “Project Area” means the approximately 4,400 acre property
identified in Attachment 1, located in Kittitas County, on which the Project is to be
constructed and operated.

31.  “Site Certification Agreement,” “SCA™ or “Agreement” means this formal written
agreement between the Certificate Holder and the State of Washington, including all
attachments hereto and exhibits, modifications, amendments, and documents
incorporated herein.

32, “Site Preparation” means any of the following activities: Project Site clearing, grading,
earth moving, cutting or filling, excavation, and preparation of roads and/or laydown
areas.

33.  “State” or “state” means the state of Washington.

34.  “Substantial Completion™ means the Project is generating and delivering energy to the

electric power grid.
35. “TAC” means Technical Advisory Committee as described in Article [V.E.8.
36. “UBC” means the Uniform Building Code of 2015.
37. “WAC” means the Washington Administrative Code.
38. “WDFW™ means the Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife.
39. “WSDOT” means the Washington State Department of Transportation.

40.  “WTG"” means wind turbine generator.



ARTICLE IIl: GENERAL CONDITIONS
A. Legal Relationship

1. This Agreement shall bind the Certificate Holder, and its successors in interest, and the
State and any of its departments, agencies, divisions, bureaus, commissions, boards, and
its political subdivisions, subject to all the terms and conditions set forth herein, as to the
approval of, and all activities undertaken with respect to, the Project or the Site. The
Certificate Holder shall ensure that any activities undertaken with respect to the Project
or the Site by its agents (including affiliates), contractors, and subcontractors comply
with this Agreement. The term “affiliates” includes any other person or entity
controlling, controlled by, or under common control of or with the Certificate Holder.

2, This Agreement, which includes those commitments made by the Certificate Holder in
the Revised Application, the Amendment Request, and in the testimony and exhibits in
the Applicant’s direct case, the Certificate Holder’s Stipulation with Counsel for the
Environment and its Agreement with the Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife
(the Revised Application, the Stipulation and the Agreement are hereby incorporated by
reference), constitutes the whole and complete agreement between the State of
Washington and the Certificate Holder, and supersedes any other negotiations,
representations, or agreements, either written or oral.

B. Enforcement
1 This Agreement may be enforced by resort to all remedies available at law or in equity.

2, This Agreement may be suspended or revoked by EFSEC pursuant to RCW 34.05 and
RCW 80.50, for failure by the Certificate Holder to comply with the terms and conditions
of this Agreement, for violations of RCW 80.50 and the rules promulgated thereunder or
for violation of any applicable resolutions or orders of EFSEC.

3. When any action of the Council is required by or authorized in this Site Certification
Agreement, the Council may, but shall not be legally obligated to, conduct a hearing
pursuant to RCW 34.05.

C. Notices and Filings

Filing of any documents or notices required by this Agreement with EFSEC shall be deemed to
have been duly made when delivery is made to EFSEC’s offices in Thurston County, by hand-
delivery, first class mail, or by e-mail.

Notices to be served by EFSEC on the Certificate Holder shall be deemed to have been duly
made when deposited in first class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the Certificate Holder at
General Counsel, 15445 Innovation Drive, San Diego, California 92128, with a copy to Perkins
Coie LLP, Attention: Karen McGaffey, 1201 Third Avenue, Suite 4800, Seattle, Washington
98101.



D. Rights of Inspection

Throughout the duration of this Agreement, the Certificate Holder shall provide access to the
Site, the Project structures, buildings and facilities, underground and overhead electrical collector
lines, and all records relating to the construction and operation of the Project to designated
representatives of EFSEC in the performance of their official duties. Such duties include, but are
not limited to, environmental monitoring as provided in this Agreement and monitoring and
inspections to verify the Certificate Holder’s compliance with this Agreement. EFSEC

personnel or any designated representatives of EFSEC shall follow all worker safety
requirements observed and enforced on the Project site by the Site Certificate Holder and its
contractors.

E. Retention of Records

The Certificate Holder shall retain such records as are necessary to demonstrate the Certificate
Holder’s compliance with this Agreement.

F. Consolidation of Plans and Submittal to EFSEC

Any plans required by this Agreement may be consolidated with other such plans, if such
consolidation is approved in advance by EFSEC. This Site Certification Agreement includes
time periods for the Certificate Holder to provide certain plans and other information to EFSEC
or its designees. The intent of these time periods is to provide sufficient time for EFSEC or its
designees to review submittals without delay to the Project construction schedule, provided
submittals made to EFSEC and/or its designees are complete.

G. Site Certification Agreement Compliance Monitoring and Costs

The Certificate Holder shall pay to the Council such reasonable monitoring costs as are actually
and necessarily incurred during the construction and operation of the Project to assure
compliance with the conditions of this Agreement as required by RCW 80.50. The amount and
manner of payment shall be prescribed by EFSEC pursuant to applicable rules and procedures.

The Certificate Holder shall deposit or otherwise guarantee payment of all EFSEC Costs as
defined in Article I1.15, for the period commensurate with the activities of this Agreement.
EFSEC shall provide the Certificate Holder an annual estimate of such costs. Any instrument
guaranteeing payment of EFSEC’s costs shall be structured in such a manner as to allow EFSEC
to collect from a third party and without approval of the Certificate Holder any such costs which
the Certificate Holder fails to pay to EFSEC during any preceding billing period.

H. Site Restoration

The Certificate Holder is responsible for site restoration pursuant to the Council’s rules, WAC
463-72 in effect at the time of submittal of the Application.

The Certificate Holder shall develop an Initial Site Restoration Plan in accordance with the

requirements set out in Article IV.D of this Agreement and in consultation with WDFW, and
submit it to EFSEC for approval. The Certificate Holder may not begin Site Preparation or

<8 s



Construction until the Council has approved the Initial Site Restoration Plan, including the
posting of all necessary guarantees, securities or funds associated therewith.

The Certificate Holder shall submit a detailed site restoration plan to EFSEC for approval in
accordance with the requirements of Article VIII.A. of this Agreement.

I. EFSEC Liaison

No later than thirty (30) days from the effective date of this Agreement, the Certificate Holder
shall designate a person to act as a liaison between EFSEC and the Certificate Holder.

J. Changes in Project Management Personnel

The Certificate Holder shall notify EFSEC of any change in the primary management personnel,
or scope of responsibilities of such personnel, for the Project.

K. Amendment of Site Certification Agreement

ls This Agreement may be amended pursuant to EFSEC rules and procedures applicable at
the time of the request for amendment. Any requests by the Certificate Holder for
amendments to this Agreement shall be made in writing.

2 No change in ownership or control of the Project shall be effective without prior Council
approval pursuant to EFSEC rules and procedures.

i Unless otherwise required by EFSEC, any change in the terms or conditions of the
following Sections or Attachments to this Agreement shall not require amendment of this
Site Certification Agreement in the manner prescribed in Section K. 1 above: Attachment
I, Project legal description, provided the change does not result in a material alteration of
the size or location of the Project.

4. Repair, maintenance and replacement of Project Facilities

a) The Certificate Holder is permitted. without any further amendment to this
agreement, to repair and maintain Project Facilities described in Article I.C,
including the WTGs, consistent with the terms of this Agreement.

b) The Certificate Holder is permitted to replace the WTGs without amendment to
this Agreement provided the replacement meets the following conditions:

(i) the WTG is being replaced with the same make and model WTG
originally used in the Project (“Replacement Turbine™); or the WTG is
being replaced with a wind turbine that is within the size limits and
general configuration defined in Article I.C, Project Description
(“Comparable Turbine™);

(i)  the Replacement Turbine or Comparable Turbine is located in the same
location as the WTG being replaced; and

- 10 -



L.

(iii)  the Replacement Turbine or Comparable Turbine meets all other
conditions set out in this Agreement.

c) The Certificate Holder shall notify EFSEC of the replacement of a WTG no later
than thirty (30) days prior to the replacement occurring.

In circumstances where the Project causes a significant adverse impact on the
environment not previously analyzed or anticipated by this Agreement, including wildlife
impacts that significantly exceed projections anticipated in the Amendment Request, the
Final EIS or Final SEIS, or where such impacts are imminent, EFSEC shall take all steps
it deems reasonably necessary, including imposition of specific conditions or
requirements on the Certificate Holder as a consequence of such a situation in addition to
the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Such additional conditions or requirements
initially shall be effective for not more than ninety (90) days, and may be extended once
for an additional ninety (90) day period if deemed necessary by EFSEC to pursue
ongoing, or continuing temporary, arrangements under other authority, including but not
limited to RCW 34.05, RCW 80.50 RCW or Title 463 WAC.

Order of Precedence

In the event of an inconsistency or apparent ambiguity in this Agreement, the inconsistency or
ambiguity shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following order:

2

Applicable federal and State of Washington statutes and regulations;

The body of this Site Certification Agreement, including any other provision, term or
material incorporated herein by reference or otherwise attached to, or incorporated in, this
Site Certification Agreement;

Representations in Applicant’s testimony and exhibits in the adjudicative proceeding in
this matter;

The application of common sense to effect a result consistent with law and the principles
effected in this document.

Review and Approval Process; Exceptions

Except for the Initial & Final Site Restoration Plans, prior to any site work, the Council
may delegate to the EFSEC Manager authority to approve or deny the construction and
operational plans required by the this Agreement. The EFSEC Manager shall ensure the
construction and operational plans have been sufficiently reviewed prior to approval.

The Council Manager may allow temporary exceptions from plan requirements or
provisions of the SCA when such exceptions are not contrary to the purposes of the SCA,
provided that a record is kept and Council members are immediately notified. Any
Council member may within seven days of the notice put the item on a Council meeting
agenda for review.

= i =



ARTICLE IV: PLANS, APPROVALS AND
ACTIONS REQUIRED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION

A. Notice of Federal Permit Approvals

No later than thirty (30) days after the effective date of this Agreement, the Certificate Holder
shall notify the Council of all Federal permits, not delegated to EFSEC, that are required for
construction and operation of the Project, if any, and the anticipated date of permit issuance to
the Certificate Holder. The Certificate Holder shall notify the Council when all required federal
permits have been obtained, no later than ten (10) business days after the last permit has been
issued.

B. Mitigation Measures

During construction, operation, decommissioning, and site restoration of this Project, the
Certificate Holder shall implement the mitigation measures set forth in this Agreement, including
those presented in the Revised Application, the Amendment Request or identified in the final
SEIS and SEPA Addendum as commitments made by Desert Claim.

No later than sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of Site Preparation, the Certificate Holder
shall file with EFSEC a comprehensive list of these mitigation measures. For each of these
mitigation measures, the Certificate Holder shall in the same filing further identify the
construction plan and/or operation plan addressing the methodology for its achievement.

The specific plans and submittals listed in the remainder of this Article IV, and Articles V, VI,
VII and VIII, shall incorporate these mitigation measures as applicable.

C. Construction Stormwater Plans

L, Notice of Intent. No later than sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of Site Preparation
the Certificate Holder shall file with EFSEC a Notice of Intent to be covered by a General
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit for Stormwater
Discharges Associated with Construction Activities.

2. Construction Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan. No later than sixty (60) days prior to
the beginning of Site Preparation, the Certificate Holder shall submit to EFSEC a
Construction Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (Construction SWPPP), and provide
a copy to WDFW for comment. The Construction SWPPP shall meet the requirements of
the Ecology stormwater pollution prevention program (WAC 173- 230), and the
objectives and requirements in Special Condition S.9. of the National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System and State Waste Discharge General Permit for
Stormwater Discharges Associated with Construction Activities issued by the Department
of Ecology on November 16, 2005 or as revised. The Certificate Holder shall not begin
Site Preparation prior to obtaining Council approval of the Construction SWPPP.

The Construction SWPPP shall identify a regular inspection and maintenance schedule
for all erosion control structures. The schedule shall include inspections after significant
rainfall events. Any damaged structures shall be addressed immediately. Inspections,

-12-



and subsequent erosion control structure corrections, shall be documented in writing and
available for EFSEC’s review on request.

3. Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control Plan. The Certificate Holder shall develop a
Temporary Erosion and Sediment Control (TESC) Plan. No later than sixty (60) days
prior to the beginning of Site Preparation, the Certificate Holder shall submit the TESC
Plan to the Council for approval and provide a copy to WDFW for comment. The
Certificate Holder shall not begin Site Preparation prior to obtaining Council approval of
the TESC Plan. As an alternative to submitting a separate TESC Plan, the Certificate
Holder may include measures for temporary erosion and sedimentation control in the
Construction SWPPP required in Article IV, Section C.2, above.

4. Construction Spill Prevention, Control and Countermeasures Plan. The Certificate
Holder shall develop a Construction Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasures Plan
(Construction SPCCP), consistent with the requirements of 40 CFR Part 112. The
Construction SPCCP shall include the Site, feeder line corridors, and all access roads.
The Certificate Holder shall require all contractors working on the facility to have a spill
prevention and countermeasure program consistent with 40 CFR Part 112. No later than
sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of Site Preparation, the Certificate Holder shall
submit the Construction SPCCP to the Council for approval and provide a copy to
WDFW and Ecology for comment. The Certificate Holder shall not begin Site
Preparation prior to obtaining Council approval of the Construction SPCCP. All
applicable elements of the Construction SPCCP shall be implemented prior to the
beginning of Site Preparation.

D. Initial Site Restoration Plan

The Certificate Holder is responsible for Project decommissioning and site restoration pursuant
to Council rules. The Certificate Holder shall develop an Initial Site Restoration Plan, pursuant
to the requirements of WAC 463-72-040 in effect on the date of Application, in consultation with
WDFW. The Certificate Holder shall submit the Initial Site Restoration Plan to the Council for
review at least sixty (90) days prior to the beginning of Site Preparation. The Certificate Holder
shall not begin Site Preparation prior to obtaining approval of the Initial Site Restoration Plan
from the Council.

The Initial Site Restoration Plan shall be prepared in sufficient detail to identify, evaluate, and
resolve all major environmental and public health and safety issues reasonably anticipated by the
Certificate Holder on the date the Plan is submitted to EFSEC. The Initial Site Restoration Plan
shall describe the process used to evaluate the options and select the measures that will be taken
to restore or preserve the Project site or otherwise protect the public against risks or danger
resulting from the Project. The Initial Site Restoration Plan shall include a discussion of
economic factors regarding the costs and benefits of various restoration options versus the
relative public risk, and shall address provisions for funding or bonding arrangements to meet the
Project site restoration or management costs. The Initial Site Restoration Plan shall be prepared
in detail commensurate with the time until site restoration is to begin. The scope of proposed
monitoring shall be addressed in the Initial Site Restoration Plan.

w [§



The objective of the Plan shall be to restore the site to approximate pre-Project condition or
better. The Plan shall require removal of the wind turbine nacelles, blades, towers, foundations,
cables and other facilities to a depth of four feet below grade, regrading of areas around the
Project facilities and final restoration of disturbed land. Among other things, the Plan will
address timing and intensity of grazing to ensure successful revegetation.

The Plan shall include the following elements:
1. Decommissioning Timing and Scope, as required by Article VIIL.C. of this Agreement.
) Decommissioning Funding and Surety, as required by Article VIIL.D. of this Agreement.

3. Mitigation measures described in the Revised Application, the Amendment Request,
Final EIS, Final SEIS, and SEPA Addendum that will be implemented for
decommissioning of the Project.

4, An Initial Site Restoration Plan, which shall address both the possibility that site
restoration will occur prior to, or at the end of, the useful life of the Project and also the
possibility of the Project being suspended or terminated during construction.

5. A description of the assumptions underlying the plan. For example, the plan should
explain the anticipated useful life of the Project, the anticipated time frame of site
restoration, and the anticipated future use of the site.

6. An initial plan for demolishing facilities, salvaging equipment, and disposing of waste
materials.

7. Performing an on-site audit, and preparing an initial plan for disposing of hazardous
materials (if any) present on the site and remediation of hazardous contamination (if any)
at the site.

8. An initial plan for restoring the site, including the removal of structures and foundations

to four feet below grade and the regrading of the site.

9. Provisions for preservation or removal of Project facilities if the Project is suspended or
terminated during construction.

| Habitat, Vegetation, and Fish and Wildlife Mitigation

1. Habitat Mitigation Plan. Prior to the beginning of Site Preparation, the Certificate Holder
shall develop a Habitat Mitigation Plan in consultation with WDFW, based upon the
compensatory mitigation ratios outlined in the 2009 WDFW Wind Power Guidelines.
The Certificate Holder shall submit the Habitat Mitigation Plan to EFSEC for approval at
least 60 days prior to the beginning of Site Preparation.

a) The Certificate Holder and WDFW will agree upon a map of habitat types found
within the Project Area (“Habitat Map™). This Habitat Map will be based upon

- 14 -




b)

c)

d)

the Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) maps of soils and ecological
sites, and field investigations of the Project Area.

The Habitat Mitigation Plan will specify the Certificate Holder’s Mitigation
Obligation. The Certificate Holder’s Mitigation Obligation will be calculated
using the mitigation ratios specified in the 2009 WDFW Wind Power Guidelines.
For purposes of calculating the Mitigation Obligation, expected habitat impacts
will be determined based upon the pre-construction Project Layout drawings and
the habitat types shown on the Habitat Map. Pre-construction Project Layout
drawings will show expected permanent and temporary land disturbances.

The Certificate Holder may satisfy its Mitigation Obligation either by purchasing
a mutually acceptable mitigation parcel and deeding it to WDFW or a mutually
acceptable third party, by contributing money to a mutually acceptable third-party
that owns or will purchase a mitigation parcel, or by paying WDFW a fee of one
thousand seven hundred fifty dollars ($1,750.00) per acre in lieu of mitigation. If
the Certificate Holder has not satisfied its Mitigation Obligation prior to
commencing Site Preparation, the Certificate Holder will provide a letter of credit
to EFSEC in an amount sufficient to provide financial security for the Mitigation
Obligation. The Certificate Holder will be required to satisfy its Mitigation
Obligation prior to commencing commercial operation of the Project.

The Habitat Mitigation Plan will include a process to determine the actual impacts
to habitat following the completion of construction. In the event that actual
impacts to habitat exceed the expected impacts determined prior to construction,
the Habitat Mitigation Plan will include a mechanism for the Certificate Holder to
provide supplemental compensatory mitigation (Supplemental Mitigation).
Supplemental Mitigation, if any, may take the form of an additional mitigation
parcel, the contribution of additional funds to a third-party who owns or will
purchase an additional mitigation parcel, or the payment of an additional fee of
one thousand seven hundred fifty dollars ($1,750.00) per acre to WDFW lieu of
mitigation.

Rare Plants. The Certificate Holder shall complete a rare plant survey of the Project

Area. If plants of concern are identified on the Project site and significant adverse
impacts to such plants are anticipated, then the Certificate Holder shall develop a Plant
Conservation Plan in consultation with the Washington Natural Heritage Program and
submit it to EFSEC for approval no later than 60 days prior to the beginning of Site
Preparation.

Wetlands, Streams and Riparian Areas.

a)

Except as authorized by a Clean Water Act section 404 permit, construction of the
Project shall not result in any temporary or permanent disturbance of wetlands or
other surface waters considered to be Waters of the United States by the
Department of the Army, Corps of Engineers for purposes of the Clean Water
Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1301 et seq.

=15 =



b)

d)

Prior to construction of the site, a final set of wetland buffers, setbacks, and
mitigation standards for permanent and temporary impacts shall be determined by
EFSEC in consultation with Ecology. Wetland buffers shall be determined in
accordance with applicable provisions of the Kittitas County Code for Critical
Areas in KCC 17A. Where supported by the following Ecology guidance
documents, EFSEC may require buffers of greater width than would be required
under KCC 17A: Wetland Mitigation in Washington State - Part 1: Agency
Policies and Guidance, Ecology Publication #06-06-011a (March 2006); Wetland
Mitigation in Washington State - Part 2: Developing Mitigation Plans, Ecology
Publication #06-06-011b (March 2006); Update on Wetland Buffers: The State of
the Science, Final Report, Ecology Publication #13-06-11 (October 2013). Based
on the final wetlands mitigation requirements from EFSEC, the Certificate Holder
shall submit a Wetlands Mitigation Plan to EFSEC for approval at least sixty (60)
days prior to the beginning of Site Preparation, which shall summarize how the
Site is in compliance with those wetland buffers, setbacks and mitigation
standards.

The Certificate Holder will be required to conduct wetland mitigation monitoring
for a period of 10 years.

When finalizing construction plans, the Certificate Holder will coordinate with
WDFW and Ecology regarding finalizing construction and operating plans, in
relation to micro-siting of project facilities and roads, in order to avoid or
minimize the facility elements’ temporary and permanent impacts on streams and
wetlands.

If any unanticipated disturbance of wetlands occurs, the Certificate Holder shall
prepare a Wetlands Restoration Plan in consultation with WDFW and submit it to
EFSEC for approval.

Prior to any construction work affecting the bed or flow of in waters of the State
(including seasonally dry channels), the Certificate Holder will consult with and
obtain approval from WDFW, and provide documentation of such approval to
EFSEC. At least sixty (60) days prior to beginning any such channel work, the
Certificate Holder shall submit construction drawings to EFSEC for review and
approval. The drawings shall specify the exact locations of work to be conducted,
buffers that are required, and best management practices and mitigation measures
that will be implemented as required by this article.

Construction Soil Management and Vegetation Plan. In consultation with WDFW, the

Certificate Holder shall develop a Construction Soil Management and Vegetation Plan.
No later than sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of Site Preparation, the Construction
Soil Management and Vegetation Plan shall be submitted to the Council for review and
approval. The Certificate Holder shall not begin Site Preparation prior to obtaining
EFSEC approval of the Soil Management and Vegetation Plan.

« s



Wet Season Construction. Construction activities are not restricted to particular seasons
however the Certificate Holder shall attempt to sequence construction activities in order
to minimize temporary earth disturbances during the wet season where practical. In
particular, the Certificate Holder shall avoid earth-disturbing activities that result in
distinct areas of temporary habitat disturbance (e.g. cross- county trenching to install
electric collector system lines) in shrub-steppe areas when soils are saturated (which
commonly occurs from mid-November through April) to the greatest extent possible. If
such activities are to take place during periods of soil saturation, the Certificate Holder
shall consult with WDFW to develop a specific plan incorporating strategies and best
management practices to minimize the environmental impacts of the activities and
additional restoration measures to ensure successful restoration of the disturbed habitat.

Habitat Restoration Plan. In consultation with WDFW, the Certificate Holder shall
develop a Habitat Restoration Plan for temporarily disturbed areas.

The Habitat Restoration Plan shall require that all temporarily disturbed areas be reseeded
with an appropriate mix of native, locally-adapted plant species in a manner and sequence
that will maximize the likelihood of successful restoration of the area and prevent the
spread of noxious weeds. Among other things, the Plan shall address the timing and
intensity of grazing during revegetation. The Plan shall include a pre-identified reference
site or sites that the Certificate Holder, the TAC and WDFW can use to gauge the success
of the habitat restoration and revegetation efforts. The Habitat Restoration Plan shall
include a restoration schedule that identifies timing windows during which restoration
should take place, and an overall timeline for when all restoration activities will be
completed. WDFW and the TAC may suggest modifications to the initial Habitat
Restoration Plan as new information becomes available.

No later than sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of Site Preparation, the Habitat
Restoration Plan shall be submitted to the Council for review and approval. The
Certificate Holder shall not begin Site Preparation prior to obtaining EFSEC approval of
the Habitat Restoration Plan.

Noxious Weed Control Plan. In consultation with WDFW, the Certificate Holder shall
develop a Noxious Weed Control Plan. No later than sixty (60) days prior to the
beginning of Site Preparation, the Noxious Weed Control Plan shall be submitted to the
Council for review and approval.

Technical Advisory Committee. The purpose of the Technical Advisory Committee
(TAC) is to ensure that monitoring data collected pursuant to the required Avian
Monitoring Plan (see Article VI.C), the Bat Monitoring Plan (see Article VI.E.) and other
related monitoring data are considered in a forum in which independent and informed
parties can collaborate with the Certificate Holder. The TAC will make
recommendations to EFSEC if it deems additional studies or mitigation are warranted to
address impacts that were either not foreseen in the Revised Application, the Amendment
Request, the Final EIS, the Final SEIS and SEPA Addendum, or significantly exceed
impacts that were projected. In order to make advisory recommendations to EFSEC, the
TAC will review and consider results of Project monitoring studies, including post-

- 1 -



construction avian and bat mortality surveys, and new scientific findings made at wind
generation facilities with respect to the impacts on habitat and wildlife, as they may relate
to the Desert Claim Wind Power Project. The TAC will assess whether the post-
construction restoration and mitigation and monitoring programs for wildlife that have
been identified and implemented merit further studies or additional mitigation, taking into
consideration factors such as the species involved, the nature of the impact, monitoring
trends, and new scientific findings.

The TAC, or individual members thereof, will be authorized to consult, exchange
information, and collaborate with TACs from other wind turbine projects, including the
Kittitas Valley Wind Power Project and the Wild Horse Wind Power Project, for
purposes of identifying and monitoring cumulative environmental impacts, and, if
necessary, developing mitigation recommendations addressing known or newly identified
cumulative impacts related to the construction and operation of wind power projects.

The TAC may include, but need not be limited to, representatives from WDFW, U.S.
Fish and Wildlife Service, Audubon Washington or its member chapters, EFSEC, Kittitas
County, DNR, and the Certificate Holder. EFSEC, at its discretion, may add additional
representatives to the TAC from local interest groups as well as state, local, federal and
tribal governments. All TAC members must be approved by EFSEC.

With the exception of DNR. no representative to the TAC may be party to a turbine lease
agreement, or any other contractual obligation with the Certificate Holder.

No later than sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of Site Preparation, the Certificate
Holder shall contact the agencies and organizations listed above requesting that they
designate a representative to the TAC, and that the agencies or organizations notify
EFSEC in writing of their TAC representative and of their member’s term of
representation. No later than sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of Commercial
Operation, the Certificate Holder shall convene the first meeting of the TAC.

No later than sixty (60) days after the beginning of Construction, the Certificate Holder
shall submit to EFSEC proposed Rules of Procedure describing how the TAC shall
operate, including but not limited to a schedule for meetings, a meeting procedure, a
process for recording meeting discussions, a process for making and presenting timely
TAC recommendations to the Council, and other procedures that will assist the TAC to
function properly and efficiently. The Certificate Holder will provide a copy of the
proposed Rules of Procedure at the first TAC meeting for review and comment. The
TAC may suggest modifications of the plan; any such modifications must be approved by
EFSELC.

The TAC will be convened for the life of the Project, except that EFSEC may terminate
the TAC if: the TAC has ceased to meet due to member attrition; or, the TAC determines
that all of the pre-permitting, operational and post-operational monitoring has been
completed and further monitoring is not necessary; or the TAC members recommend that
it be terminated. If the TAC is terminated or dissolved, EFSEC may reconvene and
reconstitute the TAC at its discretion.

= 8=



10.

F.

The ultimate authority to require implementation of additional mitigation measures,
including any recommended by the TAC, shall reside with EFSEC.

Pre-Construction Raptor Nest Survey. During the nesting season immediately prior to
beginning Site Preparation, the Certificate Holder shall conduct a raptor nest survey. The
results of the survey shall be submitted to EFSEC and will be used to determine timing
restrictions and/or buffer distances to active raptor nests.

Pre-Construction Townsends Ground Squirrel Survey. Prior to commencing Site
Preparation, the Certificate Holder shall survey the Project site for Townsends Ground
Squirrels and/or their burrows, using a protocol developed in consultation with the
WDFW. If Townsends Ground Squirrels are found to exist on the Project site, the
Certificate Holder shall consult with WDFW to determine whether proposed construction
activities are likely to have significant adverse impacts on the Townsends Ground
Squirrel population, taking into account the habitat mitigation being provided by the
Certificate Holder. If the Certificate Holder and WDFW conclude that significant
impacts are likely, the Certificate Holder, in consultation with WDFW, shall develop a
plan to implement reasonable and practical mitigation measures during construction.
This plan shall be submitted to EFSEC for approval thirty (30) days prior to Site
Preparation.

Construction Traffic Development Standards

Development Standards: The Certificate Holder shall incorporate the following development
standards into the design and construction of the Project.

Project Access Roads. Access to the turbines will be achieved via graveled roads
branching from Smithson Road.

Access from County roads shall be constructed with the appropriate slopes and culverts
in accordance with Kittitas County standards in effect on the date of the Application in
this matter. All roads within the site shall be designed in consultation with the fire
services provider, pertinent state agencies and emergency suppliers to ensure that fire
vehicles can gain safe access to the site as necessary to provide emergency services.

Video Monitoring. County roads, including shoulder pavement, shall be video monitored

before and after construction of the Project. The Certificate Holder shall repair any
damage to County roads, such that the roads meet or exceed Kittitas County standards.

Project Site Access. Project roads run across both private and public (DNR) lands. In

order to coordinate access to public lands in accordance with DNR land management
practices, the Certificate Holder will implement an adaptive management approach in
coordination with DNR on the portion of the Project site owned by DNR. Adaptive
management allows for changes over time to the level of control and types of activities
on DNR lands, as needed. In general, the Certificate Holder will permit controlled access
on the DNR lands, as long as it does not interfere with or introduce adverse impacts to
Project operations or personnel. The Certificate Holder will have no obligation to
provide access on or across private lands.

-19-



+ Construction Traffic Management Plan. At least sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of
Site Preparation, the Certificate Holder shall submit to EFSEC for review a Construction
Traffic Management Plan. The Construction Traffic Management Plan should address
increased construction traffic on Smithson Road to limit construction delivery vehicles
during peak travel times and to accommodate agricultural road use on Smithson Road.
The Certificate Holder shall not begin Site Preparation prior to obtaining Council
approval of the Construction Traffic Management Plan. This plan will incorporate those
items outlined in Article IV.F.I through 3, above.

-8 Oversize or Overweight Hauls. The Certificate Holder shall notify EFSEC, at the earliest
time possible, of any permits or approvals required to conduct oversize or overweight
hauls.

G. Federal Aviation Administration Review

No later than thirty (30) days prior to the beginning of Construction, the Certificate Holder shall
provide to EFSEC copies of the Determination of Non-Hazard certificates issued by the Federal
Aviation Administration (FAA).

H. Cultural and Archeological Resources Plan

With the assistance of an experienced archeologist, and in consultation with the Yakama Nation
and the Department of Archeology and Historic Preservation (DAHP), the Certificate Holder
shall develop a Cultural Resources Monitoring and Mitigation Plan for monitoring construction
activities and responding to the discovery of archeological resources or buried human remains.
The development of the Cultural Resources Monitoring and Mitigation Plan must be done in
coordination with DAHP and the Yakama Nation and approved by EFSEC. The following must
be considered during the plan development:
e  Avoidance of the concentrated-resource areas.
e  Habitat rehabilitation of impacted-resource areas as a means of mitigation for impacts to
the diffuse-resource areas.
e  Archaeological sites be provided a minimum 30 meter/100 foot buffer.
e  Archaeological isolates should be further studied and be provided a minimum 15
meter/50 foot buffer.
e 51 rock features should be re-evaluated and recorded as archaeological sites.
e Archaeological monitoring during construction when ground-disturbing activity is
involved.

The Certificate Holder shall provide copies of the draft Plan for comment to potentially affected
tribes, prior to submitting the plan for EFSEC approval. The Certificate Holder shall submit the
Plan to EFSEC for review and approval no later than sixty (60) days prior to the start of Site
Preparation. The Certificate Holder shall not begin Site Preparation prior to obtaining approval
of the Plan from the Council. All applicable elements of the Plan shall be implemented prior to
the start of Site Preparation. The Plan shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

1. The Plan shall provide for the avoidance of significant archeological sites where
practical. For sites to be avoided, the boundaries of identified cultural resources and

=



buffer zones shall be staked in the field and flagged as no-disturbance areas to avoid
inadvertent disturbance during construction. These site markings will be removed
following construction. The Plan shall address alternative mitigation measures to be
implemented if it is not practical to avoid archeological sites or isolates.

The Plan shall address the possibility of the unanticipated discovery of archeological
artifacts during construction. If any archaeological artifacts, including but not limited to
human remains, are observed during construction, disturbance and/or excavation in that
area will cease, and the Certificate Holder shall notify the DAHP, EFSEC, and the
affected tribes and in the case of human remains the County Coroner or Medical
Examiner. At that time, appropriate treatment and mitigation measures shall be
developed in coordination with the agencies and tribes cited above, and implemented
following approval by EFSEC. If Project facilities cannot be moved or re-routed to avoid
the resources, the Certificate Holder shall contact EFSEC and DAHP for further guidance
which may require the implementation of a treatment plan. If a treatment plan is
required, it shall be developed in consultation with DAHP and any affected tribes.

If a tribe requests to have its representatives present during earth-disturbing construction
activities, the Certificate Holder shall accommodate reasonable requests. In all cases the
Certificate Holder shall inform EFSEC of each such tribal request.

Construction Emergency Plan

Construction Emergency Plan. The Certificate Holder shall retain qualified contractors
familiar with the general construction techniques and practices to be used for the Project
and its related support facilities. The construction specifications shall require contractors
to implement a safety program that includes an emergency plan. The Certificate Holder
shall prepare and submit a Construction Emergency Plan to EFSEC for review at least
sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of Site Preparation. The Certificate Holder shall
coordinate development and implementation of the Plan with applicable local and state
emergency services providers. The Certificate Holder shall not begin Site Preparation or
Construction prior to obtaining EFSEC approval of the Construction Emergency Plan.
The Construction Emergency Plan shall include consideration of:

a) Medical emergencies;

b) Construction emergencies;

c) Project Area evacuation;

d) Fire protection and prevention;
e) Flooding;

) Extreme weather abnormalities;

2) Earthquake;

« ¥ s



h) Volcanic Eruption;

i) Facility blackout;

1) Hazardous materials spills;
k) Blade or tower failure;

1) Aircraft impact;

m) Terrorism, sabotage, or vandalism;
n) Bomb threat.

2. Fire Protection Services. Prior to commencing Site Preparation, the Certificate Holder
shall verify continuing protection through DNR for Desert Claim facilities on land leased
from that agency and shall execute a fire protection services agreement with a fire
services provider such as Kittitas Valley Fire and Rescue for the Project site to ensure
that adequate fire protection services are in place during the construction and operations
of the Project.

3. Fire Control Plan. The Certificate Holder shall develop and implement a Fire Control
Plan in coordination with state and local agencies to minimize risk of accidental fire
during construction and to ensure effective response to any fire that does occur on the
Project Site at any time. The Certificate Holder shall submit the Fire Control Plan to
EFSEC for review and approval at least sixty (60) days prior to Site Preparation and
provide a copy to WDFW, DNR and Ecology for comment. The Certificate Holder shall
not begin Site Preparation prior to obtaining Council approval of the Fire Control Plan.

J. Construction Management Plan

The Certificate Holder shall with the assistance of Council Staff develop a detailed Construction
Management Plan in consultation with WDFW and other affected State and local agencies. The
Plan shall address the primary Site Preparation and Construction phases for the Project, and shall
be generally based on the mitigation measures contained in this Agreement and the Revised
Application. At least sixty (60) days prior to the start of Site Preparation, the Certificate Holder
shall submit the Construction Management Plan to the Council for review and approval. The
Certificate Holder shall not begin Site Preparation prior to obtaining Council approval of the
Construction Management Plan.

K. Construction Schedule

No later than thirty (30) days prior to the beginning of Site Preparation, the Certificate Holder
shall submit to EFSEC an overall construction schedule. Thereafter, the Certificate Holder shall
notify EFSEC of any significant changes in the construction schedule.



Construction Plans and Specifications

At least sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of Construction, the Certificate Holder
shall submit to EFSEC or its designated representative for approval those construction
plans, specifications, drawings and design documents that demonstrate the Project design
will be in compliance with the conditions of this Agreement. The Certificate Holder shall
also provide copies to WDFW, DNR, Ecology and other agencies as EFSEC may direct,
for comment. The plans shall include overall Project site plans, foundation drawings,
equipment and material specifications, and vendor guarantees for equipment performance
as appropriate. The Certificate Holder shall not begin Construction prior to obtaining
Council approval of the construction plans and specifications.

The Certificate Holder shall consult with WDFW on ways to minimize road construction
and other habitat impacts prior to preparing final construction plans. The Certificate
Holder shall also consult with emergency services suppliers prior to preparing final road
construction plans, to ensure that interior Project roads are sufficient to provide reliable
access by emergency vehicles, in its final design for construction, the Certificate Holder,
shall maximize the use of existing roads and pathways, and minimize the construction of
new roads as much as reasonable and practical, and without disrupting wetlands or other
sensitive habitat. The final design shall be subject to approval by EFSEC.

The Certificate Holder shall provide a final project layout plan to demonstrate that project
structures comply with the setback conditions of Article 1.C.6.

Project buildings, structures, and associated systems shall be designed and constructed
consistent with code requirements, including the seismic standards, of the Uniform
Building Code (UBC) or the International Building Code (IBC), but no less stringent than
those found in the UBC 2015.

The Certificate Holder shall design, install, operate and maintain the domestic on-site
septic system in accordance with Kittitas County requirements.

The Certificate Holder shall purchase water only from sources that have been certificated
or otherwise authorized by the Department of Ecology. At least thirty (30) days prior to
the beginning of Site Preparation, the Certificate Holder shall provide to EFSEC proof of
contract for the water supply source it intends to use during Site Preparation,
Construction and Operation. The Certificate Holder shall notify EFSEC of any changes
in the source of supply no later than fifteen (15) days before the change.

Prior to the beginning of Site Preparation, the Certificate Holder shall present to EFSEC
copies of the signed and executed lease(s) with DNR.

ARTICLE V: PROJECT CONSTRUCTION
Environmental Monitoring During Construction

Environmental Monitor (EM). EFSEC will provide full-time on-site environmental
monitoring for the construction phase of the Project, at the Certificate Holder’s cost. The

e



EM shall be an independent, qualified engineering firm (or a person associated with such
firm) selected by EFSEC, and shall report directly to EFSEC.

Environmental Compliance Program for Construction Activities. The Certificate Holder
shall identify and develop environmental monitoring and “stop-work™ criteria in
consultation with the EM and other EFSEC designees prior to beginning Site Preparation.
EFSEC will review and approve the final stop-work criteria to be implemented for the
Project. The Environmental Compliance Program will cover avoidance of sensitive areas
during construction, waste handling and storage, stormwater management, spill
prevention and control, habitat restoration efforts begun during the construction phase of
the project and other mitigation measures required by this Agreement. The Certificate
Holder shall implement the program to ensure that construction activities meet the
conditions, limits and specifications set out in the Site Certification Agreement, all
Attachments thereto, and all other applicable state and federal environmental regulations.

Preconstruction Meeting. A preconstruction meeting shall be held between the
Environmental Monitor and the construction team to review and clarify construction
related plans, special concerns, and construction techniques prior to beginning work.

Copies of Plans and Permits Kept On Site. A copy of the Site Certification Agreement,

Plans approved by the Council or its designees, and all applicable construction permits
will be kept at the Project Site. The lead Project construction personnel and construction
project managers will be required to read, follow, and be responsible for all required
compliance activities. The EM will be responsible for monitoring that all construction
permit requirements are adhered to, and that any deficiencies are promptly reported and
that corrective measures are initiated.

Environmental Monitor Weekly Reports. The EM will provide weekly reports to EFSEC

regarding adherence to BMPs, the implementation of environmental mitigation plans, and
environmental problems reported or discovered as well as corrective actions taken by the
Certificate Holder to resolve these problems. The EM will provide copies to the
Certificate Holder of reports submitted to EFSEC.

Environmental Violations and Stop-Work Orders. Upon identification of an
environmental noncompliance issue, the EM will work with the responsible subcontractor
or direct-hire workers to correct the violation; if non-compliance is not corrected in a
reasonable period of time the EM shall request that EFSEC issue a “stop work™ order for
that portion of the work not in compliance with Project environmental requirements.
EFSEC will promptly notify The EM of any “stop work™ orders that have been issued.

Environmental Monitor Availability. No excavation, filling or re-grading work shall be
performed at any time unless the EM is available for full, concurrent and independent
environmental monitoring on-site.




B. Quarterly Construction Reports

The Certificate Holder shall submit quarterly construction progress reports to EFSEC no later
than thirty (30) days after the end of each calendar quarter. Such reports shall describe the status
of construction and identify any changes in the construction schedule.

98 Construction Inspection

EFSEC shall provide plan review and inspection of construction for all Project buildings,
structures, underground and overhead electrical lines, sanitary waste water discharge systems,
and other Project facilities to ensure compliance with this Agreement. Construction shall be in
accordance with the approved design and construction plans, the IBC or UBC and other relevant
regulations. EFSEC may contract with Kittitas County, another appropriate agency or an
independent firm to provide these services.

D. As-Built Drawings

The Certificate Holder shall maintain a complete set of as-built drawings on file for the life of
the Project, and shall allow the Council or its designated representative access to the drawings on
request following reasonable notice.

E. Habitat, Vegetation, Fish and Wildlife

1. The Certificate Holder shall use construction techniques and Best Management Practices
(BMPs) to minimize potential impacts to habitat and wildlife;

2. The Certificate Holder shall ensure that the construction team includes a qualified staff
person or persons with experience in construction in sensitive arid environments similar
to that found in the Project Area.

3. Construction teams shall stake work and clearing limits prior to construction and ground
clearing.
4. The Certificate Holder shall avoid the installation of above-ground collector lines where

practical. To the extent practical, collector lines shall be installed in or alongside
roadways, in areas currently disturbed, in other areas that will be permanently disturbed
by Project construction, or by directionally drilling under surface waters. When it is not
practical to avoid the installation of above-ground collector lines, the Certificate Holder
shall consult with WDFW to determine the most practical alternative with the least
adverse environmental impacts. Any above-ground collector lines will be designed to
comply with the current Avian Power Line Interaction Committee Guidelines.

5. The Certificate Holder shall post, maintain and enforce driving speed limits of 25 miles
per hour within the Project Area to minimize potential collisions with wildlife during
construction

A



F.

All permanent meteorological towers shall be free-standing monopoles without guy
wires. The Certificate Holder shall use bird markers on all temporary meteorological
towers with guy wires.

The Certificate Holder, in consultation with its wildlife consultant and WDFW, shall
schedule the sequence of construction activities and/or locations across the Project Area
in a manner that will minimize risks to Loggerhead Shrike, Sage Thrasher and Long-
billed Curlews that may nest in the Project Area during the months of April through June
to the extent that it is reasonable, practical and feasible to do so. The Certificate Holder
shall not be required to avoid or restrict construction activities during those months.

The Certificate Holder shall promptly remove carcasses and livestock afterbirths from the
Project Area during construction of the Project. The Certificate Holder shall consult with
WDFW in the development and implementation of this removal program.

Construction Noise

The Certificate Holder and its contractors and subcontractors shall use industry standard noise
attenuation controls during construction to mitigate noise impacts and shall comply with
applicable state and local noise emission regulations. The Certificate Holder shall limit blasting
and loud construction activities to daytime hours (7 a.m. to 10 p.m.), and shall comply with the
applicable requirements of WAC 173-60-040(2) (b) during the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.

G.

l.

Construction Safety and Security

Federal and State Safety Regulations. The Certificate Holder shall comply with
applicable federal and state safety regulations (including regulations promulgated under
the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and the Washington Industrial Safety and
Health Act), as well as local and state industrial codes and standards (such as the Uniform
Fire Code). The Certificate Holder, its general contractor, and all subcontractors shall
make every reasonable effort to maximize safety for individuals working at the Project.

Construction Phase Health and Safety Plan. The Certificate Holder shall develop and

implement a Construction Phase Health and Safety Plan prior to the beginning of Site
Preparation. The Certificate Holder shall consult with local and state organizations
providing emergency response services during the development of the plan to ensure
timely response in the event of an emergency. The Certificate Holder shall submit the
plan to EFSEC for review and approval no later than sixty (60) days prior to Site
Preparation.

Construction Phase Site Security Plan. The Certificate Holder shall develop and
implement a construction phase site security plan to effectively monitor the Project Site.
The Certificate Holder shall consult with local and state organizations providing
emergency response services during the development of the plan to ensure timely
response in the event of an emergency. The Certificate Holder shall submit the plan to
EFSEC for review and approval no later than sixty (60) days prior to Site Preparation.

- Fh=



Site access will be controlled and all on-site construction staff and visitors will be
required to carry an identification pass. Temporary fencing with a locked gate may be
installed at laydown areas for storage of equipment and materials.

4. Visitors Safety. Visitors shall be provided with safety equipment where and when
appropriate.

H. Fugitive Dust

The Certificate Holder shall implement appropriate mitigation measures to control fugitive dust
from roads and construction activities. The Certificate Holder shall use water or a water-based,
environmentally safe dust palliative such as lignin, for dust control on unpaved roads during
Project construction. The Certificate Holder shall not use calcium chloride for dust suppression.

1. Contaminated Soils

In the event that contaminated soils are encountered during construction, the Certificate Holder
shall notify EFSEC and Ecology as soon as possible. The Certificate Holder shall manage,
handle and dispose of contaminated soils in accordance with applicable local, state and federal
requirements.

J. Light, Glare and Aesthetics

The Certificate Holder shall implement mitigation measures to minimize light and glare impacts.
Project buildings shall be constructed of local materials and in local building styles to maximize
their fit into the local landscape, and shall be landscaped with native shrub-steppe vegetation
around buildings and equipment boxes to integrate the structures into the surrounding landscape.
Project structures shall be painted with neutral/low reflectivity finishes to the extent feasible.
The Certificate holder shall neither place nor allow advertising, logos, cellular antennas, or other
clutter on the turbines, nacelles, or buildings of the Project. The O&M facility buildings shall be
painted with a low reflectivity earth tone colored finish. The only lighting on the turbines will be
the aviation lighting required by FAA and other lighting required by other government agencies.
Outdoor lighting at the O&M facility and substation(s) will be minimized to safety and security
requirements, motion sensors will be used to keep lighting turned off when not required, and
lighting will be equipped with hoods and directed downward. If compliance with any of these
requirements is not feasible, the Certificate Holder may seek a waiver from the Council.

The Certificate Holder shall investigate the application of an Aircraft Detection Lighting System
(ADLS) prior to construction and report its findings to EFSEC. The report should include the
benefits and feasibility of ADLS for the Desert Claim project.

K. Construction Wastes and Clean-Up

The Certificate Holder shall dispose of sanitary and other wastes generated during construction
at facilities authorized to accept such wastes.

By



The Certificate Holder shall properly dispose of all temporary structures not intended for future
use upon completion of construction. The Certificate Holder also shall dispose of used timber,
brush, refuse or flammable materials resulting from the clearing of lands or from construction of
the Project in a manner and schedule approved by EFSEC.

b2

ARTICLE VI: SUBMITTALS REQUIRED
PRIOR TO THE BEGINNING OF COMMERCIAL OPERATION

Operations Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan

Operations Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan. The Certificate Holder shall prepare
an operations stormwater pollution prevention plan (Operations SWPPP) in consultation
with WDFW and submit it to EFSEC for approval at least thirty (30) days prior to the
beginning of Commercial Operation. The Operations SWPPP shall include an operations
manual for permanent BMPs. The Operations SWPPP shall be prepared in accordance
with the guidance provided in the Ecology Stormwater Management Manual for Eastern
Washington, September 2004. The Certificate Holder shall periodically review the
Operations SWPPP against the guidance provided in the applicable Ecology Stormwater
Management Manual, and make modifications as necessary to the Operations SWPPP to
comply with current requirements for BMPs.

Operations Spill Prevention, Control and Countermeasure Plan. The Certificate Holder
shall prepare an Operations Spill Prevention, Control and Countermeasures Plan

(Operations SPCCP) in consultation with WDFW and submit it to EFSEC for review and
approval at least thirty (30) days prior to the beginning of commercial operation. The
Operations SPCCP shall be prepared pursuant to the requirements of 40 CFR Part 112,
Sections 311 and 402 of the Clean Water Act and Section 402 (a)(1) of the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act (FWPCA) and RCW 90.48.080. The Operations SPCCP shall
include the Site, all Project structures and facilities on the site, substations(s), feeder line
corridors, and all access roads. The Operations SPCCP shall be implemented within
three (3) months of the beginning of Commercial Operation. The Operations SPCCP
must be updated and submitted to the Council every two (2) years.

Emergency Plans

Operations Emergency Plan. No later than sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of
Commercial Operation, the Certificate Holder shall submit for the Council’s approval an
Operations Emergency Plan for the Project to provide for employee safety in the event of
emergencies, such as those listed below. The Certificate Holder shall coordinate
development of the plan with local and state agencies that provide emergency response
services in the Project Area. Periodically, the Certificate Holder shall provide the Council
with updated lists of emergency personnel, communication channels and procedures.

The Emergency Response Plan shall address in detail the procedures to be followed in the
event of emergencies listed in Article [V.1.1.

Fire Protection Services. The Certificate Holder shall maintain fire protection services
agreement(s) pursuant to IV.1.2 of this Agreement for the entire Project, for the life of the

-



Project or until and to the extent that the Project site is annexed into a Fire District or
other municipal entity that provides fire protection services.

3. Operations Fire Control Plan. The Certificate Holder shall develop an operations phase
Fire Control Plan in consultation with WDFW and WDNR and in coordination with other
state and local agencies to minimize risk of accidental fire during operation and ensure
effective response to any fire that does occur. No later than sixty (60) days prior to the
beginning of Commercial Operation the Certificate Holder shall submit the Plan to
EFSEC for review and approval.

C. Post-Construction Avian Monitoring Plan

No later than one hundred twenty (120) days prior to beginning Commercial Operation, the
Certificate Holder shall submit to EFSEC for review and approval a Post-Construction Avian
Monitoring Plan. The Post-Construction Avian Monitoring Plan shall be developed in
consultation with the WDFW. The Avian Monitoring Plan shall be based upon the 2009 WDFW
Wind Power Guidelines, although the Certificate Holder and WDFW may agree to depart from
the Guidelines if circumstances warrant. The purpose of the plan shall be to quantify impacts to
avian species and to assess the adequacy of mitigation measures implemented. Results shall be
reported to EFSEC and the TAC. The monitoring plan shall include the following components:

L. The Certificate Holder shall implement an avian casualty/fatality reporting and handling
system by Project personnel (operations and maintenance staff) for the life of the Project
following a detailed written protocol developed for the Project and similar to that used by
other wind projects in the region.

2 The Certificate Holder shall perform a minimum of one breeding season’s raptor nest
survey of the Project Area, including a 1 mile buffer, to locate and monitor active raptor
nests potentially affected by construction and operation of the Project.

3. The Council will commission or review for approval a two-year monitoring study by a
third-party consultant to evaluate impacts to avian species. This study will include, at a
minimum, standardized casualty searches, searcher efficacy trials and scavenger removal
trials.

4. The Post-Construction Avian Monitoring Plan for the Project will follow a detailed
written protocol that will document the monitoring measures being conducted.

5. EFSEC shall reconvene the TAC if unanticipated circumstances arise during incidental
monitoring.

D. Post-Construction Bald Eagle Study Plan

In consultation with the Counsel for the Environment (CFE) and WDFW, the Certificate Holder
shall develop a Bald Eagle Study Plan to study the behavior of bald eagles during calving
operations in the first two years of Project operation and submit the Plan to EFSEC for approval
no later than 60 days prior to commencing Commercial Operation.

- 51 -



The Certificate Holder shall implement the Plan and present the results of the study to the TAC.
The TAC will consider the study results and determine whether the calving operations in the
Project Area present an unreasonable risk to bald eagles. If so, the TAC will develop
recommendations regarding possible additional mitigation measures that may further reduce the
risk to bald eagles. Mitigation measures that may be considered include, but are not limited to,
modifying the operation of the wind turbines, modifying or moving the calving operations within
the Project Area, or removing the calving operations from the Project Area. The TAC will
submit its findings and recommendations for mitigation measures, if any, to EFSEC for EFSEC’s
consideration. EFSEC will have final authority to decide whether to require the implementation
of additional mitigation measures addressing this issue.

In the event that a bald eagle is killed by a turbine during calving operations in the Project Area,
the Certificate Holder will report the fatality to EFSEC, the TAC and the United States Fish and
Wildlife Service within forty-eight (48) hours. In the TAC Rules of Procedure, the Certificate
Holder will propose that, within thirty (30) days, the TAC evaluate the available information and
consider whether there are practical additional measures that should be implemented to reduce
the risk to bald eagles and report its findings and recommendations, if any, to EFSEC.

E. Pre-Operation Bat Survey and Bat Monitoring Plan

Prior to beginning commercial operation, the Certificate Holder, in consultation with WDFW,
shall conduct a bat monitoring survey during the bat migration (late summer and early fall). The
survey shall utilize current technology and methodology to document bat use of the site,
including which if any species are at risk from site operation. Detectors shall be placed at an
appropriate elevation to monitor migrating bats within the rotor sweep zone.

The Certificate Holder shall consult with the CFE and WDFW in developing the protocol for the
survey. The Certificate Holder shall present the results of the survey to the TAC. If, based on
the survey results, the TAC concludes that the Project presents a significant risk to bats that is
substantially greater than the risk described in the Final SEIS; the TAC may recommend to
EFSEC that additional mitigation measures be required.

The Certificate Holder shall develop a post-construction Bat Monitoring Plan in consultation
with WDFW and submit the plan to EFSEC for approval no later than sixty (60) days prior to
commencing Commercial Operation. The plan shall include two years of bat fatality monitoring.

ARTICLE VII: PROJECT OPERATION
A. Water Discharge

The Certificate Holder shall ensure that all stormwater control measures and discharges are
consistent with the Operations SWPPP, required by Article VI.A.1. and the Ecology Stormwater
Management Manual for Eastern Washington, September 2004.

Domestic sewage generated at the O&M facility shall be discharged to an on-site septic system.

sl B (Y



B. Noise Emissions

The Certificate Holder shall operate the Project in compliance with applicable Washington State
Environmental Noise Levels, WAC 173-60.

The Certificate Holder shall submit a Complaint-Based Noise Monitoring and Response Plan to
EFSEC for review and approval prior to operation, to address low frequency noise and
aeroacoustic noise.

C. Fugitive Dust Emissions
The Certificate Holder shall continue to implement dust abatement measures as necessary.
D. Habitat, Vegetation and Wildlife BMPs

During Project operations, the Certificate Holder shall implement appropriate operational BMPs
to minimize impacts to plants and animals. In addition to those mitigation measures presented in
the Revised Application, these include the following:

1. Implementation of the Operations Fire Control Plan developed pursuant to Article
VI.B.3, in coordination with local fire districts, to avoid accidental wildfires and respond
effectively to any fire that might occur.

2. Implementation of the Certificate Holder’s agreement with a fire services provider such
as Kittitas Valley Fire and Rescue to provide fire protection services during the
construction and operation of the Project, and in conjunction with DNR, implement
protection services on DNR land leased by the Certificate Holder.

3. Operational BMPs to minimize storm water runoff and soil erosion.

4. Implementation of the noxious weed control program, in coordination with WDFW, to
control the spread and prevent the introduction of noxious weeds.

4. Cattle ranchers who have leased property for the Project may continue conducting
calving operations in fenced areas within the Project Area. The Certificate Holder will
not site any turbine within the fenced calving areas or within a buffer area equal to the
length of a turbine blade plus one hundred feet from the fence line. The Certificate
Holder shall not permit calving operations to take place on the portion of the Project Area
that will be owned by the Certificate Holder or an affiliate of the Certificate Holder.
Cattle ranchers who have leased property for the Project may continue conducting
calving operations in fenced areas within the Project Area. During calving operations,
the Certificate Holder will not operate any turbine within the fenced calving areas or
within a buffer area equal to the length of a turbine blade plus one hundred feet from the
fence line of the calving operations.

6. The Certificate Holder shall promptly remove carcasses and livestock afterbirths from the
Project Area during operation of the Project. The Certificate Holder shall consult with
WDFW in the development and implementation of this removal program.

i



F.

The Certificate Holder shall avoid the use of rodenticides to control rodent burrowing
around wind turbine towers as much as possible. In the event that the Certificate Holder
believes the use of rodenticides is necessary, the Certificate Holder shall consult with
WDFW to develop a plan for appropriate application and use, and submit the plan to
EFSEC for approval prior to implementation.

The Certificate Holder shall cooperate with WDFW in its efforts to manage deer and elk
in the Project vicinity. The Certificate Holder shall not prohibit hunting in the Project
Area, except when the Certificate Holder determines that hunting would place personnel,
property or equipment in jeopardy.

Safety and Security

Personnel Safety. The safety of operating personnel is governed by regulations
promulgated under the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and the Washington
Industrial Safety and Health Act. The Certificate Holder shall comply with applicable
federal and state safety laws and regulations (including regulations promulgated under
the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and the Washington Industrial Safety and
Health Act) as well as local and industrial codes and standards (such as the Uniform Fire
Code).

Operations Phase Health and Safety Plan. No later than sixty (60) days after the
beginning of Commercial Operation, the Certificate Holder shall develop and, after
EFSEC approval, implement an Operations Phase Health and Safety Plan. The
Certificate Holder shall consult with local and state organizations providing emergency
response services during the development of the plan to ensure timely response in the
event of an emergency.

Operations Phase Site Security Plan. The Certificate Holder shall develop and implement
an Operations Phase Site Security Plan. The Certificate Holder shall submit the Plan to
EFSEC for review and approval no later than sixty (60) days before the beginning of
Commercial Operation. The Plan shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following
elements: controlling access to the site by any visitors, contractors, vendors, or suppliers;
security lighting of the operation and any visitor’s center and maintenance facility
buildings: fencing of the substation(s); and securing access to wind turbines, pad
transformers, pad-mounted switch panels and other outdoor facilities. A copy of the final
Security Plan shall be provided to EFSEC and other agencies involved in emergency
response.

Visitors Safety. The Certificate Holder shall require visitors to observe the safety plans
and shall provide them with safety equipment where and when appropriate.

Dangerous or Hazardous Materials

The Certificate Holder shall handle, treat, store, and dispose of all dangerous or hazardous
materials in accordance with Washington state standards for hazardous and dangerous wastes,
WAC 463-40 and WAC 173-303. Following any abnormal seismic activity, volcanic eruption,
severe weather activity, flooding, vandalism or terrorist attacks the Certificate Holder shall

w37



inspect areas where hazardous materials are stored to verify that containment systems are
operating as designed.

G. Decommissioning of Individual Wind Turbine Generators

During the lifetime of the project, the Certificate Holder may choose, or be otherwise required to,
decommission individual WTGs without the entire project being terminated pursuant to Article
VIII of this agreement.

In accordance with Article II1, Section K, paragraph 3, of this agreement, individual WTGs
found to cause unanticipated significant adverse impact(s) on the environment may have further
operating conditions imposed by EFSEC, including permanent shutdown, decommissioning, and
removal from the Project Area. In addition, EFSEC retains the authority to order removal of any
individual WTG that remains inoperable or is not used for more than six months.

The Certificate Holder will disassemble and remove from the Project Area the WTG being
decommissioned within one year of the last date the WTG produced power for sale.

Decommissioning of the WTG does not require removal of the WTG foundation.

The Certificate Holder shall notify EFSEC of its intent to decommission the turbine, and shall
provide a schedule for decommissioning activities.

H. Shadow Flicker Mitigation Measures

The Certificate Holder will attempt to avoid, minimize and mitigate shadow flicker at nearby
residences. Shadow flicker can usually be addressed by planting trees, shading windows or other
mitigation measures. As a last resort the control system of the wind turbine could be
programmed to stop the blades during the brief periods when conditions result in perceptible
shadow flicker.

The Certificate Holder shall develop a mitigation and complaint monitoring plan to respond to
any residential complaints regarding shadow flicker. The mitigation plan will include avoidance,
minimization, and mitigation of shadow flicker through turbine shut down, planting trees,
shading windows, or other mitigation measures. The complaint monitoring plan will be
reviewed and approved by EFSEC prior to operation and, at a minimum, will include:

e Notification of EFSEC within five (5) business days of receipt of any request to mitigate
shadow flicker.

¢ Notification of EFSEC within two (2) weeks of original receipt, of the actions taken in
response, and

e EFSEC shall retain authority to review and override the Certificate Holder’s denial(s) of
any requests or choice of mitigation in this regard.

B8



ARTICLE VIII: PROJECT TERMINATION,
DECOMMISSIONING AND SITE RESTORATION

A. Detailed Site Restoration Plan

The Certificate Holder shall submit a Detailed Site Restoration Plan to EFSEC for approval
within ninety (90) days from the time the Council is notified of the termination of the Project.
The Detailed Site Restoration Plan will provide for restoration of the Site within the timeframe
specified in Article VIIL.C., taking into account the Initial Site Restoration Plan and the
anticipated future use of the Site. The Detailed Site Restoration Plan shall address the elements
required to be addressed by WAC 463-72-050 (in effect at the date of submittal of the
Application), and the requirements of the Council-approved Initial Site Restoration Plan pursuant
to Article IV.D. of this Agreement. The Certificate Holder shall not begin Site Restoration
activities without prior approval from the Council.

B. Project Termination

L, Termination of this Site Certification Agreement, except pursuant to its own terms, is an
amendment of this Agreement.

2. The Certificate Holder shall notify EFSEC of its intent to terminate the Project.

3. The Certificate Holder shall terminate the Project if, at the written request of the Council,
the Certificate Holder demonstrates that the energy generated by the Project for the past
twelve (12) month period is less than 10% of the Historical Energy Production (as
defined below) and the following exemptions do not apply: the twelve (12) month
reduced energy output period described above is the result of (i) a repair, restoration or
improvement to an integral part of the Project that affects the generation of electricity that
is being diligently pursued by the Certificate Holder, or (ii) a force majeure event,
including, but not limited to, an extended low wind period. Historical Energy Production
means the sum of all energy generated by the Project divided by the number of months
since the beginning of Commercial Operation multiplied by twelve, starting twelve
months after Commercial Operation commences.

4. The Council may initiate proceedings leading to SCA amendment pursuant to WAC 463-
66-090.

C. Decommissioning Timing and Scope

l. Timing. The Certificate Holder shall commence decommissioning of the Project within

twelve (12) months following the termination described in Article VIIL.B. above.

The period to perform the decommissioning may be extended if there is a delay caused
by conditions beyond the control of the Certificate Holder including, but not limited to,
inclement weather conditions, equipment failure, wildlife considerations or the
availability of cranes or equipment to support decommissioning.

-34 -



Scope. Decommissioning the Project shall involve removal of the Turbines; removal of
foundations to a depth of four (4) feet below grade; regrading the areas around the Project
Facilities; removal of Project access roads and overhead cables (except for any roads
and/or power cables that Project Area landowners wish to retain); and final reseeding of
disturbed lands (all of which shall comprise “Decommissioning™). Decommissioning
shall occur in the order of removing the Turbines as the first priority and performing the
remaining elements immediately thereafter.

Monthly Reports. If requested by EFSEC, the Certificate Holder will provide monthly
status reports until this decommissioning work is completed.

Decommissioning Funding and Surety

Except as provided in Art. VIII.D.3 below, the Certificate Holder or any Transferee, as
the case may be, shall provide financial assurance sufficient for Decommissioning costs
in the form of a performance bond, guaranty or a letter of credit to ensure the availability
of funds for such costs (the “Decommissioning Security”) to EFSEC. The Certificate
Holder shall include a detailed engineering estimate of the cost of decommissioning in its
Initial Site Restoration Plan submitted to EFSEC.

The Initial Site Restoration Plan shall provide that the Decommissioning costs shall be
reevaluated annually during construction of the Project and once every five (5) years
thereafter from the date of Substantial Completion to ensure sufficient funds for
Decommissioning. If deemed appropriate at that time, the amount of decommissioning
funds may be adjusted by EFSEC accordingly.

The duty to provide such security shall commence thirty (30) days prior to the beginning
of Construction of the Project, and shall be renewed on an annual basis. On or before the
date on which financial security must be established, the Certificate Holder shall provide
EFSEC with one of the following security devices that is reasonably acceptable to
EESEC:

Performance Bond. The Certificate Holder or any Transferee, as the case may be,
shall provide financial security for the performance of its decommissioning
obligations through a Performance Bond issued by a surety registered with the
Washington State Insurance Commissioner and which is, at the time of delivery
of the bond, on the authorized insurance provider list published by the Insurance
Commissioner. The Performance Bond shall be in an amount equal to the
Decommissioning costs. The Performance Bond shall be for a term of one (1)
year, shall be continuously renewed, extended, or replaced so that it remains in
effect for the remaining term of this Agreement or until the secured
decommissioning obligations are satisfied, whichever occurs sooner. In order to
ensure continuous renewal of the Performance Bond with no lapse, each
Performance Bond shall be required to be extended or replaced at least one month
in advance of its expiration date. Failure to secure such renewal or extension
shall constitute a default of the Applicant under this Agreement and under the
Bond provisions; or

o T




Letter of Credit. The Certificate Holder or any Transferee, as the case may be,
shall provide financial security for the performance of its decommissioning
obligations through a letter of credit issued by a bank whose long-term debt is
rated “A” or better by a Rating Service. The letter of credit shall be in an amount
equal to the Decommissioning costs. The letter of credit shall be for a term of 1
year and shall be continuously renewed, extended, or replaced so that it remains
in effect for the remaining term of this Development Agreement or until the
secured decommissioning obligations are satisfied, whichever occurs sooner. The
State of Washington, by and through EFSEC or its successor or designees, shall
be authorized under the letter of credit to make one or more sight drawings
thereon upon certification to the issuing bank of the Applicant’s or Transferee’s
(as the case may be) failure to perform its decommissioning obligations when
due; or Guaranty. Applicant or any Transferee, as the case may be, shall provide
financial security for the performance of its decommissioning obligations by
delivering a payment guaranty guaranteeing its Decommissioning obligations
hereunder from an entity (i) having, at the time of delivery of such guaranty, a
senior unsecured long term debt rating (“Credit Rating™) of (1) if such entity has a
Credit Rating from Standard and Poor’s but not from Moody’s, BBB- or better
from Standard and Poor’s or (2) if such entity has a Credit Rating from Moody’s
but not from Standard and Poor’s, Baa3 or better from Moody’s or (3) if such
entity has a Credit Rating from both Standard and Poor’s and Moody’s, BBB- or
better from Standard and Poor’s and Baa3 or better from Moody’s; or (ii) having
audited financial statements, prepared by a nationally-recognized firm of
independent auditors and indicating a financial net worth of at least $75,000,000.

[f Project ownership is transferred after the effective date of this Agreement pursuant to
applicable EFSEC laws and regulations, EFSEC has the right to require, consider and
approve other financial instruments and/or assurances that would provide for the
Certificate Holder’s performance of its Decommissioning obligations pursuant to Article
VIII.C. and VIIL.D. of this Amended Site Certification Agreement.

ARTICLE IX: SITE CERTIFICATION AGREEMENT - SIGNATURES

-36-



